
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to adopt the 2022 City of Stoughton Budget  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Committee of the Whole recommends approval 12-0  


Fiscal Impact: General Fund - $14,814,029  
EMS - $843,116        
Storm Water - $1,495,269 
Library - $948,170 
Opera House - $1,191,829 
     


File Number:  R-163-2021 
 
Date Introduced: 
 


 
November 9, 2021 
 


RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2022 ANNUAL CITY BUDGET 


WHEREAS, the Mayor has prepared and the Council Committee of the Whole has reviewed the 
proposed budgets of the City of Stoughton for the year 2022; and 


WHEREAS, a Summary of the Budget and Notice of Public Hearing was published on 
October 16, 2021; and 


WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the budget on the 9th day of November, 2021 
by the Common Council; and 


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2022 
City of Stoughton General Fund Operating Budget to the Common Council on October 20, 2021; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2022 
Stoughton Emergency Medical Services (EMS) budget to the Common Council on October 20, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2022 
Stoughton Storm Water Utility budget to the Common Council on October 20, 2021; and 
 


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2022 
Library budget to the Common Council on October 20, 2021; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2022 Opera 


House budget to the Common Council on October 20, 2021; and 


WHEREAS, the Common Council has examined the budget and various items therein and finds 
the budget as presented and amended to date of this Resolution to represent the income anticipated 
and the expenditures for the various departments by major category as set forth therein;  







 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane 
County, Wisconsin does approve the following: 


SECTION 1. 2022 Budget Adopted. 
There is hereby adopted the 2022 City of Stoughton budget and appropriated out of the 


receipts of the City of Stoughton for the year 2022, including monies received from the general 
property tax levy, special assessments and other sources of revenue as therein provided, for the 
various purposes therein specified, the amounts set forth in said Budget presented, or attached 
thereto or referenced by it. 


SECTION 2. Tax Levy Adopted. 
There is hereby certified to the City Clerk, a general property tax levy in the amount of 


$9,911,584 on all of the taxable property within the City of Stoughton for the year 2021 for the uses 
and purposes set forth as expenditures in the Budget hereby adopted. 


SECTION 3. City Clerk Directed to Spread Tax on Roll. 
The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to spread the tax levied herein on the tax roll 


of the City of Stoughton for the year 2021. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to publish this resolution as a 
Class 1 Notice in the Stoughton Courier Hub. 
 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                             
Timothy Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 


Published: ______________ 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 







City of Stoughton 2022 
Budget Executive 
Summary







2022 Budget Highlights
 Employee Compensation
 3.10% wage increase (union and non-union)


 5% increase in health insurance premiums
 Net New Construction = 1.32% resulting in $100,000 increase to base tax levy
 See following slide for Dane County comparison


 TIF 3 termination resulting in $72,000 increase to base tax levy


 Non-labor operating budget increase in general fund of 0% (excluding transfers)
 Achieve minimum impact to mil rate while creating 5 year plan to support the 


City’s struggling TIF Districts







2022 Budget Highlights (cont.)







2022 Budget Highlights (cont.)
 Staffing requests approved
 FT Senior Network Administrator
 PT HR Administrative Assistant
 Move Fire Technician from 30 hours per week to 40


 Total debt service levy increase of $131,625
 Utilized $15,000 in excess debt service fund balance to reduce the overall impact on 


the final mil rate







Key 2022 Budgetary Outcomes


 Tax Rate
– Assessed
 -3.46% to $7.82
 5 year average (2016-2020) = -1.26%


– Equalized 
 -3.87% to $7.71
 5 year average (2016-2020) = -1.33%







Key 2022 Budgetary Outcomes (cont.)


 Impact on Average Homeowner
– Average Home Equalized Value -


$248,989
 2.07% increase in tax payment to 


$1,919
 $39 increase over 2021 levy


– Average Home Assessed Value -
$247,898
 .76% increase in tax payment to 


$1,938
 $14 increase over 2020 levy







Key 2022 Budgetary Outcomes (cont.)


 General Fund Expenditures
– Using ERP formula, General Fund 


expenditures are increasing over 
2021 by 3.79%


– Five year average = 2.83%







2022 General Fund Operating
Budget - Condensed







Expenditure Restraint Impact







Expenditure Restraint Impact (cont.)


 The final budget indicates a 3.79% increase leaving approximately 
$1,121 in allowable expenditures







Significant Items for 2022


 Equalized value growth rate of 
6.11%
– Debt capacity will increase 


accordingly







Significant Items for 2022 (General Fund Impact)
 Health and dental insurance increase: $65,400 or 6.33%


 Payroll increase: $233,800 or 4.54%
– Salaries and Wages increase: $255,300 or 5.47%
– Volunteers decrease: $10,000 or 9.09%
– Overtime increase: $4,500 or 2.90%
– Part time and seasonal wage decrease: $16,000 or 7.07%


 Payroll benefits increase: $32,200 or 4.01%


 Debt service increase: $131,625 or 3.8%


 Operating transfers increase: $84,000 or 6.42%







Summary of Policy for Unassigned Fund Balance
 Policy is to maintain General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance between 20% 


and 25% of the subsequent year’s operating expenditure budget


 Recent compliance history
– 2020: 29.0% ($4,049,750 total; $564,172 excess)
– 2019: 27.9% ($3,887,629 total; $406,606 excess)
– 2018: 27.5% ($3,599,051 total; $331,804 excess)
– 2017: 26.6% ($3,411,601 total; $205,040 excess)


 As a result of maintaining a conservative approach to the 2021 budget due 
to concerns over the pandemic and the Federal Funding provided to the 
Opera House, we anticipate this upwards trend to continue







Summary of Policy for Unassigned Fund Balance 
(cont.)
 The 2022 budget includes use of Unassigned Fund Balance to fund the 


planned 2022 employee retirements


 The City does have a relatively high debt burden and Moody’s would look 
unfavorably if we decreased the Unassigned Fund Balance below the 25% 
threshold


 The City’s policy is to limit the use of Unassigned Fund Balance to one-time 
expenditures







Debt Service Summary


 City debt limit policy
– Policy: Remain below 4% of the City 


equalized property value


– The City will be at 2.65% at the end 
of 2021


 Percentage of levy
– Policy: Remain below 40% of total 


levy
– Forecasted 2021 levy is 36%







Acknowledgements
 Finance Department Staff


 Department Heads – This really does take a lot of effort on their part


 Council Members







City of Stoughton 2022 Budget


Questions?







  


 
 


 
 
 


                                                                            


 


    


 
2022 MAYOR’S ANNUAL BUDGET DOCUMENT 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 



https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwj1lry10a3lAhWhIzQIHUz3CvsQjRx6BAgBEAQ&url=https://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/&psig=AOvVaw3XUZYfvi73QU1FW8WnLuPZ&ust=1571757038968553





  


2022 BUDGET MESSAGE FROM THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
 


After months of planning and consultation with city staff and council members, the Mayor has submitted the budget for 


calendar year 2022 for consideration and approval. We believe this budget achieves many of the city’s objectives, with a 


nominal tax impact to our residents.  


 


Although the impacts of the COVID-19 health pandemic continue to linger, thanks to smart planning during previous years 


we have been able to mitigate many of those impacts, keep taxes low for our residents, and maintain healthy fund balances. 


The city also experienced continued growth in both residential and commercial development resulting in a net new 


construction increase of 1.32%, or $16.7 million.  


 
Here are a few highlights from the Mayor’s Budget: 


• Total budgeted general fund operating expenditures are $11.2 million, excluding debt service. This represents an increase 


from last year’s budget of $413,000 and is mainly the result of wage increases and increased staffing levels. 


• General fund budgeted operating expenditures increased approximately 3.8%. This increase is in excess the city’s net new 


construction increase, and is a testament to the careful planning exhibited by our elected officials and employees as it 


relates to identifying alternative sources of revenues in lieu of property taxes. 


• Garbage and Recycling fees are anticipated to increase by approximately 5.6% or $10.04 per unit annualized. 


• Storm Water fees are anticipated to increase approximately 5.14% or $3.96 per unit annualized. 


• In order to support continued development along the Riverfront, we have earmarked $170,000 from TID No. 4 to be used to 


support TID No.’s 5 and 8. 


• The City was awarded $1.4 million in American Rescue Plan funds and continues to have ongoing workshops to identify 


the most impactful way these funds will be spent. 


• There is approximately $6.2 million committed in 2022 towards capital projects. 


o This budget includes $3.2 million in road maintenance and street and storm water construction. The largest 


anticipated road expense will be $853,000 for the Academy Street West reconstruction project. 


o This budget also includes approximately $498,000 to replace the Jefferson Street Bridge and an additional 


$923,000 towards the Riverfront area improvements. 


o In addition, this budget includes approximately $365,000 in playground and park upgrades, $1.2 million in 


equipment replacement, and $88,000 in city building maintenance projects.  


• The city anticipates funding the aforementioned by issuing approximately $5.2 million in General Obligation debt. 


 


Despite continued uncertainty brought by the ongoing pandemic and rising prices, we believe our city is well situated to 


endure any unforeseen challenges, and well positioned to continue delivering the essential services our residents rely upon. 


With that said, challenges will continue to arise as we work through this difficult time, but rest assured that the Finance 


Department will continue to diligently monitor the city’s financials and maintain an open dialogue with the Finance Committee 


as on a regular basis. We are grateful for the dedicated work of our city council. Their vision and dedication to the city have 


greatly aided in our city’s progress over these last few years. We are grateful for their unrelenting support and dedication to 


serving our great residents. 







CITY OF STOUGHTON   2022 BUDGET 
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS 


 


 


 
 
 
 


 


Elected Officials 
 
 


CITY COUNCIL 
 


Term of Office Expires 
Mayor 


Timothy Swadley 2022 
Council Members  


Regina Hirsch – Council President 2024 
Greg Jensen – Council Vice President 2023 
Brett Schumacher 2022 
Joyce Tikalsky 2023 
Rachel Venegas 2024 
Phil Caravello 2024 
Leonard Doom 2022 
Ben Heili 2024 
Tom Majewski 2022 
Jean Ligocki 2022 
Lisa Reeves 2023 
Fred Hundt 2023 


 
 
 


Department Heads 
 


City Clerk Candee Christen 
EMS Director Lisa Schimelpfenig 
Fire Chief Josh Ripp 
Director of Human Resources Amy Jo Gillingham 
Director of IT/Media Services John Montgomery 
Opera House Director Bill Brehm 
Director of Planning and Development Rodney Scheel 
Police Chief Greg Leck 
Director of Public Works Brett Hebert 
Library Director Jim Ramsey 
Director of Parks and Recreation Dan Glynn 
Utilities Director Jill Weiss 
Senior Center Director Cindy McGlynn 
Director of Finance Jamin Friedl 
 


    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON   2022 BUDGET 
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS 


 


 


 
Introduction 
The city maintains a number of funds for recording the fiscal transactions and to meet legal accounting requirements.  
Budgets for all funds of the city, which are listed below, are legally adopted on an annual basis. 


 
Below are general descriptions of the fund-types and a brief description of each fund within each type. 


 
Fund Type: General Fund 
Fund Number: 100 
Description: The General Fund provides for accounting of general governmental functions related to the city’s statutory 
obligations. Those functions include, public works, fire services, police services, City Council, city administration, 
finance, insurance and legal. 


Fund Type: Debt Service 
Fund Number: 300 
Description:  The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the payment of debt on all general obligation debt. Payments 
on general obligation debt issued for general government purposes are funded primarily by the property tax levy.  


 
Fund Type: Construction/Capital Projects and Outlay 
Fund Number: 400 and 410 


 
Description: Funds for the construction and replacement of city facilities, equipment, infrastructure and other capital 
assets. 


 
Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 4 
Fund Number: 204 
Description: Tax Incremental Financing District (TID) No. 4 is used to account for all project costs related to Downtown 
improvements. Beginning in 2021, the future increment from TID No. 4 will be donated to TID No.’s 5 and 8 to assist 
with continued development along the Riverfront. 


 
Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 5 
Fund Number: 205 
Description: Tax Incremental Financing District (TID) No. 5 is used to account for all project costs related to the Railroad 
Corridor. 


 
Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 6 
Fund Number: 206 
Description: Tax Incremental Financing District (TID) No. 6 is used to account for all project costs related to the 
Business Park North Expansion Area. While this TID continues to struggle financially, the city saw great strides in 2020 
in terms of land sales, in vertical improvements in 2021, and hopes to see this trend continue into 2022. 
 
Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 7 
Fund Number: 207 
Description: Tax Incremental Financing District (TID) No. 7 is used to account for all project costs related to Kettle Park 
West (KPW). KPW Phase II was approved by the City Council in 2020 and is planned to add an additional $66 million 
in incremental value to this TID. 
 
Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 8 
Fund Number: 208 
Description: Tax Incremental Financing District (TID) No. 8 is used to account for all project costs related to the 
Riverfront Development Area. The city signed agreements with a developer for Phase I of a development to begin spring 
of 2022. 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON   2022 BUDGET 
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS 


 


 


 
Fund Type: Major Enterprise Funds  
 
7450 - Water Utility - Accounts for operations and capital needs of the water system 
7460 - Wastewater Utility - Accounts for operations and capital needs of the wastewater system 
7430 - Electric Utility - Accounts for operations and capital needs of the electric system 
 
Fund Type: Non-Major Governmental Funds  
 
Description: Funds used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to 
expenditure for capital outlays. 
 


   221 - Fire Equipment   223 - Park Development 
   411 - Building Maintenance  412 - Equipment Replacement 
   413 - Technology    


 
Fund Type: Non-Major Enterprise Funds  
 
Description: Funds used to account for and report any activity for which a fee is charged to external uses for goods or 
services. 
 


   603 - EMS    224 - Storm Water 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON   2022 BUDGET 
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS 


 


 


 
Other funds maintained by the city and not specifically defined above are as follows: 
 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
OVERVIEW OF ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS, LEGAL AND POLICY 


REQUIREMENTS 


 


 


 


 
 
Budget Process (General) 
The formal budget process begins in May of each year. At that time the budget materials and guidelines are distributed 
to the various department heads. Informally, aspects of upcoming budgets are discussed throughout the year with the 
City Council and staff. 


 
The departmental budgets are compiled, clarified and put into a format for the Mayor’s review. The Mayor meets with 
the Finance Director and individual department heads to follow up on questioned items and clarify explanations. When 
the final review is completed, the proposed budget document is prepared and provided to the Committee of the Whole 
annual Budget Workshops. All department heads are required to attend the Budget Workshops of the Committee of the 
Whole. At this time, committee members pose questions and make recommendations and comments regarding the 
overall budget. The Committee of the Whole then approves the budget to be taken before the City Council. Citizens are 
also invited to participate in the annual Budget Workshops as well. 


 
 
 
 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
OVERVIEW OF ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS, LEGAL AND POLICY 


REQUIREMENTS 


 


 


 
The City Council must then conduct a public hearing and take a formal action to approve the final budget and levy at 
the first City Council meeting in November. 
 


 
Budget Monitoring 
The budget is monitored throughout the year to ensure city departments remain within budget and complete planned 
activities. The Finance Committee and City Council receives monthly updates and a full financial report each quarter.  


Budget Amendments 
Periodically, during an operating year, it becomes necessary to modify the adopted budget. Modifications that affect the 
total budget on a fund basis are only approved by the action of the City Council. The City Council, under Wisconsin 
State Statutes Section 65.06, can modify or amend the budget if unappropriated funds are available. Budget 
appropriations are approved at the function level. 


 
Examples of such budget amendments would include requests for additional or emergency expenditures where reserve 
balances are available or additional revenues have been received. 


Fund Accounting 
The accounts of the city are organized into funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The 
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, 
liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, net position/fund balance, revenues, and expenditures, or expenses, 
as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes 
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped 
in the annual financial statements into two broad fund categories and five generic fund types as follows: 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
OVERVIEW OF ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS, LEGAL AND POLICY 


REQUIREMENTS 


 


 


 


Governmental Funds Subject to Financial Planning and Appropriation 
General Fund -The General fund is the primary operating fund of the city. It is used to account for and report all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 


 
Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of certain specific 
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 


 
Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to account for and report the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 


 
Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. 


Other Funds Subject to Financial Planning but not Subject to Appropriation (Enterprise Funds) 
Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for and report operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises. With these, the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, 
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges. The city has five (5) Enterprise Funds: Water Utility, Electric Utility, Sewer 
Utility, EMS and Storm Water.  


Basis of Accounting 


The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed by the governmental funds and agency funds. Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable 
and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period. The city defines this period to be sixty-five days. Expenditures are recorded when 
the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on long- term debt, claims, judgments, 
compensated absences, and pension expenditures, which are recorded as a fund liability when expected to be 
paid with expendable available financial resources. 


 
Property taxes are recorded in the year levied as receivables and deferred inflows of resources. They are 
recognized as revenues in the succeeding year when services financed by the levy are being provided. In addition 
to property taxes for the city, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state and county governments as well 
as the local school district and technical college district. Taxes for all state and local governmental units billed in 
the current year for the succeeding year are reflected as deferred revenues and due to other taxing units on the 
accompanying balance sheet. Taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. 


 
Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenues in the period the related expenditures are incurred, if 
applicable, or when the city is entitled to the aids. 


 
Special assessments are recorded as revenues when collected. Annual installments due in future years are reflected 
as receivables and deferred inflows of resources. 


 
Revenues susceptible to accrual include property taxes, miscellaneous taxes, public charges for services and 
interest. 


 
Other general revenues such as fines and forfeitures, inspection fees, recreation fees, and miscellaneous 
revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurable and available under the criteria described 
above. 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
OVERVIEW OF ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS, LEGAL AND POLICY 


REQUIREMENTS 


 


 


 


Basis of Accounting (cont.) 
 


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 


Basis of Budgeting 


The city adopts an annual budget for the general, special revenue, debt service and capital project funds that 
are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting and the proprietary funds budgets are prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting, which are the same methods as the basis of accounting. The adopted budget 
indicates the amount that can be expended by each fund based on detailed budget estimates for individual 
expenditure accounts. Management may make budget modifications within the department level. All budget 
revisions at the function level must be authorized by the City Council. The Council, under Wisconsin Statutes, 
can modify or amend the budget if unappropriated funds are available. All supplemental appropriations are 
financed either by transfers from the contingency section of the general fund budget or by revenues received in 
excess of the budgeted amounts. All budget amounts lapse at the end of the year to the extent they have not 
been expended. The level which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is at the function level. The 
basis of budgeting for the city’s funds is the same as the basis used for the fund statements in the city’s annual 
financial report. 


Long Range Planning (Capital Improvement Program (CIP)) Overview 
As part of the annual budget and the long-range planning process, the city also updates a 5-year Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP). 


 
The Capital Improvement Process is ongoing throughout the year, as the City Council studies and approves various 
projects. The document preparation is an affirmation of those approvals as well as a projection of potential projects that 
may be approved within the 5-year period. 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
SUMMARY 


 


 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
SUMMARY 


 


 


 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 
The following is a summary of the 2022 general fund budget: 


 
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 


MAJOR REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
General Fund Revenues and Expenditures Overview 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 
Description of Major General Fund Revenues 
A description of the major revenue categories and a discussion related to the revenue trend for the major revenue 
category can be found below. 


Category – Taxes – The tax category includes two types of major revenues. These include General Property and Utility 
Payment in Lieu of Tax. 


 


 
 


Property Taxes 
 


It has been the city council’s objective to keep tax rate increases to a minimum. The large increase in tax revenue 
in 2019 and 2020 was due to debt service requirements caused by capital projects in 2018 and prior years. The 
large increase between the 2021 and 2022 budget amounts is due to amounts levied to TID No.’s 5 and 8 in 
the previous year, which are not reflected in this chart. 
The State of Wisconsin limits increases in property taxes to the greater of 0% or the percentage increase due 
to new construction (1.32% for 2021) plus increases in debt service requirements. The 2022 budget proposes 
to increase property taxes of an average homeowner by 0.76%. 


 
In recent years, the city has seen growth that has lagged behind the Dane County average. 
 
Property taxes are calculated by taking net expenditures and comparing to the state imposed levy limit. If the 
levy is under the limit, the City Council authorizes the amount to be taxed to city property owners based upon a 
calculated mil rate applied to taxpayer property values. Forecasted amounts are dependent upon net new 
construction within the city. 
 
Utility Payment In Lieu of Tax 


 


The Utility Payment in Lieu of Tax is tax calculated on utility property within the city limits. 
 


Growth in utility payment in lieu of tax revenue is dependent upon additions to the water and electric utility 
plant. This revenue does not increase greatly unless significant new plant is added to the city’s systems. The 
city generally budgets conservatively on this line item. 


 
The Utility Payment in Lieu of Tax is calculated by taking the water and electric utility plant within in the city limits 
as of January 1 of the current year multiplied by the mil rate of the city, school, and technical college. 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 


Category – Intergovernmental Revenues – The major sources of intergovernmental revenues for the city includes 
state shared revenues and transportation aids. 
 


 
 


State Shared Revenue 
 


State shared revenues have increased steadily over the past few years. 
 


The trend for shared revenues is that they remain relatively stable going forward. 
 


 
Year Amount % Change 


2018 Actual  $                826,359    
2019 Actual  $                875,783  5.98% 
2020 Actual  $                881,283  0.63% 
2021 Budget  $                890,400  1.03% 
2022 Budget  $                906,381  1.79% 


 
The city budgets for the amount that the state sends out to be included in the budget during September of the 
current year. The city will qualify for expenditure restraint in 2022. The non-expenditure restraint portion of state 
shared revenues is expected to remain stable in the future. 


 
 


  







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 


General Transportation Aids 
 


The state awards funds for transportation based upon a formula called the “Share of Costs Calculation.” This 
uses a six-year average multiplied by a share of cost percentage determined by the state. 


 
Transportation aids are expected to continue their upwards trend in the coming years. 


 
 


The city budgets for the amount that the state sends out to be included in the budget during September of the 
current year.  
 


Category – Public Charges for Services – Charges for services within the general governmental funds assists in 
providing a diversity of revenue sources. Over the years, the city has instituted user fees for services where appropriate. 
A majority of the user fees for governmental services are collected from fire department fees, cable franchise fees, yard 
waste fees and recreation fees. The chart below does not include past activity related to the city’s garbage collection 
and recycling fees due to the fact it was classified as a special revenue fund in 2020. The significant reduction in 2020 
was due in large part to COVID-19. 


 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 


 
Description of Major General Governmental Expenditures 


 


Category – General Government – Administration, legal and finance make up the majority of this category. The 2021 
budget increases are primarily due to re-categorizing the new 2020 custodian positions and an increase in the taxi 
service expenditures (offset mostly by revenues). 


 


 
 
 


Category – Public Safety – The city’s police and fire departments have notable increases forecasted for 2022 due to 
wage and benefits increases. Expenditures can vary year-to-year due to vacancies, retirements, overtime requirements, 
etc. 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 


 
Category – Public Works – Maintenance of city infrastructure has seen increases in cost of service over the past four 
years. This category includes engineering, street maintenance, street lighting, and snow removal as its major 
components. The decrease beginning in 2020 is the result of classifying city’s garbage collection and recycling activities 
as a special revenue fund effective January 1, 2020. 
 


 
 


 
Category – Human Services, Culture, Recreation and Leisure Activities – The city offers robust recreation and 
senior center programs throughout the year. The city’s commitment to retaining these services is evidenced by the 
steady growth in the annual costs appropriated to these services and additional staffing in both 2021 and 2022. 


 


      







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 


Category – Debt Service – The city has been involved in many community enhancing projects including park 
improvements, street reconstructions and building projects. With these types of projects ongoing, the city has 
experienced an increase in debt service. The city has policies related to debt that can be found on the city’s website. 


 


 
 
Category – Other General Fund Transfers – This category consists of transfers out to the following funds: 
 


Opera House Transfer from General Fund 
 


The Opera House has been significantly impacted by COVID-19, but has received over $460,000 in Federal relief 
spanning 2020 and 2021. 


 


 
 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 
 


Library 
 


The Library has built up substantial reserves as a result of COVID-19 and will begin spending them down in 2022. 


 
 
 


Capital Outlay and Equipment Replacement 
 


The city has continued to fund its capital outlay and sinking funds at a consistent amount to reduce the amount of 
borrowing required on an annual basis. 


 
 


 
 
  
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 


 


 


 
 


EQUALIZED AND ASSESSED VALUE – LAST TEN YEARS  
 


          
         Ratio of Assessed 


 Levy   Budget  Equalized   Assessed   to Equalized 
 Year  Year  Value   Value   Value 
 2012  2013   $        918,270,600    $        911,725,683   99.28% 


 2013  2014   $        894,125,500    $        909,159,183   101.68% 
 2014  2015   $        913,080,500    $        912,344,800   99.92% 
 2015  2016   $        954,262,000    $        948,202,600   99.36% 
 2016  2017   $      1,000,796,500    $        996,893,100   99.57% 
 2017  2018   $      1,065,541,100    $      1,054,034,100   98.75% 
 2018  2019   $      1,163,261,500    $      1,130,807,600   97.21% 
 2019  2020   $      1,233,724,300    $      1,201,415,140   97.37% 
 2020  2021   $      1,268,041,900    $      1,255,575,395   99.02% 
 2021  2022   $      1,341,278,100    $      1,322,024,845   98.55% 


 


 
 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 


 


 


 
 


 


LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION  
 


 


 
 


 
Note: In accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the city may not exceed five percent of the equalized value of taxable property 


within the city’s jurisdiction. 







CITY OF STOUGHTON


EQUALIZED VALUE CONSTRUCTION PERCENT
FITCHBURG 3,706,378,900$ 198,428,900$ 5.35%
DEFOREST 1,449,753,200$ 67,304,600$ 4.64%
COTTAGE GROVE 842,628,700$ 35,710,800$ 4.24%
WINDSOR 1,048,228,900$ 42,035,000$ 4.01%
SUN PRAIRIE 3,864,128,900$ 149,749,800$ 3.88%
WAUNAKEE 2,150,021,500$ 68,945,400$ 3.21%
OREGON 1,312,188,300$ 41,155,000$ 3.14%
MCFARLAND 1,127,280,700$ 32,980,000$ 2.93%
MIDDLETON (TOWN) 1,467,676,700$ 32,507,900$ 2.21%
WESTPORT 951,526,600$ 21,601,000$ 2.27%
MIDDLETON (CITY) 4,077,208,800$ 74,848,600$ 1.84%
DUNN 857,854,200$ 13,450,200$ 1.57%
MADISON 33,036,794,000$ 508,251,200$ 1.54%
VERONA 3,273,069,100$ 45,905,500$ 1.40%
STOUGHTON 1,268,041,900$ 16,718,900$ 1.32%
MOUNT HOREB 838,224,300$ 10,439,100$ 1.25%
MONONA 1,451,017,900$ 4,815,400$ 0.33%


DANE 74,243,627,000$ 1,545,122,600$ 2.08%


 - The detailed list above represents Dane County municipalities with equalized values greater 
   than $800,000,000.


2021 DANE COUNTY 
NET NEW CONSTRUCTION 


MUNICIPALITY







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON MILL RATE HISTORY







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 CONDENSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)


REVENUES
TAXES 10,141,534$          10,108,052$          10,214,770$          9,523,458$            10,910,384$          695,614$               
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 2,280,126$            2,446,331$            2,393,631$            1,574,127$            2,523,069$            129,438$               
LICENSES & PERMITS 199,075$               259,023$               200,500$               239,813$               222,400$               21,900$                  
FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES 155,000$               88,178$                  147,000$               88,452$                  105,000$               (42,000)$                
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 588,894$               421,869$               571,199$               427,897$               574,772$               3,573$                    
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR 64,000$                  64,000$                  82,000$                  77,500$                  82,000$                  -$                        
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 442,505$               460,649$               332,339$               270,181$               377,268$               44,929$                  
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 65,000$                  64,900$                  187,000$               18,300$                  45,000$                  (142,000)$              
     TOTAL REVENUES 13,936,134$          13,913,002$          14,128,439$          12,219,728$          14,839,893$          711,454$               


EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,055,672$            1,973,686$            2,123,388$            1,538,487$            2,190,096$            66,708$                  
PUBLIC SAFETY 3,867,662$            3,812,899$            3,883,219$            2,623,519$            4,014,411$            131,192$               
PUBLIC WORKS 1,676,663$            1,589,860$            1,695,543$            1,205,702$            1,696,651$            1,108$                    
HUMAN SERVICES 36,000$                  33,323$                  36,000$                  31,072$                  36,000$                  -$                        
RECREATION-SENIOR SERVICES 1,707,704$            1,479,472$            1,790,998$            1,199,830$            1,921,008$            130,010$               
TRANSFERS 4,583,613$            4,794,078$            4,590,536$            4,446,301$            4,955,863$            365,327$               
     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13,927,314$          13,683,318$          14,119,684$          11,044,911$          14,814,029$          694,345$               


EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
      OVER EXPENDITURES


8,820$                    229,684$               8,755$                    1,174,817$            25,864$                  17,109$                  







CITY OF STOUGHTON PUBLIC HEARING RECONCILIATION


PUBLIC 
HEARING 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND NOTICE PROPOSED (DECREASE)


REVENUES
TAXES 10,910,383$          10,910,384$          1$                           
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 2,523,069$            2,523,069$            -$                        
LICENSES & PERMITS 222,400$               222,400$               -$                        
FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES 105,000$               105,000$               -$                        
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 574,772$               574,772$               -$                        
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR 82,000$                 82,000$                 -$                        
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 377,268$               377,268$               -$                        
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 45,000$                 45,000$                 -$                        
     TOTAL REVENUES 14,839,892$          14,839,893$          1$                           


EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1,873,201$            2,190,096$            316,895$               Note A
PUBLIC SAFETY 4,014,411$            4,014,411$            -$                        Note A
PUBLIC WORKS 1,696,651$            1,696,651$            -$                        Note A
HUMAN SERVICES 644,461$               36,000$                 (608,461)$              Note A
RECREATION-SENIOR SERVICES 1,314,517$            1,921,008$            606,491$               Note A
CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT 316,894$               -$                        (316,894)$              Note A
TRANSFERS 4,953,863$            4,955,863$            2,000$                    Note A
     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 14,813,998$          14,814,029$          31$                         


EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
      OVER EXPENDITURES


25,894$                 25,864$                 (30)$                        


Note A - Variances between the 2022 budget and the public hearing notice mainly relate
to different category classifications between the budget amounts presented here and the 
the amounts presented in the Public Hearing Notice. Minor changes were made by the 
Committee of the Whole following the first meeting on October 14, 2021, which explain
the $30 variance in the bottom line. 







                                                                                                                                  


                     CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND REVENUES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
TAXES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES 9,384,714$           9,383,998$           9,462,070$           9,462,065$           9,911,584$           449,514$               
41210 ROOM TAXES 8,120$                   3,770$                   7,200$                   3,940$                   8,000$                   800$                      
41310 UTILITY PILOT AND DIVIDENDS 689,000$               663,261$               688,000$               -$                       933,200$               245,200$               
41320 SHA PILOT 48,500$                 47,595$                 47,500$                 47,108$                 47,500$                 -$                       
41321 DCHA PILOT 11,200$                 9,428$                   10,000$                 10,345$                 10,100$                 100$                      
     TOTAL TAXES 10,141,534$         10,108,052$         10,214,770$         9,523,458$           10,910,384$         695,614$               


INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
43410 STATE SHARED TAXES 539,975$               523,123$               539,950$               80,993$                 523,465$               (16,485)$                
43411 STATE UTILITY AID 20,070$                 23,294$                 22,350$                 3,354$                   40,000$                 17,650$                 
43415 EXPENDITURE RESTRAINT PAYMENT 238,150$               238,146$               235,200$               235,212$               245,000$               9,800$                   
43420 FIRE INSURANCE REBATE 49,500$                 50,368$                 51,400$                 51,839$                 51,400$                 -$                       
43430 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 60,000$                 59,960$                 59,500$                 59,960$                 61,156$                 1,656$                   
43431 PERSONAL PROPERTY AID 36,700$                 36,760$                 33,400$                 33,453$                 36,760$                 3,360$                   
43521 STATE GRANTS-POLICE 23,700$                 17,432$                 2,000$                   3,412$                   2,000$                   -$                       
43522 FEDERAL AID: POLICE -$                       -$                       -$                       8,903$                   -$                       -$                       
43529 FEDERAL ASSISTANCE FUNDING - COVID -$                       198,661$               -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
43531 STATE ROAD ALLOTMENT 874,000$               874,245$               1,005,000$           754,036$               1,156,000$           151,000$               
43533 STATE AID - STREETS 51,700$                 51,731$                 51,900$                 38,966$                 81,000$                 29,100$                 
43537 TAXI GRANT 190,800$               175,120$               203,000$               206,153$               212,057$               9,057$                   
43545 RECYCLING GRANT 34,100$                 34,071$                 34,100$                 34,196$                 34,200$                 100$                      
43571 VIDEO SERVICE PROVIDERS AID -$                       13,815$                 28,031$                 28,031$                 28,031$                 -$                       
43690 OTHER STATE GRANTS -$                       7,903$                   -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
43693 SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 64,000$                 45,665$                 32,000$                 -$                       -$                       (32,000)$                
43790 COUNTY FUNDING - OUTREACH 97,431$                 86,828$                 51,800$                 27,020$                 52,000$                 200$                      
43791 GRANTS -$                       9,209$                   44,000$                 8,599$                   -$                       (44,000)$                
     TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 2,280,126$           2,446,331$           2,393,631$           1,574,127$           2,523,069$           129,438$               


LICENSES & PERMITS
44110 LIQUOR & MALT BEVERAGE 18,000$                 20,626$                 18,000$                 29,460$                 18,000$                 -$                       
44111 OPERATORS 12,000$                 9,090$                   11,000$                 8,625$                   11,000$                 -$                       
44120 CIGARETTE 1,575$                   1,600$                   1,600$                   1,300$                   1,500$                   (100)$                     







                                                                                                                                  


                     CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND REVENUES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
44150 MISC. LICENSE 7,000$                   5,782$                   6,500$                   5,983$                   5,500$                   (1,000)$                  
44210 DOG 3,500$                   1,524$                   3,400$                   2,668$                   3,400$                   -$                       
44300 BUILDING 75,000$                 84,815$                 75,000$                 72,342$                 90,000$                 15,000$                 
44310 ELECTRICAL 25,000$                 37,694$                 25,000$                 16,474$                 25,000$                 -$                       
44320 PLUMBING 15,000$                 21,638$                 15,000$                 47,756$                 17,000$                 2,000$                   
44330 HEATING 12,000$                 26,690$                 12,000$                 11,109$                 15,000$                 3,000$                   
44340 FIRE PROTECTION FEES 5,000$                   5,202$                   5,000$                   4,416$                   6,000$                   1,000$                   
44900 MISC 25,000$                 44,362$                 28,000$                 39,680$                 30,000$                 2,000$                   
     TOTAL LICENSES & PERMITS 199,075$               259,023$               200,500$               239,813$               222,400$               21,900$                 


FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES
45100 COURT PENALTIES/COSTS 120,000$               64,154$                 112,000$               59,166$                 80,000$                 (32,000)$                
45130 PARKING FINES 35,000$                 24,024$                 35,000$                 29,286$                 25,000$                 (10,000)$                
     TOTAL FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES 155,000$               88,178$                 147,000$               88,452$                 105,000$               (42,000)$                


PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE
46110 MISC. REVENUE 5,000$                   2,310$                   5,000$                   2,833$                   5,000$                   -$                       
46150 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ADMIN FEES 11,500$                 10,885$                 11,500$                 10,358$                 11,500$                 -$                       
46210 POLICE DEPT FEES 1,000$                   1,212$                   1,000$                   4,020$                   2,000$                   1,000$                   
46220 FIRE DEPT FEES 170,000$               162,854$               175,000$               175,432$               184,000$               9,000$                   
46290 MVD FEES 6,000$                   11,801$                 6,500$                   6,759$                   6,500$                   -$                       
46309 ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEES 6,000$                   5,120$                   4,000$                   1,785$                   2,000$                   (2,000)$                  
46310 PUBLIC WORKS CHARGES-MECHANIC -$                       3,412$                   500$                      -$                       3,500$                   3,000$                   
46312 INSPECTION-MOW/SNOW CHARGES 1,000$                   2,873$                   2,000$                   2,513$                   2,000$                   -$                       
46430 STREET OPENING INCUMBERANCE 8,000$                   21,471$                 10,000$                 12,238$                 12,850$                 2,850$                   
46435 YARD WASTE SITE FEES 21,000$                 19,520$                 21,000$                 20,010$                 21,000$                 -$                       
46540 CEMETERY FEES 12,000$                 8,896$                   11,000$                 14,365$                 13,500$                 2,500$                   
46590 TAXABLE CRAFT SALES 1,500$                   60$                        1,500$                   370$                      200$                      (1,300)$                  
46595 MISC TAXABLE SALES -$                       (131)$                     -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
46610 NEWSLETTER -$                       310$                      -$                       322$                      300$                      300$                      
46720 PARK RESERVATIONS 7,000$                   3,565$                   7,000$                   8,315$                   8,000$                   1,000$                   
46750 RECREATION 47,470$                 18,616$                 48,389$                 22,095$                 46,771$                 (1,618)$                  
46751 SWIM POND 70,000$                 -$                       70,000$                 54,698$                 65,000$                 (5,000)$                  







                                                                                                                                  


                     CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND REVENUES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
46752 REC INSTRUCTION FEES 75,924$                 19,727$                 76,310$                 39,500$                 76,310$                 -$                       
46755 CABLE FRANCHISE FEE 138,000$               128,633$               115,000$               52,284$                 114,341$               (659)$                     
46756 UNDERWRITING 5,000$                   -$                       3,000$                   -$                       -$                       (3,000)$                  
46757 CABLE - TAXABLE SALES 500$                      585$                      500$                      -$                       -$                       (500)$                     
46759 VIDEO PRODUCTION SERVICES 2,000$                   150$                      2,000$                   -$                       -$                       (2,000)$                  
     TOTAL PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 588,894$               421,869$               571,199$               427,897$               574,772$               3,573$                   


INTERGOVERNMENTAL ADMIN FEES
47410 SEWER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 15,400$                 15,400$                 15,400$                 15,400$                 15,400$                 -$                       
47420 ELECTRIC UTILITY ADMINISTRATIO 35,400$                 35,400$                 35,400$                 35,400$                 35,400$                 -$                       
47430 WATER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 13,200$                 13,200$                 13,200$                 13,200$                 13,200$                 -$                       
47440 EMS ADMINISTRATION -$                       -$                       18,000$                 13,500$                 18,000$                 -$                       
     TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL ADMIN FEES 64,000$                 64,000$                 82,000$                 77,500$                 82,000$                 -$                       


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
48100 OTHER REIMBURSEMENTS -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
48110 INTEREST 90,000$                 90,204$                 12,000$                 7,665$                   16,170$                 4,170$                   
48111 INTEREST: LONG TERM INVESTMENT -$                       26,525$                 -$                       5,062$                   -$                       
48112 INTEREST ON TAXES -$                       476$                      -$                       921$                      500$                      500$                      
48113 REBATE 10,000$                 9,589$                   10,000$                 8,813$                   8,500$                   (1,500)$                  
48114 DIVIDENDS 30,000$                 30,393$                 31,000$                 -$                       25,000$                 (6,000)$                  
48130 INTEREST - ASSESSMENTS -$                       1,885$                   750$                      3,404$                   2,000$                   1,250$                   
48220 RENTAL INCOME 10,000$                 13,000$                 10,000$                 10,500$                 10,000$                 -$                       
48221 RENTAL INCOME -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
48309 SALE OF CITY PROPERTY -$                       -$                       -$                       675$                      -$                       -$                       
48400 INSURANCE RECOVERIES-PROPERTY 3,000$                   3,092$                   3,000$                   17,250$                 -$                       (3,000)$                  
48410 INSURANCE RECOVERIES-WORKCOMP -$                       -$                       -$                       525$                      -$                       -$                       
48420 INSURANCE- REBATE 15,000$                 14,616$                 14,600$                 14,297$                 14,000$                 (600)$                     
48500 DONATIONS -$                       3,000$                   -$                       7$                           -$                       -$                       
48501 DC NUTRITION CONTRACT -$                       -$                       -$                       8,600$                   37,000$                 37,000$                 
48503 DONATIONS- KITCHEN FUND 12,000$                 16,049$                 12,000$                 9,414$                   15,000$                 3,000$                   
48504 DONATIONS - TOWNSHIPS 50,856$                 32,250$                 35,000$                 24,000$                 32,000$                 (3,000)$                  
48505 DONATIONS - CENTER 29,000$                 29,573$                 29,500$                 22,094$                 29,500$                 -$                       







                                                                                                                                  


                     CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND REVENUES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
48507 DONATIONS - SEN CNTR CASE MGMT -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
48509 DONATIONS - SPECIAL GIFT (FOUN 40,000$                 38,000$                 25,000$                 38,000$                 38,000$                 13,000$                 
48519 FSAYC CONTRIBUTION 115,038$               99,987$                 116,499$               57,629$                 117,748$               1,249$                   
48522 DONATIONS - YOUTH CENTER 700$                      350$                      700$                      -$                       350$                      (350)$                     
48523 DANE COUNTY DONATIONS 9,311$                   9,590$                   -$                       6,393$                   9,000$                   9,000$                   
48524 UNITED WAY DONATIONS 2,600$                   4,053$                   2,600$                   1,326$                   1,500$                   (1,100)$                  
48527 AARON HUTCHINS SCHOLARSHIP FUND -$                       -$                       -$                       6,010$                   -$                       -$                       
48540 POLICE SAFETY CAMP 5,000$                   5,000$                   -$                       -$                       5,000$                   5,000$                   
48541 DONATIONS-POLICE-NATIONAL NIGHT OUT 20,000$                 29,690$                 29,690$                 25,089$                 15,000$                 (14,690)$                
48542 SHOP WITH A COP -$                       450$                      -$                       200$                      -$                       -$                       
48543 PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL -$                       2,877$                   -$                       2,307$                   1,000$                   1,000$                   
     TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 442,505$               460,649$               332,339$               270,181$               377,268$               44,929$                 


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
42321 TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER 20,000$                 24,900$                 12,000$                 18,300$                 -$                       (12,000)$                
49214 TRANSFER IN -BLDG MAINT 45,000$                 40,000$                 45,000$                 -$                       45,000$                 -$                       
49223 TRANSFER IN - TIF #3 -$                       -$                       130,000$               -$                       -$                       (130,000)$             
     TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 65,000$                 64,900$                 187,000$               18,300$                 45,000$                 (142,000)$             


     TOTAL REVENUES 13,936,134$         13,913,002$         14,128,439$         12,219,728$         14,839,893$         711,454$               







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Dept 51100 - LEGISLATIVE
50110 SALARIES 43,200$                 43,920$                 43,200$                 29,460$                 43,200$                 -$                       
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3,300$                   3,360$                   3,305$                   2,254$                   3,283$                   (22)$                       
  Totals for dept 51100 - LEGISLATIVE 46,500$                 47,280$                 46,505$                 31,714$                 46,483$                 (22)$                       


Dept 51200 - JUDICIAL
50110 SALARIES 12,500$                 13,079$                 13,000$                 9,048$                   13,000$                 -$                       
50120 WAGES 31,308$                 31,433$                 31,866$                 21,973$                 32,908$                 1,042$                   
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 5,662$                   5,678$                   5,758$                   3,954$                   5,854$                   96$                         
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 2,000$                   908$                       2,000$                   1,030$                   1,700$                   (300)$                     
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 450$                       470$                       500$                       120$                       500$                       -$                       
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 9,850$                   7,996$                   9,800$                   7,779$                   8,500$                   (1,300)$                  
  Totals for dept 51200 - JUDICIAL 61,770$                 59,564$                 62,924$                 43,904$                 62,462$                 (462)$                     


Dept 51300 - LEGAL
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 130,000$               121,095$               130,000$               92,254$                 150,000$               20,000$                 
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 10,000$                 6,832$                   10,000$                 4,881$                   7,000$                   (3,000)$                  
  Totals for dept 51300 - LEGAL 140,000$               127,927$               140,000$               97,135$                 157,000$               17,000$                 


Dept 51400 - MAYOR
50110 SALARIES 63,927$                 64,402$                 64,626$                 44,987$                 68,494$                 3,868$                   
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 9,574$                   9,456$                   9,628$                   6,590$                   10,017$                 389$                       
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 14,937$                 14,937$                 15,282$                 11,462$                 15,990$                 708$                       
50210 TELEPHONE 700$                       698$                       700$                       854$                       700$                       -$                       
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,700$                   524$                       1,700$                   494$                       1,000$                   (700)$                     
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 7,700$                   7,891$                   8,000$                   8,254$                   8,200$                   200$                       
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 2,700$                   1,299$                   2,700$                   1,027$                   1,500$                   (1,200)$                  
  Totals for dept 51400 - MAYOR 101,238$               99,207$                 102,636$               73,668$                 105,901$               3,265$                   


Dept 51420 - CLERK
50110 SALARIES 69,639$                 70,179$                 71,181$                 37,090$                 73,437$                 2,256$                   
50120 WAGES 69,276$                 70,386$                 70,888$                 57,363$                 71,890$                 1,002$                   
50126 OVERTIME -$                       -$                       -$                       630$                       -$                       -$                       
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 17,605$                 17,309$                 17,997$                 11,412$                 18,076$                 79$                         
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 18,502$                 18,502$                 18,934$                 13,165$                 28,528$                 9,594$                   
50210 TELEPHONE 3,000$                   3,301$                   3,000$                   2,578$                   3,600$                   600$                       
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 2,800$                   236$                       2,600$                   833$                       2,500$                   (100)$                     
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS -$                       -$                       -$                       40$                         -$                       -$                       
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 8,050$                   6,743$                   7,950$                   5,013$                   7,500$                   (450)$                     
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 2,900$                   1,668$                   2,900$                   2,000$                   2,250$                   (650)$                     
50341 OPERATING EXPENSES-MUNICIPAL CODE 6,500$                   5,452$                   6,500$                   5,089$                   6,000$                   (500)$                     
  Totals for dept 51420 - CLERK 198,272$               193,776$               201,950$               135,213$               213,781$               11,831$                 







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)


Dept 51440 - ELECTION
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 26,000$                 16,660$                 10,500$                 6,306$                   20,000$                 9,500$                   
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 3,000$                   3,046$                   2,500$                   965$                       2,500$                   -$                       
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 14,225$                 34,091$                 7,000$                   9,231$                   15,000$                 8,000$                   
  Totals for dept 51440 - ELECTION 43,225$                 53,797$                 20,000$                 16,502$                 37,500$                 17,500$                 


Dept 51510 - FINANCE DIRECTOR
50110 SALARIES 104,820$               102,095$               107,115$               79,450$                 120,100$               12,985$                 
50120 WAGES 111,212$               113,102$               113,525$               79,041$                 117,078$               3,553$                   
50126 OVERTIME -$                       41$                         -$                       513$                       -$                       -$                       
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 31,410$                 31,605$                 32,223$                 22,620$                 34,050$                 1,827$                   
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 66,522$                 63,282$                 68,101$                 53,751$                 71,338$                 3,237$                   
50200 MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES -$                       115$                       3,100$                   2,128$                   3,000$                   (100)$                     
50211 POSTAGE 2,000$                   866$                       1,000$                   321$                       950$                       (50)$                       
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 3,000$                   1,798$                   2,000$                   1,915$                   2,000$                   -$                       
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 72,000$                 68,629$                 72,000$                 58,611$                 70,000$                 (2,000)$                  
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/BANK FEES 2,500$                   1,695$                   1,500$                   1,159$                   1,700$                   200$                       
50219 TAXI GRANT 191,000$               175,120$               206,000$               131,220$               229,008$               23,008$                 
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 19,000$                 21,684$                 24,000$                 11,707$                 22,000$                 (2,000)$                  
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 2,000$                   (566)$                     2,000$                   1,129$                   1,600$                   (400)$                     
  Totals for dept 51510 - FINANCE DIRECTOR 605,464$               579,466$               632,564$               443,565$               672,824$               40,260$                 


Dept 51530 - ASSESSOR
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 44,000$                 44,000$                 40,000$                 40,000$                 39,500$                 (500)$                     
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 3,900$                   4,190$                   4,200$                   203$                       4,200$                   -$                       
  Totals for dept 51530 - ASSESSOR 47,900$                 48,190$                 44,200$                 40,203$                 43,700$                 (500)$                     


Dept 51550 - HR/RISK MANAGEMENT
50110 SALARIES 93,269$                 93,987$                 95,177$                 66,007$                 98,160$                 2,983$                   
50120 WAGES 38,948$                 40,203$                 42,732$                 29,658$                 61,236$                 18,504$                 
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 19,385$                 19,260$                 20,300$                 13,806$                 21,883$                 1,583$                   
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 21,916$                 22,031$                 22,426$                 16,819$                 23,471$                 1,045$                   
50190 TRAINING 3,000$                   181$                       3,000$                   -$                       2,000$                   (1,000)$                  
50210 TELEPHONE 480$                       937$                       600$                       418$                       600$                       -$                       
50211 POSTAGE -$                       -$                       50$                         8$                           50$                         -$                       
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 2,000$                   -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,000$                   1,422$                   2,000$                   1,367$                   2,000$                   -$                       
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 1,000$                   99$                         1,000$                   85$                         500$                       (500)$                     
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 9,290$                   8,224$                   9,290$                   2,533$                   8,000$                   (1,290)$                  
  Totals for dept 51550 - HR/RISK MANAGEMENT 191,288$               186,344$               196,575$               130,701$               217,900$               21,325$                 







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
Dept 51900 - OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT
50153 SELF INSURED LOSSES 31,000$                 1,350$                   35,000$                 -$                       -$                       (35,000)$                
50300 MISC EXPENSES 57,000$                 56,815$                 57,700$                 55,497$                 57,750$                 50$                         
  Totals for dept 51900 - OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 88,000$                 58,165$                 92,700$                 55,497$                 57,750$                 (34,950)$                


Dept 51930 - INSURANCE
50510 PROPERTY/LIABILITY INSURANCE 28,000$                 28,153$                 28,716$                 29,242$                 32,000$                 3,284$                   
50511 EXCESS LIABILITY INSURANCE 2,100$                   2,088$                   2,506$                   3,122$                   3,500$                   994$                       
50512 EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY 6,000$                   5,313$                   6,110$                   5,848$                   6,200$                   90$                         
50513 AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE INSURANCE 41,000$                 40,076$                 46,304$                 41,159$                 45,000$                 (1,304)$                  
50514 BOILER/MACHINERY INSURANCE 1,500$                   1,891$                   2,085$                   2,224$                   2,500$                   415$                       
50515 PROPERTY INSURANCE 28,000$                 32,404$                 38,599$                 54,253$                 38,000$                 (599)$                     
50516 CRIME INSURANCE 1,000$                   703$                       773$                       583$                       1,000$                   227$                       
50519 VOLUNTEER WORKERS COMP INSURANCE 500$                       929$                       703$                       743$                       900$                       197$                       
50520 WORKERS COMP. INSURANCE 165,000$               100,970$               155,000$               111,666$               120,000$               (35,000)$                
50523 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 6,500$                   8,882$                   8,500$                   11,906$                 8,800$                   300$                       
  Totals for dept 51930 - INSURANCE 279,600$               221,409$               289,296$               260,746$               257,900$               (31,396)$                


Dept 56300 - PLANNING
50110 SALARIES 90,143$                 104,833$               103,314$               71,777$                 107,707$               4,393$                   
50120 WAGES 77,379$                 95,070$                 95,512$                 65,123$                 98,489$                 2,977$                   
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 24,213$                 27,799$                 27,999$                 19,030$                 28,569$                 570$                       
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 31,930$                 35,146$                 35,713$                 26,978$                 37,630$                 1,917$                   
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 3,000$                   2,088$                   3,000$                   2,183$                   3,000$                   -$                       
50330 VEHICLE EXPENSE 1,000$                   1,256$                   1,500$                   614$                       1,500$                   -$                       
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 2,000$                   4,889$                   3,000$                   3,590$                   6,000$                   3,000$                   
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT 22,750$                 27,480$                 24,000$                 20,344$                 34,000$                 10,000$                 
  Totals for dept 56300 - PLANNING 252,415$               298,561$               294,038$               209,639$               316,895$               22,857$                 


Total - Function GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,055,672$           1,973,686$           2,123,388$           1,538,487$           2,190,096$           66,708$                 


PUBLIC SAFETY
Dept 52100 - LAW ENFORCEMENT
50110 SALARIES 107,132$               107,952$               95,824$                 75,723$                 112,754$               16,930$                 
50120 WAGES 1,528,318$           1,548,119$           1,551,220$           1,087,488$           1,603,384$           52,164$                 
50122 WAGES - DISPATCH 321,320$               309,289$               320,355$               196,194$               316,369$               (3,986)$                  
50123 WAGES - COMMUNITY SERVICE OFFICER 21,852$                 20,922$                 22,362$                 15,557$                 23,061$                 699$                       
50125 OVERTIME - DISPATCH 13,000$                 20,897$                 11,500$                 23,528$                 11,500$                 -$                       
50126 OVERTIME 123,000$               122,111$               123,000$               51,777$                 123,000$               -$                       
50127 WAGES - PART TIME-CROSSING GUARDS 20,600$                 5,219$                   20,600$                 8,247$                   20,600$                 -$                       
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 380,667$               381,788$               385,811$               259,247$               399,467$               13,656$                 
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 417,599$               391,416$               400,437$               300,475$               420,219$               19,782$                 
50190 TRAINING 31,260$                 26,899$                 34,760$                 24,900$                 34,700$                 (60)$                       







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50210 TELEPHONE 15,600$                 19,283$                 16,500$                 14,114$                 16,500$                 -$                       
50214 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1,800$                   1,752$                   2,000$                   1,944$                   2,000$                   -$                       
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 43,500$                 43,610$                 45,500$                 44,993$                 46,500$                 1,000$                   
50217 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 1,500$                   570$                       2,000$                   125$                       2,000$                   -$                       
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 23,400$                 19,377$                 23,400$                 13,556$                 23,400$                 -$                       
50241 DANE COM FEES 26,000$                 24,101$                 26,000$                 17,691$                 26,000$                 -$                       
50330 VEHICLE EXPENSE 17,200$                 9,137$                   17,200$                 15,487$                 18,500$                 1,300$                   
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 30,000$                 24,804$                 30,000$                 21,828$                 30,000$                 -$                       
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES-NATIONAL NIGHT OUT 50,500$                 67,331$                 50,500$                 31,249$                 50,500$                 -$                       
50390 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 31,200$                 21,933$                 31,200$                 14,495$                 35,500$                 4,300$                   
50394 BUDDY BENCHES -$                       625$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
50395 POLICE SAFETY CAMP 5,000$                   2,091$                   5,000$                   149$                       -$                       (5,000)$                  
50396 GRANT EXPENDITURES -$                       -$                       15,000$                 20,495$                 15,000$                 -$                       
50397 SHOP WITH A COP -$                       388$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
50398 PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL -$                       1,333$                   -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
  Totals for dept 52100 - LAW ENFORCEMENT 3,210,448$           3,170,947$           3,230,169$           2,239,262$           3,330,954$           100,785$               


Dept 52200 - FIRE PROTECTION
50110 SALARIES 89,165$                 93,397$                 87,672$                 61,027$                 90,397$                 2,725$                   
50120 WAGES 109,663$               109,233$               107,618$               75,321$                 124,360$               16,742$                 
50124 WAGES - VOLUNTEERS 110,000$               86,779$                 110,000$               18,241$                 100,000$               (10,000)$                
50127 WAGES - PART TIME -$                       1,154$                   -$                       42$                         -$                       -$                       
50129 LONGEVITY - VOLUNTEERS 7,500$                   5,935$                   7,800$                   -$                       7,800$                   -$                       
50130 FIRE PENSION BENEFIT 42,000$                 43,949$                 42,000$                 -$                       42,000$                 -$                       
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 46,153$                 42,987$                 45,442$                 26,827$                 48,029$                 2,587$                   
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 53,818$                 44,138$                 45,126$                 33,844$                 47,250$                 2,124$                   
50190 TRAINING 2,500$                   2,276$                   7,720$                   3,912$                   5,000$                   (2,720)$                  
50210 TELEPHONE 3,000$                   2,220$                   2,500$                   2,176$                   2,340$                   (160)$                     
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,600$                   127$                       2,500$                   530$                       2,500$                   -$                       
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 -$                       -$                       -$                       418$                       -$                       -$                       
50217 OUTSIDE SERVICES - CLEANING -$                       3,815$                   500$                       88$                         250$                       (250)$                     
50220 UTILITIES 23,000$                 22,829$                 23,000$                 16,508$                 25,000$                 2,000$                   
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 16,000$                 43,951$                 19,875$                 37,286$                 30,435$                 10,560$                 
50241 DANE CAD 2,500$                   3,007$                   5,974$                   5,576$                   6,500$                   526$                       
50245 BUILDING & GROUNDS 10,000$                 13,815$                 10,000$                 6,183$                   10,000$                 -$                       
50300 MISC EXPENSES 300$                       2,517$                   300$                       819$                       300$                       -$                       
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,550$                   1,483$                   1,550$                   653$                       1,550$                   -$                       
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 6,150$                   5,388$                   9,700$                   11,965$                 12,200$                 2,500$                   
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 8,350$                   6,191$                   8,950$                   7,159$                   10,250$                 1,300$                   
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 10,800$                 7,903$                   10,800$                 4,191$                   10,800$                 -$                       
50342 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2 1,000$                   1,385$                   1,000$                   1,230$                   1,000$                   -$                       
50390 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 2,000$                   665$                       5,500$                   642$                       5,000$                   (500)$                     
  Totals for dept 52200 - FIRE PROTECTION 547,049$               545,144$               555,527$               314,638$               582,961$               27,434$                 







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)


Dept 52400 - INSPECTION
50120 WAGES 80,476$                 67,503$                 68,365$                 46,835$                 70,494$                 2,129$                   
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 11,152$                 10,043$                 10,276$                 6,948$                   10,412$                 136$                       
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 14,937$                 14,937$                 15,282$                 11,461$                 15,990$                 708$                       
50215 WEIGHTS & MEASURES 3,600$                   3,600$                   3,600$                   3,600$                   3,600$                   -$                       
50216 INSPECTION-MOW/SNOW CHARGES -$                       725$                       -$                       775$                       -$                       -$                       
  Totals for dept 52400 - INSPECTION 110,165$               96,808$                 97,523$                 69,619$                 100,496$               2,973$                   


Total - Function PUBLIC SAFETY 3,867,662$           3,812,899$           3,883,219$           2,623,519$           4,014,411$           131,192$               


PUBLIC WORKS
Dept 53200 - CITY BUILDINGS
50110 SALARIES 11,096$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
50120 WAGES 109,418$               73,800$                 116,177$               77,466$                 119,815$               3,638$                   
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 16,683$                 10,559$                 16,134$                 10,791$                 16,254$                 120$                       
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 45,542$                 24,500$                 29,844$                 22,383$                 31,260$                 1,416$                   
50200 MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES -$                       315$                       -$                       209$                       -$                       -$                       
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-CITY HALL 7,708$                   9,443$                   6,000$                   2,425$                   6,000$                   -$                       
50220 UTILITIES - CITY HALL 30,000$                 29,322$                 30,000$                 19,463$                 30,900$                 900$                       
50221 UTILITIES-SENIOR CENTER ANNEX 500$                       433$                       500$                       748$                       3,000$                   2,500$                   
50222 UTILITIES & MAINTENANCE - DEPOT 6,000$                   3,996$                   6,000$                   2,445$                   6,180$                   180$                       
50223 UTILITIES & MAINTENANCE - FOOD PANTRY 1,900$                   5,866$                   2,000$                   1,125$                   2,060$                   60$                         
50224 UTILITIES - MSB PROPERTY 30,000$                 17,155$                 22,000$                 12,239$                 22,000$                 -$                       
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 13,000$                 12,501$                 13,000$                 6,155$                   13,000$                 -$                       
50341 OPERATING EXPENSES-MSB PROPERTY 7,280$                   4,993$                   7,000$                   -$                       -$                       (7,000)$                  
50350 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 7,000$                   8,823$                   7,000$                   3,456$                   7,000$                   -$                       
50351 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE - MSB PROPERTY 5,000$                   8,412$                   5,000$                   1,576$                   5,000$                   -$                       
  Totals for dept 53200 - CITY BUILDINGS 291,127$               210,118$               260,655$               160,481$               262,469$               1,814$                   


Dept 53300 - HIGHWAY & STREET MAINT/CONST
50110 SALARIES 58,869$                 58,557$                 60,078$                 41,560$                 61,040$                 962$                       
50120 WAGES 534,189$               562,823$               554,811$               404,807$               552,126$               (2,685)$                  
50126 OVERTIME 16,800$                 20,875$                 20,500$                 18,980$                 25,000$                 4,500$                   
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 22,085$                 25,709$                 23,365$                 13,812$                 15,102$                 (8,263)$                  
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 90,478$                 93,916$                 94,395$                 67,006$                 92,306$                 (2,089)$                  
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 150,375$               157,699$               162,639$               134,337$               173,508$               10,869$                 
50210 TELEPHONE 3,200$                   3,019$                   3,000$                   2,025$                   3,000$                   -$                       
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 4,000$                   2,562$                   4,000$                   2,451$                   4,000$                   -$                       
50215 CONTRACTED SERVICES/URBAN FORESTRY 55,000$                 49,703$                 60,000$                 33,068$                 65,000$                 5,000$                   
50220 UTILITIES 50,000$                 43,421$                 50,000$                 25,050$                 50,000$                 -$                       
50290 CONTRACTED SERVICES/GRINDING 16,000$                 10,844$                 17,000$                 12,588$                 15,000$                 (2,000)$                  
50300 HWY STREET MAINT/CONST 20,000$                 20,104$                 20,000$                 18,455$                 22,000$                 2,000$                   







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50302 PPE - PUBLIC WORKS 3,000$                   2,584$                   3,000$                   1,869$                   3,000$                   -$                       
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,500$                   3,898$                   3,500$                   2,018$                   3,500$                   -$                       
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 38,500$                 32,161$                 38,500$                 27,385$                 38,500$                 -$                       
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 73,000$                 68,684$                 73,000$                 70,677$                 82,500$                 9,500$                   
50350 GENERAL BLDG MAINTENANCE 3,440$                   8,698$                   4,000$                   15,922$                 6,000$                   2,000$                   
50360 TREE PURCHASES - STREETS 30,000$                 26,518$                 32,000$                 17,820$                 22,000$                 (10,000)$                
50390 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 6,100$                   5,772$                   6,100$                   4,606$                   6,400$                   300$                       
50391 TOOL ALLOWANCE 1,000$                   1,000$                   1,000$                   1,007$                   1,200$                   200$                       
  Totals for dept 53300 - HIGHWAY & STREET MAINT/CONST 1,179,536$           1,198,547$           1,230,888$           915,443$               1,241,182$           10,294$                 


Dept 53310 - SNOW REMOVAL
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES-SALT 68,000$                 65,968$                 68,000$                 61,851$                 70,000$                 2,000$                   
  Totals for dept 53310 - SNOW REMOVAL 68,000$                 65,968$                 68,000$                 61,851$                 70,000$                 2,000$                   


Dept 53400 - SIGNS AND MARKINGS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 18,000$                 21,737$                 18,000$                 6,058$                   18,000$                 -$                       
  Totals for dept 53400 - SIGNS AND MARKINGS 18,000$                 21,737$                 18,000$                 6,058$                   18,000$                 -$                       


Dept 53420 - STREET LIGHTING
50340 STREET LIGHTING - ELECTRIC 120,000$               93,490$                 118,000$               61,869$                 105,000$               (13,000)$                
  Totals for dept 53420 - STREET LIGHTING 120,000$               93,490$                 118,000$               61,869$                 105,000$               (13,000)$                


Dept 53620 - SANITATION
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
  Totals for dept 53620 - SANITATION -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       


Total - Function PUBLIC WORKS 1,676,663$           1,589,860$           1,695,543$           1,205,702$           1,696,651$           1,108$                   


HUMAN SERVICES
Dept 54910 - CEMETERY
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 20,000$                 19,000$                 20,000$                 14,250$                 20,000$                 -$                       
50300 MISC EXPENSES 16,000$                 14,323$                 16,000$                 16,822$                 16,000$                 -$                       
  Totals for dept 54910 - CEMETERY 36,000$                 33,323$                 36,000$                 31,072$                 36,000$                 -$                       


Total - Function HUMAN SERVICES 36,000$                 33,323$                 36,000$                 31,072$                 36,000$                 -$                       


RECREATION-SENIOR SERVICES
Dept 54600 - SENIOR CENTER
50110 SALARIES 74,970$                 75,517$                 76,488$                 52,268$                 78,868$                 2,380$                   
50120 WAGES 153,731$               177,256$               156,667$               113,334$               160,429$               3,762$                   
50121 WAGES - SENIOR CASE MGMT. 121,621$               97,666$                 124,278$               74,455$                 125,156$               878$                       







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 49,513$                 48,547$                 50,596$                 33,256$                 50,560$                 (36)$                       
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 93,764$                 94,521$                 104,832$               72,472$                 101,047$               (3,785)$                  
50202 FOUNDATION GRANT 16,000$                 11,419$                 19,000$                 14,718$                 15,000$                 (4,000)$                  
50204 KITCHEN FUND 13,000$                 14,537$                 15,000$                 13,789$                 15,000$                 -$                       
50210 TELEPHONE 700$                       1,156$                   1,100$                   811$                       2,000$                   900$                       
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 3,000$                   900$                       3,000$                   220$                       3,000$                   -$                       
50220 UTILITIES 21,000$                 18,650$                 21,000$                 12,485$                 21,000$                 -$                       
50240 BUILDING  MAINTENANCE 10,550$                 22,735$                 10,000$                 14,504$                 20,000$                 10,000$                 
50313 PROGRAMS/PUBLICITY 4,000$                   1,100$                   4,000$                   2,650$                   3,000$                   (1,000)$                  
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 3,000$                   1,393$                   3,000$                   2,322$                   2,500$                   (500)$                     
50325 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE 500$                       -$                       500$                       -$                       -$                       (500)$                     
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 10,000$                 6,712$                   11,000$                 6,029$                   10,500$                 (500)$                     
50342 OPERATING EXPENSES-SALES TAX -$                       3$                           -$                       12$                         -$                       -$                       
50350 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 400$                       -$                       400$                       2$                           400$                       -$                       
  Totals for dept 54600 - SENIOR CENTER 575,749$               572,112$               600,861$               413,327$               608,460$               7,599$                   


Dept 55100 - COMMUNITY COMMITMENT
50727 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE -$                       500$                       -$                       1,500$                   -$                       -$                       
50728 FIREWORKS 5,000$                   4,914$                   5,000$                   7,990$                   5,000$                   -$                       
50731 CITY BAND 500$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
  Totals for dept 55100 - COMMUNITY COMMITMENT 5,500$                   5,414$                   5,000$                   9,490$                   5,000$                   -$                       


Dept 55200 - PARKS
50110 SALARIES 5,272$                   6,624$                   5,380$                   4,617$                   6,474$                   1,094$                   
50120 WAGES 46,386$                 48,206$                 85,565$                 60,673$                 102,561$               16,996$                 
50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 83,876$                 48,368$                 74,074$                 38,698$                 82,546$                 8,472$                   
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 13,884$                 11,542$                 18,833$                 12,303$                 21,757$                 2,924$                   
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 18,362$                 12,603$                 29,804$                 20,374$                 36,178$                 6,374$                   
50245 UTILITIES 24,000$                 24,455$                 24,000$                 20,776$                 25,020$                 1,020$                   
50290 RENTING/LEASING EQMT - PARKS 4,000$                   4,000$                   4,000$                   3,723$                   4,000$                   -$                       
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 4,200$                   4,261$                   4,200$                   7,765$                   8,000$                   3,800$                   
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 35,500$                 34,865$                 36,000$                 25,232$                 41,000$                 5,000$                   
50350 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 9,000$                   6,457$                   8,000$                   4,476$                   8,000$                   -$                       
  Totals for dept 55200 - PARKS 244,480$               201,381$               289,856$               198,637$               335,536$               45,680$                 


Dept 55300 - RECREATION PROGRAMS & EVENTS
50110 SALARIES 60,605$                 61,365$                 61,496$                 42,746$                 63,436$                 1,940$                   
50120 WAGES 56,095$                 56,605$                 57,220$                 39,831$                 59,139$                 1,919$                   
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 12,000$                 8,616$                   12,195$                 8,071$                   12,024$                 (171)$                     
50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 60,279$                 3,560$                   59,430$                 30,986$                 49,272$                 (10,158)$                
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 22,531$                 17,602$                 22,594$                 15,872$                 22,060$                 (534)$                     
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 22,514$                 23,134$                 23,647$                 17,740$                 24,726$                 1,079$                   
50210 TELEPHONE 2,200$                   1,584$                   2,000$                   993$                       2,000$                   -$                       







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 2,424$                   415$                       2,424$                   380$                       2,424$                   -$                       
50213 SALES TAX 7,000$                   1,188$                   7,000$                   4,536$                   -$                       (7,000)$                  
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 35,540$                 15,507$                 38,281$                 20,336$                 28,210$                 (10,071)$                
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE-TROLL 8,000$                   167$                       8,000$                   4,898$                   8,000$                   -$                       
50300 MISC EXPENSES 2,500$                   2,563$                   2,500$                   3,443$                   5,200$                   2,700$                   
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 1,500$                   728$                       1,500$                   896$                       1,500$                   -$                       
50335 VEHICLE FUEL -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       1,500$                   1,500$                   
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 29,223$                 17,136$                 30,663$                 16,345$                 32,885$                 2,222$                   
50343 OPERATING EXPENSES-SCHOOL RENT 8,000$                   8,000$                   8,000$                   -$                       8,000$                   -$                       
50344 OPERATING EXPENSES-ACTIVE NET 8,000$                   2,711$                   8,000$                   6,305$                   8,000$                   -$                       
50345 AARON HUTCHINS SCHOLARSHIP FUND -$                       -$                       -$                       312$                       -$                       -$                       
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 4,000$                   -$                       4,000$                   13,989$                 -$                       (4,000)$                  
  Totals for dept 55300 - RECREATION PROGRAMS & EVENTS 342,411$               220,881$               348,950$               227,679$               328,376$               (20,574)$                


Dept 55400 - YOUTH CENTER
50110 SALARIES 10,699$                 10,496$                 11,280$                 7,495$                   11,636$                 356$                       
50120 WAGES 80,377$                 80,977$                 82,018$                 56,814$                 84,607$                 2,589$                   
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 19,400$                 6,165$                   19,400$                 1,929$                   17,000$                 (2,400)$                  
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 14,684$                 13,730$                 15,010$                 9,464$                   15,013$                 3$                           
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 22,234$                 22,336$                 22,874$                 17,151$                 23,953$                 1,079$                   
50220 UTILITIES 8,500$                   6,916$                   8,500$                   4,526$                   8,755$                   255$                       
50240 BUILDING  MAINTENANCE 4,000$                   3,316$                   4,000$                   1,889$                   4,000$                   -$                       
50316 RENT EXPENSE 4,000$                   3,832$                   4,000$                   -$                       4,000$                   -$                       
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES -$                       216$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
  Totals for dept 55400 - YOUTH CENTER 163,894$               147,984$               167,082$               99,268$                 168,964$               1,882$                   


Dept 55500 - IT/MEDIA SERVICES
50110 SALARIES 99,990$                 100,765$               102,037$               70,887$                 189,260$               87,223$                 
50120 WAGES 61,229$                 60,637$                 62,484$                 38,199$                 55,786$                 (6,698)$                  
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 17,391$                 9,452$                   17,500$                 5,288$                   14,000$                 (3,500)$                  
50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY -$                       -$                       -$                       143$                       -$                       -$                       
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 25,142$                 24,147$                 25,605$                 16,404$                 36,476$                 10,871$                 
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 44,348$                 38,316$                 37,983$                 16,819$                 47,250$                 9,267$                   
50190 TRAINING 2,500$                   156$                       2,000$                   -$                       2,000$                   -$                       
50210 TELEPHONE 44,480$                 33,555$                 44,480$                 33,299$                 44,480$                 -$                       
50211 POSTAGE 140$                       30$                         140$                       186$                       50$                         (90)$                       
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 2,750$                   35$                         1,950$                   -$                       1,000$                   (950)$                     
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS - WEBSITE 6,000$                   5,747$                   6,000$                   4,831$                   6,000$                   -$                       
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 42,000$                 40,719$                 60,570$                 53,438$                 60,570$                 -$                       
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 12,000$                 10,850$                 11,000$                 3,968$                   11,000$                 -$                       
50300 MISC EXPENSES 8,120$                   4,649$                   1,000$                   630$                       1,500$                   500$                       
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,860$                   546$                       3,000$                   1,573$                   2,000$                   (1,000)$                  
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 4,145$                   525$                       500$                       5,179$                   500$                       -$                       







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50330 VEHICLE EXPENSE 575$                       101$                       -$                       281$                       300$                       300$                       
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 3,000$                   1,470$                   3,000$                   304$                       2,500$                   (500)$                     
  Totals for dept 55500 - IT/MEDIA SERVICES 375,670$               331,700$               379,249$               251,429$               474,672$               95,423$                 


Total - Function RECREATION-SENIOR SERVICES 1,707,704$           1,479,472$           1,790,998$           1,199,830$           1,921,008$           130,010$               


TRANSFERS
Dept 59200 - CONTINGENCY
50930 CONTINGENCY 25,000$                 125,573$               100,000$               (7,486)$                  -$                       (100,000)$             


Dept 59300 - TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE
50930 DEBT SERVICE 3,344,613$           3,344,613$           3,284,186$           3,284,186$           3,565,553$           281,367$               


Dept 59400 - TRANSFER TO CAPITAL
50930 OPERA HOUSE 182,000$               182,000$               195,000$               195,000$               195,000$               -$                       
50931 CAPITAL 200,000$               200,000$               200,000$               200,000$               200,000$               -$                       
50944 EMS 25,000$                 25,000$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       


Dept 59500 - TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS
50930 SICK LEAVE 125,000$               125,000$               100,000$               100,000$               52,000$                 (48,000)$                
50932 PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING 43,000$                 53,598$                 42,000$                 19,251$                 41,960$                 (40)$                       
50932 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       220,000$               220,000$               
50934 FIRE PENSION 3,500$                   12,919$                 14,000$                 -$                       14,000$                 -$                       
50935 TIF -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
50936 LIBBRARY 623,000$               623,000$               632,350$               632,350$               646,350$               14,000$                 
50943 LANDMARKS 7,500$                   7,500$                   15,000$                 15,000$                 10,000$                 (5,000)$                  
50931 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT -$                       15,256$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
50932 RDA 5,000$                   79,619$                 8,000$                   8,000$                   11,000$                 3,000$                   


Total - Function TRANSFERS 4,583,613$           4,794,078$           4,590,536$           4,446,301$           4,955,863$           365,327$               


     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13,927,314$         13,683,318$         14,119,684$         11,044,911$         14,814,029$         694,345$               







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)


FUND 204 - TID #4 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES 180,000$                180,369$                175,000$                174,190$                171,577$                (3,423)$                   
43430 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 1,775$                    1,775$                    1,775$                    1,775$                    1,775$                    -$                        
43431 PERSONAL PROPERTY AID 5,200$                    5,207$                    5,200$                    9,555$                    5,000$                    (200)$                      
43810 GRANTS- FROM UTILITY -$                        4,662$                    -$                        4,148$                    -$                        -$                        
48110 INTEREST 5,000$                    5,459$                    750$                        95$                          -$                        (750)$                      
48310 LAND SALES -$                        39,000$                  -$                        60,212$                  -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 191,975$                236,472$                182,725$                249,975$                178,352$                (4,373)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 950,000$                861,956$                -$                        (10,586)$                -$                        -$                        
50823 TIF OTHER PROJECTS 25,000$                  42,355$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50824 REVOLVING LOAN FUND 150,000$                135,000$                100,000$                15,000$                  -$                        (100,000)$              
50850 ADMINISTRATION 5,500$                    11,884$                  5,500$                    15,507$                  10,000$                  4,500$                    
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        168,352$                168,352$                
50931 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 101,625$                101,625$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,232,125$            1,152,820$            105,500$                19,921$                  178,352$                72,852$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 204 (1,040,150)$           (916,348)$              77,225$                  230,054$                (77,225)$                
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 204 1,118,748$            1,118,748$            202,400$                202,400$                279,625$                77,225$                  
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 204 78,598$                  202,400$                279,625$                432,454$                279,625$                -$                        


FUND 205 - TID #5 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES 49,000$                  50,678$                  50,000$                  49,621$                  70,099$                  20,099$                  
43430 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 39,592$                  39,592$                  39,500$                  39,592$                  39,592$                  92$                          
48110 INTEREST 500$                        229$                        250$                        2$                            -$                        (250)$                      
49224 TRANSFER IN - TIF #4 -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        153,850$                153,850$                
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 89,092$                  90,499$                  89,750$                  89,215$                  263,541$                173,791$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 500$                        -$                        2,000$                    -$                        -$                        (2,000)$                   
50850 ADMINISTRATION 4,000$                    950$                        2,000$                    975$                        5,000$                    3,000$                    
50931 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 102,521$                102,521$                112,938$                112,938$                153,850$                40,912$                  
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 107,021$                103,471$                116,938$                113,913$                158,850$                41,912$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 205 (17,929)$                (12,972)$                (27,188)$                (24,698)$                104,691$                131,879$                


ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 205 (677,594)$              (677,594)$              (690,566)$              (690,566)$              (717,754)$              (27,188)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 205 (695,523)$              (690,566)$              (717,754)$              (715,264)$              (613,063)$              104,691$                


FUND 206 - TID #6 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES 25,000$                  24,831$                  25,000$                  24,306$                  69,598$                  44,598$                  
41111 PROPERTY TAXES - LEVY -$                        -$                        125,000$                125,000$                -$                        (125,000)$              
42190 TAX INCREMENT GUARANTEE -$                        51,694$                  -$                        49,783$                  -$                        -$                        
48110 INTEREST 2,000$                    8,487$                    250$                        128$                        -$                        (250)$                      
48310 LAND SALES -$                        173,230$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 27,000$                  258,242$                150,250$                199,217$                69,598$                  (80,652)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50840 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE -$                        742,572$                -$                        (35,831)$                -$                        -$                        
50850 ADMINISTRATION 4,000$                    5,790$                    5,000$                    5,373$                    5,000$                    -$                        
50930 TRANSFER TO DEBT FUND 70,138$                  70,138$                  133,731$                133,731$                419,613$                285,882$                
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 74,138$                  818,500$                138,731$                103,273$                424,613$                285,882$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 206 (47,138)$                (560,258)$              11,519$                  95,944$                  (355,015)$              (366,534)$              
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 206 1,066,510$            1,066,510$            506,252$                506,252$                517,771$                11,519$                  
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 206 1,019,372$            506,252$                517,771$                602,196$                162,756$                (355,015)$              


FUND 207 - TID #7 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES 535,000$                546,395$                770,000$                762,486$                870,000$                100,000$                
42190 TAX INCREMENT GUARANTEE 33,000$                  32,914$                  33,000$                  31,684$                  31,000$                  (2,000)$                   
43431 PERSONAL PROPERTY AID -$                        -$                        -$                        (1,959)$                   -$                        -$                        
48110 INTEREST 4,000$                    2,405$                    2,800$                    85$                          100$                        (2,700)$                   
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 572,000$                581,714$                805,800$                792,296$                901,100$                95,300$                  







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES -$                        9,500$                    5,000$                    3,078$                    5,000$                    -$                        
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE -$                        -$                        200,000$                550,000$                402,059$                202,059$                
50850 ADMINISTRATION 5,000$                    950$                        5,000$                    975$                        5,000$                    -$                        
50930 TRANSFER TO DEBT FUND 333,975$                333,975$                334,725$                334,725$                334,275$                (450)$                      
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 338,975$                344,425$                544,725$                888,778$                746,334$                201,609$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 207 233,025$                237,289$                261,075$                (96,482)$                154,766$                (106,309)$              
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 207 438,406$                438,406$                675,695$                675,695$                936,770$                261,075$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 207 671,431$                675,695$                936,770$                579,213$                1,091,536$            154,766$                


FUND 208 - TID #8 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES -$                        -$                        5,500$                    5,596$                    7,318$                    1,818$                    
41111 PROPERTY TAXES - LEVY -$                        -$                        24,741$                  24,741$                  -$                        (24,741)$                
43690 OTHER STATE GRANTS 200,000$                95,500$                  700,000$                -$                        987,469$                287,469$                
48110 INTEREST -$                        289$                        -$                        5$                            -$                        -$                        
48310 LAND SALES -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        400,000$                400,000$                
49120 NOTE PROCEEDS -$                        -$                        260,000$                -$                        613,231$                353,231$                
49224 TRANSFER IN - TIF #4 -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        14,502$                  14,502$                  
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 200,000$                95,789$                  990,241$                30,342$                  2,022,520$            1,032,279$            


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 62,500$                  16,695$                  25,000$                  11,644$                  25,000$                  -$                        
50630 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES 5,500$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        13,231$                  13,231$                  
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 139,365$                97,975$                  930,000$                72,769$                  -$                        (930,000)$              
50821 TIF BUILDING PROJECTS 5,331$                    7,269$                    -$                        -$                        720,096$                720,096$                
50840 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE -$                        -$                        -$                        1,524$                    -$                        -$                        
50850 ADMINISTRATION 7,000$                    2,700$                    5,000$                    3,430$                    5,000$                    -$                        
50931 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 17,288$                  17,288$                  24,741$                  24,741$                  111,757$                87,016$                  
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 236,984$                141,927$                984,741$                114,108$                875,084$                (109,657)$              


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 208 (36,984)$                (46,138)$                5,500$                    (83,766)$                1,147,436$            1,141,936$            
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 208 (16,681)$                (16,681)$                (62,819)$                (62,819)$                (57,319)$                5,500$                    
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 208 (53,665)$                (62,819)$                (57,319)$                (146,585)$              1,090,117$            1,147,436$            


FUND 212 - SAFETY BUILDING FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 43,000$                  53,598$                  42,000$                  19,251$                  41,960$                  (40)$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 62,000$                  53,907$                  43,000$                  42,500$                  42,000$                  (1,000)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50220 UTILITIES 32,000$                  28,252$                  32,000$                  19,952$                  32,960$                  960$                        
50340 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 11,000$                  7,997$                    9,000$                    7,521$                    9,000$                    -$                        
50350 MAINTENANCE - CUSTODIAL 17,349$                  1,000$                    -$                        -$                        (1,000)$                   
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 43,000$                  53,598$                  42,000$                  27,473$                  41,960$                  (40)$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 212 -$                        -$                        -$                        (8,222)$                   -$                        -$                        
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 212 -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 212 -$                        -$                        -$                        (8,222)$                   -$                        -$                        


FUND 215 - LIBRARY FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43529 FEDERAL ASSISTANCE FUNDING - COVID -$                        3,783$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
43720 DANE COUNTY SERVICE FEES 229,696$                230,780$                249,249$                249,583$                249,429$                180$                        
43725 OTHER COUNTIES SERVICE FEES 10,090$                  10,088$                  15,848$                  15,848$                  15,952$                  104$                        
46110 MISC. REVENUE -$                        -$                        -$                        2,432$                    -$                        -$                        
46710 FINES 21,000$                  6,131$                    7,000$                    2,388$                    6,000$                    (1,000)$                   
46712 COPY MACHINE 4,700$                    1,026$                    3,700$                    709$                        3,700$                    -$                        
48110 INTEREST -$                        106$                        100$                        11$                          -$                        (100)$                      
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 623,000$                623,000$                632,350$                632,350$                646,350$                14,000$                  
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 888,486$                874,914$                908,247$                903,321$                921,431$                13,184$                  


APPROPRIATIONS
50110 SALARIES 78,563$                  79,170$                  80,133$                  57,591$                  86,916$                  6,783$                    
50120 WAGES 396,057$                375,196$                398,651$                253,198$                413,759$                15,108$                  
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 70,006$                  64,665$                  70,700$                  40,073$                  75,821$                  5,121$                    
50128 SUNDAY HOURS 8,500$                    2,818$                    8,500$                    -$                        8,500$                    -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 71,359$                  67,697$                  72,684$                  45,349$                  75,001$                  2,317$                    
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 84,183$                  92,829$                  94,783$                  72,738$                  104,973$                10,190$                  
50211 POSTAGE 500$                        318$                        500$                        258$                        500$                        -$                        
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,600$                    507$                        1,600$                    1,025$                    1,600$                    -$                        
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 500$                        292$                        500$                        449$                        200$                        (300)$                      
50217 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 300$                        180$                        300$                        -$                        300$                        -$                        
50220 UTILITIES 19,000$                  15,016$                  19,600$                  12,254$                  19,600$                  -$                        
50221 UTILITIES-BUILDING 2 5,500$                    3,738$                    5,500$                    2,641$                    5,500$                    -$                        
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,900$                    2,358$                    1,900$                    1,258$                    1,900$                    -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
50250 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 9,000$                    7,507$                    9,000$                    8,560$                    9,000$                    -$                        
50289 TECHNOLOGY COSTS 49,550$                  49,381$                  50,500$                  51,058$                  53,600$                  3,100$                    
50300 MISC EXPENSES 500$                        116$                        500$                        380$                        500$                        -$                        
50313 PROGRAMS/PUBLICITY 4,000$                    3,940$                    4,000$                    3,679$                    4,500$                    500$                        
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 600$                        813$                        600$                        388$                        600$                        -$                        
50326 PERIODICALS 5,400$                    4,312$                    4,800$                    4,983$                    5,200$                    400$                        
50327 E-RESOURCES 8,500$                    8,270$                    9,000$                    9,145$                    9,700$                    700$                        
50328 AUDIO VISUAL 11,300$                  10,294$                  15,000$                  7,089$                    11,000$                  (4,000)$                   
50329 BOOKS 45,700$                  45,727$                  50,000$                  38,372$                  50,000$                  -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 4,500$                    7,471$                    4,500$                    4,909$                    4,500$                    -$                        
50341 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-1 200$                        149$                        200$                        103$                        200$                        -$                        
50342 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2 4,800$                    4,128$                    4,800$                    3,063$                    4,800$                    -$                        
50810 CAPITAL-EQUIPMENT 1,000$                    962$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 6,000$                    5,727$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 889,018$                853,581$                908,251$                618,563$                948,170$                39,919$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 215 (532)$                      21,333$                  (4)$                           284,758$                (26,739)$                (26,735)$                
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 215 14,615$                  14,615$                  35,948$                  35,948$                  35,944$                  (4)$                           
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 215 14,083$                  35,948$                  35,944$                  320,706$                9,205$                    (26,739)$                


FUND 217 - LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 5,000$                    1,125$                    250$                        49$                          50$                          (200)$                      
48500 DONATIONS - DESIGNATED 70,000$                  28,981$                  65,000$                  60,112$                  60,000$                  (5,000)$                   
48530 DONATIONS -FUNDRAISING ACCOUNT 7,000$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 82,000$                  30,106$                  65,250$                  60,161$                  60,050$                  (5,200)$                   







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
APPROPRIATIONS
50500 DESIGNATED 100,000$                26,530$                  55,000$                  23,003$                  50,000$                  (5,000)$                   
50501 UNDESIGNATED -$                        50$                          -$                        50$                          -$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 100,000$                26,580$                  55,000$                  23,053$                  50,000$                  (5,000)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 217 (18,000)$                3,526$                    10,250$                  37,108$                  10,050$                  (200)$                      
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 217 240,476$                240,476$                244,002$                244,002$                254,252$                10,250$                  
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 217 222,476$                244,002$                254,252$                281,110$                264,302$                10,050$                  


FUND 221 - FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        72$                          -$                        3$                            -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        72$                          -$                        3$                            -$                        -$                        


APPROPRIATIONS
50810 CAPITAL-EQUIPMENT -$                        4,246$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        4,246$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 221 -$                        (4,174)$                   -$                        3$                            -$                        -$                        
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 221 20,784$                  20,784$                  16,610$                  16,610$                  16,610$                  -$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 221 20,784$                  16,610$                  16,610$                  16,613$                  16,610$                  -$                        


FUND 223 - PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
42180 IMPACT FEE - LAND -$                        25,278$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
42190 IMPACT FEE - IMPROVEMENTS 18,543$                  11,870$                  10,000$                  27,718$                  35,000$                  25,000$                  
43791 OTHER COUNTY GRANTS 72,700$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
46719 911 ANTENNA BLDG -$                        4,862$                    5,000$                    5,173$                    5,000$                    -$                        
48110 INTEREST 4,000$                    1,867$                    200$                        100$                        100$                        (100)$                      
48550 DONATIONS -$                        1,500$                    -$                        3,600$                    -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 95,243$                  45,377$                  15,200$                  36,591$                  40,100$                  24,900$                  


APPROPRIATIONS
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES -$                        4,500$                    -$                        9,360$                    -$                        -$                        
50246 911 ANTENNA BUILDING -$                        10,872$                  -$                        1,433$                    -$                        -$                        
50300 MISC EXPENSES -$                        2,241$                    1,500$                    3,043$                    81,500$                  80,000$                  
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 72,700$                  -$                        90,000$                  -$                        -$                        (90,000)$                
50941 TRANSFER FROM IMPROVEMENTS 18,543$                  -$                        18,543$                  -$                        -$                        (18,543)$                







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
50942 TRANSFER FROM DONATIONS 21,886$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 113,129$                17,613$                  110,043$                13,836$                  81,500$                  (28,543)$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 223 (17,886)$                27,764$                  (94,843)$                22,755$                  (41,400)$                53,443$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 223 458,090$                458,090$                485,854$                485,854$                391,011$                (94,843)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 223 440,204$                485,854$                391,011$                508,609$                349,611$                (41,400)$                


FUND 224 - STORM SEWER FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43691 STATE GRANTS 54,464$                  260,640$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
46300 STORMWATER USER FEES 686,353$                685,905$                730,158$                433,768$                782,179$                52,021$                  
46325 STORMWATER REVIEW FEES 30,000$                  49,815$                  30,000$                  22,509$                  30,000$                  -$                        
46435 YARD WASTE SITE FEES 7,000$                    7,000$                    7,000$                    -$                        7,000$                    -$                        
48110 INTEREST 5,000$                    1,426$                    500$                        18$                          -$                        (500)$                      
49100 PREMIUM ON DEBT ISSUE -$                        3,492$                    -$                        826$                        -$                        -$                        
49120 NOTE PROCEEDS 363,000$                -$                        150,000$                -$                        519,200$                369,200$                
49202 CONTRIBUTIONS FROM CITY (TIF) -$                        158,017$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 1,145,817$            1,166,295$            917,658$                457,121$                1,338,379$            420,721$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50110 SALARIES 33,218$                  30,065$                  33,897$                  23,024$                  33,773$                  (124)$                      
50120 WAGES 105,134$                96,016$                  109,210$                64,594$                  120,978$                11,768$                  
50126 OVERTIME -$                        -$                        -$                        162$                        -$                        -$                        
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 10,571$                  200$                        12,235$                  -$                        15,653$                  3,418$                    
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 20,971$                  18,525$                  21,827$                  12,657$                  23,333$                  1,506$                    
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 38,659$                  30,226$                  40,923$                  25,607$                  44,678$                  3,755$                    
50210 TELEPHONE 600$                        418$                        600$                        342$                        600$                        -$                        
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 800$                        386$                        1,000$                    523$                        1,000$                    -$                        
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 30,000$                  22,868$                  30,000$                  27,597$                  30,000$                  -$                        
50217 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 45,200$                  44,511$                  45,200$                  24,512$                  45,200$                  -$                        
50220 UTILITIES 1,500$                    1,007$                    1,500$                    414$                        1,500$                    -$                        
50300 MISC EXPENSES 18,000$                  12,618$                  18,000$                  12,087$                  16,000$                  (2,000)$                   
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500$                        493$                        500$                        131$                        500$                        -$                        
50314 PERMITS/FEES 2,000$                    2,000$                    2,000$                    2,000$                    2,000$                    -$                        
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 500$                        111$                        500$                        172$                        500$                        -$                        
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 15,000$                  11,237$                  15,000$                  10,743$                  15,000$                  -$                        
50336 EQUIP MAINTENANCE- STORMWATER 18,000$                  17,288$                  18,000$                  14,111$                  18,000$                  -$                        
50338 POND MAINTENANCE- STORMWATER 20,000$                  6,061$                    18,000$                  6,590$                    16,000$                  (2,000)$                   
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 22,000$                  12,371$                  22,000$                  14,495$                  22,000$                  -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
50341 YARDWASTE SITE - MISC EXPENSE 2,500$                    974$                        2,500$                    1,930$                    2,500$                    -$                        
50390 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 1,500$                    2,374$                    1,500$                    938$                        1,800$                    300$                        
50515 PROPERTY INSURANCE -$                        2,000$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50599 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 180,000$                208,233$                158,397$                -$                        231,890$                73,493$                  
50620 INTEREST -$                        36,257$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50630 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES 9,000$                    11,505$                  5,000$                    4,058$                    11,200$                  6,200$                    
50820 STREET CONSTRUCTION 526,955$                28,213$                  159,500$                25,965$                  508,000$                348,500$                
50840 STREET ENGINEERING 30,154$                  31,180$                  13,250$                  3,617$                    -$                        (13,250)$                
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 21,300$                  -$                        35,000$                  -$                        35,000$                  -$                        
50931 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 254,222$                -$                        263,749$                263,749$                298,164$                34,415$                  
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,408,284$            627,137$                1,029,288$            540,018$                1,495,269$            465,981$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 224 (262,467)$              539,158$                (111,630)$              (82,897)$                (156,890)$              (45,260)$                


FUND 225 - CEMETERY FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48109 INTEREST 300$                        38$                          -$                        -$                        30$                          30$                          
48110 INTEREST - BAILEY SISTER ACCOUNT 400$                        108$                        -$                        5$                            100$                        100$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 700$                        146$                        -$                        5$                            130$                        130$                        


APPROPRIATIONS
50250 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE -$                        3,847$                    -$                        259$                        2,500$                    2,500$                    
50300 BAILEY SISTER EXPENSES 200$                        242$                        200$                        195$                        200$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 200$                        4,089$                    200$                        454$                        2,700$                    2,500$                    


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 225 500$                        (3,943)$                   (200)$                      (449)$                      (2,570)$                   (2,370)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 225 28,243$                  28,243$                  24,300$                  24,300$                  24,100$                  (200)$                      
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 225 28,743$                  24,300$                  24,100$                  23,851$                  21,530$                  (2,570)$                   


FUND 227 - EMS TRUCK FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 800$                        386$                        185$                        17$                          20$                          (165)$                      
48500 DONATIONS -$                        -$                        -$                        12,268$                  -$                        -$                        
49203 TRANSFER IN - EMS -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        50,000$                  50,000$                  
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 800$                        386$                        185$                        12,285$                  50,020$                  49,835$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 227 800$                        386$                        185$                        11,890$                  50,020$                  49,835$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 227 74,588$                  74,588$                  74,974$                  74,974$                  75,159$                  185$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 227 75,388$                  74,974$                  75,159$                  86,864$                  125,179$                50,020$                  


FUND 228 - EMS EQUIPMENT FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43529 FAP EQUIPMENT 4,150$                    4,531$                    4,000$                    -$                        -$                        (4,000)$                   
48110 INTEREST 800$                        345$                        315$                        25$                          25$                          (290)$                      
48500 DONATIONS -$                        -$                        90,000$                  -$                        -$                        (90,000)$                
49203 TRANSFER IN - EMS 40,000$                  40,000$                  100,000$                100,000$                70,000$                  (30,000)$                
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 44,950$                  44,876$                  194,315$                100,025$                70,025$                  (124,290)$              


APPROPRIATIONS
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 47,000$                  12,619$                  210,000$                50,669$                  -$                        (210,000)$              
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 20,000$                  6,101$                    47,000$                  11,419$                  210,000$                163,000$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 228 (2,050)$                   32,257$                  (15,685)$                49,356$                  70,025$                  85,710$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 228 104,793$                104,793$                137,050$                137,050$                121,365$                (15,685)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 228 102,743$                137,050$                121,365$                186,406$                191,390$                70,025$                  


FUND 229 - SENIOR CENTER WOOD SHOP


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 50$                          16$                          25$                          -$                        -$                        (25)$                        
48550 DONATIONS 2,500$                    2,090$                    2,500$                    2,170$                    2,500$                    -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 2,550$                    2,106$                    2,525$                    2,170$                    2,500$                    (25)$                        


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 1,900$                    85$                          2,500$                    538$                        1,000$                    (1,500)$                   
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,900$                    85$                          2,500$                    538$                        1,000$                    (1,500)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 229 650$                        2,021$                    25$                          1,632$                    1,500$                    1,475$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 229 6,667$                    6,667$                    8,688$                    8,688$                    8,713$                    25$                          
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 229 7,317$                    8,688$                    8,713$                    10,320$                  10,213$                  1,500$                    


FUND 230 - TOWNSHIP OUTREACH FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43791 OTHER COUNTY GRANTS 5,500$                    7,237$                    8,000$                    3,618$                    7,200$                    (800)$                      
48110 INTEREST 80$                          24$                          25$                          1$                            -$                        (25)$                        
48500 DONATIONS 500$                        2,500$                    2,500$                    500$                        2,000$                    (500)$                      
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 6,080$                    9,761$                    10,525$                  4,119$                    9,200$                    (1,325)$                   







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION


APPROPRIATIONS
50120 WAGES 7,200$                    7,305$                    7,442$                    5,179$                    7,670$                    228$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 550$                        559$                        566$                        396$                        583$                        17$                          
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE -$                        58$                          500$                        -$                        500$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 7,750$                    7,922$                    8,508$                    5,575$                    8,753$                    245$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 230 (1,670)$                   1,839$                    2,017$                    (1,456)$                   447$                        (1,570)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 230 10,587$                  10,587$                  12,426$                  12,426$                  14,443$                  2,017$                    
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 230 8,917$                    12,426$                  14,443$                  10,970$                  14,890$                  447$                        


FUND 231 - SENIORS IN NEED


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 1,000$                    199$                        50$                          7$                            5$                            (45)$                        
48561 DONATIONS - SENIORS IN NEED 20,000$                  12,360$                  25,000$                  18,436$                  22,000$                  (3,000)$                   
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 21,000$                  12,559$                  25,050$                  18,443$                  22,005$                  (3,045)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 25,000$                  18,565$                  25,000$                  8,803$                    20,000$                  (5,000)$                   
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 25,000$                  18,565$                  25,000$                  8,803$                    20,000$                  (5,000)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 231 (4,000)$                   (6,006)$                   50$                          9,640$                    2,005$                    1,955$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 231 57,891$                  57,891$                  51,885$                  51,885$                  51,935$                  50$                          
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 231 53,891$                  51,885$                  51,935$                  61,525$                  53,940$                  2,005$                    


FUND 232 - SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 7,000$                    11,837$                  500$                        460$                        500$                        -$                        
48502 SPECIAL GIFT FUND: SENIOR CENT 10,000$                  5,645$                    10,000$                  1,835$                    8,500$                    (1,500)$                   
48508 FRIENDSHIP DONATIONS 500$                        -$                        500$                        -$                        500$                        -$                        
48513 DONATIONS - LOAN CLOSET 1,000$                    470$                        1,000$                    759$                        1,000$                    -$                        
48516 DONATIONS - ANNEX RENOVATIONS -$                        20,000$                  -$                        25,102$                  -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 18,500$                  37,952$                  12,000$                  28,156$                  10,500$                  (1,500)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 10,000$                  2,106$                    10,000$                  3,910$                    6,000$                    (4,000)$                   
50830 BUILDINGS/REMODEL - ANNEX RENOVATIONS -$                        -$                        -$                        2,581$                    -$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 10,000$                  2,106$                    10,000$                  6,491$                    6,000$                    (4,000)$                   







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 232 8,500$                    35,846$                  2,000$                    21,665$                  4,500$                    2,500$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 232 477,042$                477,042$                512,888$                512,888$                514,888$                2,000$                    
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 232 485,542$                512,888$                514,888$                534,553$                519,388$                4,500$                    


FUND 234 - FOOD PANTRY


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 1,500$                    602$                        500$                        51$                          50$                          (450)$                      
48550 DONATIONS 90,000$                  177,275$                75,000$                  80,721$                  95,000$                  20,000$                  
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 91,500$                  177,877$                75,500$                  80,772$                  95,050$                  19,550$                  


APPROPRIATIONS
50724 FOOD PANTRY EXPENSES 85,000$                  53,583$                  75,000$                  32,200$                  75,000$                  -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 85,000$                  53,583$                  75,000$                  32,200$                  75,000$                  -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 234 6,500$                    124,294$                500$                        48,572$                  20,050$                  19,550$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 234 172,114$                172,114$                296,408$                296,408$                296,908$                500$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 234 178,614$                296,408$                296,908$                344,980$                316,958$                20,050$                  







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION


FUND 235 - LANDMARKS


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 50$                          8$                            15$                          -$                        -$                        (15)$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 7,500$                    7,500$                    15,000$                  15,000$                  10,000$                  (5,000)$                   
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 7,550$                    7,508$                    15,015$                  15,000$                  10,000$                  (5,015)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50719 LANDMARKS MINI GRANT EXPENSES 10,000$                  7,549$                    9,000$                    -$                        10,000$                  1,000$                    
50721 LANDMARK COMMISSION 1,000$                    261$                        1,000$                    423$                        -$                        (1,000)$                   
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 11,000$                  7,810$                    10,000$                  423$                        10,000$                  -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 235 (3,450)$                   (302)$                      5,015$                    14,577$                  -$                        (5,015)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 235 (1,834)$                   (1,834)$                   (2,136)$                   (2,136)$                   2,879$                    5,015$                    
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 235 (5,284)$                   (2,136)$                   2,879$                    12,441$                  2,879$                    -$                        


FUND 236 - TREE COMMISSION


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 20$                          11$                          -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
48550 DONATIONS 800$                        741$                        1,000$                    550$                        1,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 820$                        752$                        1,000$                    550$                        1,000$                    -$                        


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 1,000$                    235$                        1,500$                    2,841$                    1,500$                    -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,000$                    235$                        1,500$                    2,841$                    1,500$                    -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 236 (180)$                      517$                        (500)$                      (2,291)$                   (500)$                      -$                        
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 236 4,466$                    4,466$                    4,983$                    4,983$                    4,483$                    (500)$                      
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 236 4,286$                    4,983$                    4,483$                    2,692$                    3,983$                    (500)$                      


FUND 239 - STOUGHTON ARTS COUNCIL


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 30$                          7$                            -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
48550 DONATIONS -$                        500$                        3,500$                    4,925$                    3,500$                    -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 30$                          507$                        3,500$                    4,925$                    3,500$                    -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES -$                        216$                        3,500$                    1,234$                    1,500$                    (2,000)$                   
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        216$                        3,500$                    1,234$                    1,500$                    (2,000)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 239 30$                          291$                        -$                        3,691$                    2,000$                    2,000$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 239 3,251$                    3,251$                    3,542$                    3,542$                    3,542$                    -$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 239 3,281$                    3,542$                    3,542$                    7,233$                    5,542$                    2,000$                    


FUND 241 - EMS TRUST FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 150$                        43$                          45$                          2$                            -$                        (45)$                        
48500 DONATIONS-SHILLELAGH 6,500$                    4,412$                    10,000$                  62,687$                  5,000$                    (5,000)$                   
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 6,650$                    4,455$                    10,045$                  62,689$                  5,000$                    (5,045)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50120 WAGES 2,750$                    1,356$                    3,000$                    875$                        2,000$                    (1,000)$                   
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 210$                        104$                        230$                        67$                          152$                        (78)$                        
50252 EMS TRUST FUND DISBURSEMENTS 6,500$                    2,556$                    5,000$                    61,624$                  3,500$                    (1,500)$                   
50701 CPR TRAINING 10$                          1$                            -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 9,470$                    4,017$                    8,230$                    62,566$                  5,652$                    (2,578)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 241 (2,820)$                   438$                        1,815$                    123$                        (652)$                      (2,467)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 241 17,821$                  17,821$                  18,259$                  18,259$                  20,074$                  1,815$                    
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 241 15,001$                  18,259$                  20,074$                  18,382$                  19,422$                  (652)$                      


FUND 242 - FIRE DEPT SPECIAL FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
46110 MISC. REVENUE 4,000$                    2,515$                    4,000$                    5,165$                    4,000$                    -$                        
48110 INTEREST 600$                        178$                        250$                        6$                            5$                            (245)$                      
48521 SPECIAL EVENTS 28,100$                  75$                          18,000$                  -$                        18,000$                  -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 32,700$                  2,768$                    22,250$                  5,171$                    22,005$                  (245)$                      


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 MISC OPERATING EXPENSES 4,850$                    622$                        3,000$                    2,299$                    3,000$                    -$                        
50341 SUNSHINE 200$                        123$                        200$                        -$                        200$                        -$                        
50342 DANCE 9,000$                    -$                        6,500$                    -$                        6,500$                    -$                        
50343 HOLIDAY 900$                        -$                        1,200$                    -$                        1,200$                    -$                        
50346 MEETING 1,500$                    428$                        1,500$                    65$                          1,500$                    -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
50347 SCHOLARSHIP -$                        -$                        -$                        1,000$                    500$                        500$                        
50349 EQUIPMENT 25,000$                  25,407$                  7,500$                    5,381$                    7,500$                    -$                        
50366 ROTARY PARK LIGHTS 4,500$                    -$                        3,500$                    23$                          1,000$                    (2,500)$                   
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 45,950$                  26,580$                  23,400$                  8,768$                    21,400$                  (2,000)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 242 (13,250)$                (23,812)$                (1,150)$                   (3,597)$                   605$                        1,755$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 242 63,407$                  63,407$                  39,595$                  39,595$                  38,445$                  (1,150)$                   
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 242 50,157$                  39,595$                  38,445$                  35,998$                  39,050$                  605$                        


FUND 243 - FIRE PENSION FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 13,000$                  5,356$                    1,800$                    176$                        200$                        (1,600)$                   
48114 DIVIDENDS 3,000$                    1,179$                    300$                        (1,179)$                   300$                        -$                        
48900 PENSION CONTRIBUTION -$                        574$                        600$                        -$                        600$                        -$                        
48930 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 3,500$                    12,919$                  14,000$                  -$                        14,000$                  -$                        
48950 GAINS & (LOSSES) -$                        9,051$                    -$                        9,459$                    -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 19,500$                  29,079$                  16,700$                  8,456$                    15,100$                  (1,600)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 243 19,500$                  29,079$                  16,700$                  8,456$                    15,100$                  (1,600)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 243 848,191$                848,191$                877,270$                877,270$                893,970$                16,700$                  
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 243 867,691$                877,270$                893,970$                885,726$                909,070$                15,100$                  


FUND 245 - OPERA HOUSE FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43529 FEDERAL ASSISTANCE FUNDING - COVID -$                        136,555$                -$                        324,618$                -$                        -$                        
46742 TICKET SALES 627,787$                94,425$                  749,810$                393,084$                782,243$                32,433$                  
46745 REVENUE-FEES 77,712$                  10,070$                  68,964$                  22,924$                  70,000$                  1,036$                    
46910 OTHER TAXABLE SALES -$                        140$                        8,000$                    -$                        -$                        (8,000)$                   
46920 MEMBERSHIPS 120,000$                88,071$                  85,000$                  112,247$                100,000$                15,000$                  
46930 ANNUAL PUBLICATION 16,000$                  10,643$                  12,500$                  8,243$                    15,000$                  2,500$                    
46990 TAX EXEMPT SALES 1,000$                    1,018$                    1,000$                    927$                        10,000$                  9,000$                    
48110 INTEREST -$                        15$                          -$                        8$                            -$                        -$                        
48500 DONATIONS 5,000$                    7,182$                    5,000$                    15,603$                  5,000$                    -$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 182,000$                182,000$                195,000$                195,000$                195,000$                -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 1,029,499$            530,119$                1,125,274$            1,072,654$            1,177,243$            51,969$                  


APPROPRIATIONS
50110 SALARIES 80,487$                  81,091$                  82,128$                  56,583$                  84,706$                  2,578$                    







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
50120 WAGES 98,209$                  71,242$                  100,332$                53,601$                  103,135$                2,803$                    
50127 WAGES - PART TIME -$                        -$                        10,000$                  -$                        10,000$                  -$                        
50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 10,000$                  7,474$                    -$                        7,680$                    -$                        -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 26,762$                  22,372$                  27,157$                  16,534$                  27,551$                  394$                        
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 51,327$                  40,147$                  45,126$                  25,660$                  39,462$                  (5,664)$                   
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 47,712$                  17,637$                  47,760$                  47,510$                  45,000$                  (2,760)$                   
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 5,000$                    68,177$                  5,000$                    58,232$                  5,000$                    -$                        
50300 SALES TAX -$                        8$                            -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 110,000$                60,149$                  80,000$                  86,758$                  90,000$                  10,000$                  
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 2,900$                    635$                        2,500$                    787$                        2,500$                    -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 25,000$                  18,521$                  25,000$                  38,406$                  25,000$                  -$                        
50342 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2 -$                        -$                        -$                        76$                          -$                        -$                        
50343 OPERATING EXPENSES-ADVERTISING 17,000$                  6,484$                    15,000$                  4,427$                    17,000$                  2,000$                    
50344 OPERATING EXPENSES-GUARANTEES 456,500$                70,792$                  579,500$                140,880$                585,250$                5,750$                    
50345 OPERATING EXPENSES-HOSPITALITY 43,700$                  10,056$                  52,600$                  5,847$                    52,175$                  (425)$                      
50346 OPERATING EXPENSES-MISC EVENT EXPENSES 5,000$                    755$                        5,000$                    1,184$                    5,000$                    -$                        
50347 OPERATING EXPENSES-CONTRACT LABOR/RENTAL 30,000$                  4,675$                    35,000$                  23,810$                  100,050$                65,050$                  
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,009,597$            480,215$                1,112,103$            567,975$                1,191,829$            79,726$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 245 19,902$                  49,904$                  13,171$                  504,679$                (14,586)$                (27,757)$                
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 245 (278,424)$              (278,424)$              (228,520)$              (228,520)$              (215,349)$              13,171$                  
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 245 (258,522)$              (228,520)$              (215,349)$              276,159$                (229,935)$              (14,586)$                


FUND 246 - OPERA HOUSE REPAIR FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 100$                        33$                          20$                          1$                            -$                        (20)$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 100$                        33$                          20$                          1$                            -$                        (20)$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 246 100$                        33$                          20$                          1$                            -$                        (20)$                        
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 246 6,745$                    6,745$                    6,778$                    6,778$                    6,798$                    20$                          
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 246 6,845$                    6,778$                    6,798$                    6,779$                    6,798$                    -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION


FUND 247 - TOURISM FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41210 ROOM TAXES 81,000$                  37,704$                  72,000$                  39,401$                  80,000$                  8,000$                    
48110 INTEREST 200$                        64$                          100$                        1$                            -$                        (100)$                      
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 81,200$                  37,768$                  72,100$                  39,402$                  80,000$                  7,900$                    


APPROPRIATIONS
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 73,080$                  33,934$                  64,800$                  35,461$                  72,000$                  7,200$                    
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 8,120$                    3,770$                    7,200$                    3,940$                    8,000$                    800$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 81,200$                  37,704$                  72,000$                  39,401$                  80,000$                  8,000$                    


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 247 -$                        64$                          100$                        1$                            -$                        (100)$                      
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 247 25,861$                  25,861$                  25,925$                  25,925$                  26,025$                  100$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 247 25,861$                  25,925$                  26,025$                  25,926$                  26,025$                  -$                        


FUND 248 - REVOLVING LOAN FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48100 TIF CONTRIBUTION -$                        135,000$                100,000$                15,000$                  -$                        (100,000)$              
48108 INTEREST - RLF -$                        3,697$                    10,000$                  3,056$                    6,000$                    (4,000)$                   
48110 INTEREST 375$                        1,275$                    35$                          2$                            -$                        (35)$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 375$                        139,972$                110,035$                18,058$                  6,000$                    (104,035)$              


APPROPRIATIONS
50850 ADMINISTRATION 4,000$                    6,000$                    4,000$                    2,000$                    4,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 4,000$                    6,000$                    4,000$                    2,000$                    4,000$                    -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 248 (3,625)$                   133,972$                106,035$                16,058$                  2,000$                    (104,035)$              
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 248 120,359$                120,359$                254,331$                254,331$                360,366$                106,035$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 248 116,734$                254,331$                360,366$                270,389$                362,366$                2,000$                    


FUND 249 - REFUSE FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
46420 GARBAGE COLLECTION FEES 799,000$                792,968$                817,200$                822,905$                870,003$                52,803$                  
48110 INTEREST -$                        531$                        -$                        9$                            -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 799,000$                793,499$                817,200$                822,914$                870,003$                52,803$                  







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
APPROPRIATIONS
50110 SALARIES 1,757$                    1,638$                    1,794$                    656$                        1,850$                    56$                          
50120 WAGES 419$                        371$                        428$                        278$                        432$                        4$                            
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 317$                        282$                        324$                        130$                        324$                        -$                        
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 592$                        458$                        525$                        282$                        635$                        110$                        
50215 GARBAGE COLLECTION 542,000$                535,962$                563,900$                424,170$                618,500$                54,600$                  
50216 RECYCLING COLLECTIONS 251,000$                250,256$                247,900$                187,546$                250,000$                2,100$                    
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 300$                        36$                          300$                        -$                        100$                        (200)$                      
50315 ADVERTISING 2,000$                    111$                        2,000$                    -$                        500$                        (1,500)$                   
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 798,385$                789,114$                817,171$                613,062$                872,341$                55,170$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 249 615$                        4,385$                    29$                          209,852$                (2,338)$                   (2,367)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 249 -$                        -$                        4,385$                    4,385$                    4,414$                    29$                          
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 249 615$                        4,385$                    4,414$                    214,237$                2,076$                    (2,338)$                   


FUND 250 - SICK LEAVE FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 125,000$                125,000$                100,000$                100,000$                52,000$                  (48,000)$                
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 125,000$                125,000$                100,000$                100,000$                52,000$                  (48,000)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50535 RETIREE HEALTH INS-PAYOUT 140,000$                127,598$                105,000$                36,356$                  165,000$                60,000$                  
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 140,000$                127,598$                105,000$                36,356$                  165,000$                60,000$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 250 (15,000)$                (2,598)$                   (5,000)$                   63,644$                  (113,000)$              (108,000)$              
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 250 83,707$                  83,707$                  81,109$                  81,109$                  76,109$                  (5,000)$                   
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 250 68,707$                  81,109$                  76,109$                  144,753$                (36,891)$                (113,000)$              


FUND 253 - AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        -$                        -$                        6$                            5$                            5$                            
49223 TRANSFER IN - TIF #3 -$                        -$                        515,000$                512,638$                -$                        (515,000)$              
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        -$                        515,000$                512,644$                5$                            (514,995)$              


APPROPRIATIONS
HOUSING AUTHORITY -$                        -$                        250,000$                -$                        250,000$                -$                        


TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        -$                        250,000$                -$                        250,000$                -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 253 -$                        -$                        265,000$                512,644$                (249,995)$              (514,995)$              
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - 253 -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        512,644$                512,644$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 253 -$                        -$                        265,000$                512,644$                262,649$                (2,351)$                   


FUND 252 - K9 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 200$                        41$                          -$                        1$                            -$                        -$                        
48541 DONATIONS- POLICE DEPT. 8,000$                    2,593$                    8,000$                    7,179$                    8,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 8,200$                    2,634$                    8,000$                    7,180$                    8,000$                    -$                        


APPROPRIATIONS
50120 WAGES 3,300$                    3,300$                    3,300$                    2,475$                    3,300$                    -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 660$                        632$                        660$                        477$                        660$                        -$                        
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,200$                    1,177$                    1,200$                    833$                        1,200$                    -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 3,000$                    1,570$                    3,000$                    768$                        2,000$                    (1,000)$                   
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 8,160$                    6,679$                    8,160$                    4,553$                    7,160$                    (1,000)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 252 40$                          (4,045)$                   (160)$                      2,627$                    840$                        1,000$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 252 17,732$                  17,732$                  13,687$                  13,687$                  13,527$                  (160)$                      
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 252 17,772$                  13,687$                  13,527$                  16,314$                  14,367$                  840$                        


FUND 254 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43529 FEDERAL ASSISTANCE FUNDING - COVID -$                        -$                        -$                        686,312$                -$                        -$                        
48110 INTEREST -$                        -$                        -$                        8$                            -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        -$                        -$                        686,320$                -$                        -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 254 -$                        -$                        -$                        686,320$                -$                        -$                        
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 254 -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        686,320$                686,320$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 254 -$                        -$                        -$                        686,320$                686,320$                686,320$                


FUND 261 - REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        16$                          -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 5,000$                    79,619$                  8,000$                    8,000$                    11,000$                  3,000$                    
49244 TRANSFER IN - CDBG 6,500$                    6,453$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 11,500$                  86,088$                  8,000$                    8,000$                    11,000$                  3,000$                    







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 8,950$                    17,823$                  7,000$                    14,046$                  10,000$                  3,000$                    
50850 ADMINISTRATION 1,350$                    1,000$                    432$                        1,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 8,950$                    19,173$                  8,000$                    14,478$                  11,000$                  3,000$                    


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 261 2,550$                    66,915$                  -$                        (6,478)$                   -$                        -$                        
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 261 (66,916)$                (66,916)$                (1)$                           (1)$                           (1)$                           -$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 261 (64,366)$                (1)$                           (1)$                           (6,479)$                   (1)$                           -$                        


FUND 270 - SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS


ESTIMATED REVENUES
42100 CURB, GUTTER, EARTHWORK 130,000$                229,285$                100,000$                228,329$                195,000$                95,000$                  
48110 INTEREST 2,900$                    1,111$                    100$                        107$                        100$                        -$                        
48112 INTEREST ON TAXES 4,000$                    12,471$                  4,000$                    718$                        4,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 136,900$                242,867$                104,100$                229,154$                199,100$                95,000$                  


APPROPRIATIONS
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 200,000$                200,000$                85,000$                  85,000$                  157,100$                72,100$                  
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 200,000$                200,000$                85,000$                  85,000$                  157,100$                72,100$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 270 (63,100)$                42,867$                  19,100$                  144,154$                42,000$                  22,900$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 270 362,128$                362,128$                404,995$                404,995$                424,095$                19,100$                  
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 270 299,028$                404,995$                424,095$                549,149$                466,095$                42,000$                  


FUND 300 - DEBT SERVICE FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 7,200$                    1,465$                    -$                        57$                          -$                        -$                        
48113 REBATE 3,272$                    2,637$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
48115 TOWNSHIP SHARE FIRE STATION 73,975$                  73,975$                  73,975$                  73,975$                  73,975$                  -$                        
49100 PREMIUM ON DEBT ISSUE -$                        141,078$                -$                        76,042$                  -$                        -$                        
49203 TRANSFER IN - EMS 137,970$                137,970$                -$                        -$                        30,000$                  30,000$                  
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 3,344,613$            3,344,613$            3,284,186$            3,284,186$            3,565,553$            281,367$                
49216 TRANSFER IN - TIF #5 102,521$                102,521$                112,938$                112,938$                153,850$                40,912$                  
49217 TRANSFER IN  - TIF #6 70,138$                  70,138$                  133,731$                133,731$                419,613$                285,882$                
49218 TRANSFER IN - TIF #7 333,975$                333,975$                334,725$                334,725$                334,275$                (450)$                      
49219 TRANSFER IN - #8 17,288$                  17,288$                  24,741$                  24,741$                  111,757$                87,016$                  
49223 TRANSFER IN - TIF #3 433,029$                433,029$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
49224 TRANSFER IN - TIF #4 101,625$                101,625$                -$                        -$                        -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
49225 TRANSFER IN - STORM WATER 254,222$                254,222$                263,749$                263,749$                298,164$                34,415$                  
49226 TRANSFER IN - SP ASSESSMENT -$                        -$                        35,000$                  35,000$                  -$                        (35,000)$                
49228 TRANSFER IN FROM UTILITIES 95,200$                  95,200$                  93,500$                  3,825$                    96,750$                  3,250$                    
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 4,975,028$            5,109,736$            4,356,545$            4,342,969$            5,083,937$            727,392$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50610 PRINCIPAL 4,144,730$            4,144,730$            3,471,021$            3,386,021$            4,267,282$            796,261$                
50620 INTEREST 1,094,702$            1,094,702$            980,709$                976,034$                934,253$                (46,456)$                
50621 PAYMENT TO REFUNDING ESCROW 6,000$                    6,125$                    6,000$                    3,800$                    -$                        (6,000)$                   
50630 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES 5,245,432$            5,245,557$            4,457,730$            4,365,855$            5,201,535$            743,805$                
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 4,669,817$            4,668,767$            5,245,432$            5,245,557$            4,457,730$            (787,702)$              


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 300 (270,404)$              (135,821)$              (101,185)$              (22,886)$                (117,598)$              (16,413)$                
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 300 832,401$                832,401$                696,580$                696,580$                595,395$                (101,185)$              
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 300 561,997$                696,580$                595,395$                673,694$                477,797$                (117,598)$              


FUND 400 - CONSTRUCTION FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43524 GRANTS -$                        -$                        27,316$                  -$                        106,580$                79,264$                  
48110 INTEREST 25,000$                  6,984$                    2,500$                    564$                        500$                        (2,000)$                   
48309 SALE OF CITY PROPERTY -$                        14,904$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
49120 NOTE PROCEEDS 1,395,000$            1,368,195$            1,488,749$            1,387,822$            3,315,696$            1,826,947$            
49130 PREMIUM ON DEBT -$                        11,652$                  -$                        7,642$                    -$                        -$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 100,000$                100,000$                100,000$                100,000$                100,000$                -$                        
49226 TRANSFER IN - SP ASSESSMENT 200,000$                200,000$                50,000$                  50,000$                  157,100$                107,100$                
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 1,720,000$            1,701,735$            1,668,565$            1,546,028$            3,679,876$            2,011,311$            


APPROPRIATIONS
50120 WAGES -$                        25,666$                  57,928$                  40,323$                  59,717$                  1,789$                    
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS -$                        3,790$                    8,513$                    5,842$                    8,519$                    6$                            
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE -$                        7,300$                    13,934$                  10,450$                  14,574$                  640$                        
50630 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES 34,000$                  38,393$                  30,000$                  37,548$                  71,500$                  41,500$                  
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 1,690,443$            1,724,185$            1,389,834$            305,155$                3,525,876$            2,136,042$            
50840 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 269,834$                299,522$                252,065$                169,944$                -$                        (252,065)$              
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,994,277$            2,098,856$            1,752,274$            569,262$                3,680,186$            1,927,912$            


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 400 (274,277)$              (397,121)$              (83,709)$                976,766$                (310)$                      83,399$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 400 2,403,114$            2,403,114$            2,005,993$            2,005,993$            1,922,284$            (83,709)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 400 2,128,837$            2,005,993$            1,922,284$            2,982,759$            1,921,974$            (310)$                      







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION


FUND 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43524 GRANTS 75,000$                  -$                        11,000$                  80,000$                  -$                        (11,000)$                
47323 TOWNSHIP FIRE - CAPITAL 21,900$                  23,215$                  22,200$                  27,476$                  152,149$                129,949$                
48110 INTEREST 5,000$                    3,525$                    1,000$                    81$                          50$                          (950)$                      
48309 SALE OF CITY PROPERTY -$                        44,374$                  -$                        81,489$                  -$                        -$                        
48500 DONATIONS-ROTARY PARK -$                        2,500$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
49120 NOTE PROCEEDS 695,000$                636,805$                838,475$                787,178$                877,318$                38,843$                  
49130 PREMIUM ON DEBT -$                        5,423$                    -$                        4,335$                    -$                        -$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 100,000$                100,000$                100,000$                100,000$                100,000$                -$                        
49232 TRANSFER IN - PARK DEV FUND -$                        -$                        108,543$                -$                        -$                        (108,543)$              
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 896,900$                815,842$                1,081,218$            1,080,559$            1,129,517$            48,299$                  


APPROPRIATIONS
50630 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES 17,000$                  17,869$                  15,000$                  21,297$                  18,929$                  3,929$                    
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 929,000$                1,521,166$            1,112,818$            816,902$                1,110,650$            (2,168)$                   
50840 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE -$                        6,047$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 946,000$                1,545,082$            1,127,818$            838,199$                1,129,579$            1,761$                    


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 410 (49,100)$                (729,240)$              (46,600)$                242,360$                (62)$                        46,538$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 410 1,307,532$            1,307,532$            578,292$                578,292$                531,692$                (46,600)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 410 1,258,432$            578,292$                531,692$                820,652$                531,630$                (62)$                        


FUND 411 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 500$                        457$                        350$                        107$                        100$                        (250)$                      
48200 RENT INCOME - UTILITY BUILDING 134,000$                133,503$                138,919$                103,176$                143,087$                4,168$                    
48220 RENTAL INCOME-SR CENTER ANNEX 29,700$                  20,550$                  29,700$                  17,850$                  13,500$                  (16,200)$                







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
48221 RENTAL INCOME - ROOM USE -$                        75$                          100$                        30$                          30$                          (70)$                        
48222 RENTAL REVENUE - MSB 26,000$                  26,240$                  26,389$                  22,129$                  27,484$                  1,095$                    
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 190,200$                180,825$                195,458$                143,292$                184,201$                (11,257)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50128 ROOM OBSERVER -$                        73$                          1,000$                    60$                          500$                        (500)$                      
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS -$                        6$                            76$                          5$                            38$                          (38)$                        
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 254,600$                174,905$                209,500$                56,965$                  87,500$                  (122,000)$              
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 45,000$                  40,000$                  45,000$                  -$                        45,000$                  -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 299,600$                214,984$                255,576$                57,030$                  133,038$                (122,538)$              


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 411 (109,400)$              (34,159)$                (60,118)$                86,262$                  51,163$                  111,281$                
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 411 567,713$                567,713$                533,554$                533,554$                473,436$                (60,118)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 411 458,313$                533,554$                473,436$                619,816$                524,599$                51,163$                  


FUND 412 - EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43524 GRANTS -$                        -$                        -$                        5,298$                    -$                        -$                        
43525 GRANTS- TAXI -$                        (29,600)$                36,298$                  62,206$                  7,240$                    (29,058)$                
47323 TOWNSHIP FIRE - CAPITAL 75,000$                  73,858$                  21,300$                  2,704$                    16,102$                  (5,198)$                   
48110 INTEREST 2,000$                    750$                        500$                        72$                          25$                          (475)$                      
48309 SALE OF CITY PROPERTY -$                        -$                        -$                        3,267$                    -$                        -$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        220,000$                220,000$                
49228 TRANFER IN FROM UTILITIES 220,000$                220,000$                220,000$                -$                        -$                        (220,000)$              
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 297,000$                265,008$                278,098$                73,547$                  243,367$                (34,731)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50820 EQUIPMENT 599,700$                540,904$                280,520$                310,668$                254,150$                (26,370)$                
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 599,700$                540,904$                280,520$                310,668$                254,150$                (26,370)$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 412 (302,700)$              (275,896)$              (2,422)$                   (237,121)$              (10,783)$                (8,361)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 412 527,769$                527,769$                251,873$                251,873$                249,451$                (2,422)$                   
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 412 225,069$                251,873$                249,451$                14,752$                  238,668$                (10,783)$                


FUND 413 - TECHNOLOGY FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 1,000$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 1,000$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
APPROPRIATIONS
50289 NETWORK EXPENSES 25,000$                  5,248$                    25,000$                  18,423$                  -$                        (25,000)$                
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 25,000$                  5,248$                    25,000$                  18,423$                  -$                        (25,000)$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 413 (24,000)$                (5,248)$                   (25,000)$                (18,423)$                -$                        25,000$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 413 100,394$                100,394$                95,146$                  95,146$                  70,146$                  (25,000)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 413 76,394$                  95,146$                  70,146$                  76,723$                  70,146$                  -$                        


FUND 603 - EMS


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43421 STATE MEDICARE SUPPLEMENT 17,500$                  16,856$                  15,000$                  -$                        15,000$                  -$                        
43529 FEDERAL ASSISTANCE FUNDING - COVID -$                        16,639$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
43530 BAB REBATE 2,025$                    1,420$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
43791 OTHER COUNTY GRANTS -$                        -$                        -$                        2,654$                    -$                        -$                        
46220 EMS DEPT FEES 44,664$                  45,332$                  -$                        45,729$                  48,350$                  48,350$                  
46230 AMBULANCE FEES 640,000$                684,576$                650,000$                376,510$                635,000$                (15,000)$                
46240 STATE DEPT COLLECTION (SDC) -$                        2,873$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
48110 INTEREST -$                        377$                        250$                        7$                            -$                        (250)$                      
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 25,000$                  25,000$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 729,189$                793,073$                711,050$                424,900$                698,350$                (12,700)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50110 SALARIES 83,371$                  84,314$                  85,076$                  58,740$                  87,752$                  2,676$                    
50120 WAGES 43,793$                  36,109$                  44,713$                  24,126$                  46,142$                  1,429$                    
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 135,000$                144,214$                146,000$                92,683$                  145,000$                (1,000)$                   
50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY/VOLUNTEER -$                        648$                        -$                        563$                        -$                        -$                        
50129 LONGEVITY - VOLUNTEERS 5,100$                    4,995$                    5,100$                    75$                          5,000$                    (100)$                      
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 29,107$                  23,361$                  30,452$                  19,239$                  30,626$                  174$                        
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 21,916$                  21,916$                  22,426$                  22,924$                  31,981$                  9,555$                    
50197 WORKERS COMP INSURANCE 6,300$                    4,057$                    6,500$                    -$                        6,500$                    -$                        
50210 TELEPHONE 1,900$                    2,352$                    2,700$                    4,393$                    6,000$                    3,300$                    
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 10,000$                  5,966$                    10,000$                  4,580$                    10,000$                  -$                        
50213 EMT TRAINING BANK 3,650$                    75$                          3,650$                    -$                        3,650$                    -$                        
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/MEDICAL DIRECTOR 10,000$                  10,000$                  10,000$                  5,000$                    10,000$                  -$                        
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/BILLING 36,000$                  40,112$                  38,000$                  24,040$                  40,000$                  2,000$                    
50217 OUTSIDE SERVICES/LEGAL 2,000$                    -$                        2,000$                    -$                        2,000$                    -$                        
50220 UTILITIES/JANITORIAL 16,900$                  16,787$                  14,600$                  11,247$                  18,165$                  3,565$                    
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE/BUILDING 14,000$                  18,042$                  26,000$                  6,990$                    5,000$                    (21,000)$                
50300 MISC EXPENSES 3,700$                    1,757$                    3,700$                    1,913$                    3,700$                    -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2021
2020 2020 2021 9 MONTH 2022 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 6,000$                    3,034$                    4,000$                    2,002$                    4,000$                    -$                        
50316 RENT EXPENSE 30,000$                  28,280$                  28,500$                  21,783$                  28,500$                  -$                        
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 1,300$                    1,298$                    1,400$                    1,300$                    1,400$                    -$                        
50321 DEPRECIATION/SINKING FUND -$                        93,284$                  -$                        -$                        100,000$                100,000$                
50325 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE -$                        -$                        18,000$                  13,500$                  18,000$                  -$                        
50330 VEHICLE EXPENSE 12,000$                  11,907$                  12,000$                  8,193$                    15,000$                  3,000$                    
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 8,000$                    6,372$                    7,700$                    4,578$                    7,700$                    -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 42,000$                  58,690$                  50,000$                  47,764$                  50,000$                  -$                        
50342 OPERATING EXPENSES-RECRUITMENT 500$                        -$                        500$                        -$                        500$                        -$                        
50343 OPERATING EXPENSES-PUBLIC RELATIONS 1,000$                    133$                        1,000$                    1,013$                    1,500$                    500$                        
50350 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 6,400$                    180$                        6,000$                    7,748$                    6,000$                    -$                        
50390 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 5,000$                    4,291$                    5,000$                    8,060$                    6,000$                    1,000$                    
50513 AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE INSURANCE 3,000$                    2,854$                    3,000$                    -$                        3,000$                    -$                        
50620 INTEREST -$                        990$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50931 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 137,970$                -$                        -$                        -$                        30,000$                  30,000$                  
50932 TRANSFER TO EMS TRUCK FUND -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        50,000$                  50,000$                  
50933 TRANSFER TO EQUIP REPLACEMENT 40,000$                  40,000$                  100,000$                100,000$                70,000$                  (30,000)$                
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 715,907$                666,018$                688,017$                492,454$                843,116$                155,099$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 603 13,282$                  127,055$                23,033$                  (67,554)$                (144,766)$              (167,799)$              
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 603 1,045,050$            1,045,050$            1,172,105$            1,172,105$            1,195,138$            23,033$                  
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 603 1,058,332$            1,172,105$            1,195,138$            1,104,551$            1,050,372$            (144,766)$              


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS EXCLUDING GF (2,274,118)$           (1,676,848)$           244,970$                3,629,272$            441,994$                197,024$                





		2022-City of Stoughton Budget Resolution

		Executive Budget Presentation

		City of Stoughton 2022 Budget Executive Summary

		2022 Budget Highlights

		2022 Budget Highlights (cont.)

		2022 Budget Highlights (cont.)

		Key 2022 Budgetary Outcomes

		Key 2022 Budgetary Outcomes (cont.)

		Key 2022 Budgetary Outcomes (cont.)

		2022 General Fund Operating� Budget - Condensed

		Expenditure Restraint Impact

		Expenditure Restraint Impact (cont.)

		Significant Items for 2022

		Significant Items for 2022 (General Fund Impact)

		Summary of Policy for Unassigned Fund Balance

		Summary of Policy for Unassigned Fund Balance (cont.)

		Debt Service Summary

		Acknowledgements

		City of Stoughton 2022 Budget



		2022 Final Budget

		Introduction

		Fund Type: General Fund

		Fund Type: Debt Service

		Fund Number: 300

		Fund Type: Construction/Capital Projects and Outlay

		Fund Number: 400 and 410

		Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 4 Fund Number: 204

		Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 5 Fund Number: 205

		Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 6 Fund Number: 206

		Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 7 Fund Number: 207

		Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 8 Fund Number: 208

		Fund Type: Major Enterprise Funds

		Fund Type: Non-Major Governmental Funds

		Fund Type: Non-Major Enterprise Funds

		Budget Process (General)

		Budget Monitoring

		Budget Amendments

		Fund Accounting

		Governmental Funds Subject to Financial Planning and Appropriation

		Other Funds Subject to Financial Planning but not Subject to Appropriation (Enterprise Funds)

		Basis of Accounting

		Basis of Accounting (cont.)

		Basis of Budgeting

		Long Range Planning (Capital Improvement Program (CIP)) Overview

		MAJOR REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

		Description of Major General Fund Revenues

		Property Taxes

		Utility Payment In Lieu of Tax

		State Shared Revenue

		General Transportation Aids

		Description of Major General Governmental Expenditures



		2022 Budget Spreadsheet

		Net New Construction

		Mill Rate History

		Gen Condensed IS

		Public Hearing Recon

		Gen Revenues

		Gen Expenses

		Remaining Funds








 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION TO THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of Stoughton five-year (2022-
2026) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 


 
Committee Action: 
 
 


 
CIP Budget Committee Recommended approval September 23, 2021 


 
Fiscal Impact: 2022 - $6,308,272; 2023 - $7,633,024; 2024 - $7,466,394; 2025 - $5,333,015; 


2026 - $5,389,519 
 
File Number: 


 
R-164-2021 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 9, 2021 


 
WHEREAS, City staff has prepared and the CIP Budget Committee has reviewed the proposed five-year 
(2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan; and 


WHEREAS, the CIP Budget Committee recommended the approval of the proposed five-year 
(2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan to the Common Council on September 23, 2021; and now 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 
approve and adopt the five-year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan. 
    
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
          
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 



















 The table below represents the forecasted available 
fund balance for the Building Maintenance Fund for 
2022-2026
 It should be noted this includes planned expenditures 


related to the Power House totaling $115,000







 The table below represents the forecasted available 
fund balance for the Equipment Replacement Fund for 
2022-2026







MAJOR PROJECTS –
GENERAL (>$100,000)







Department Project Description Funding Source 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


Streets #20 Grader (John Deere 570A) GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               115,000$       -$               -$               


Streets #33 Bucket Truck - International 4300 GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               140,000$       -$               -$               -$               


Storm Water #41 Leaf Vacuum Unit Storm Water Fund -$               -$               -$               160,000$       -$               


Storm Water #42 Leaf Vacuum Unit Storm Water Fund -$               -$               -$               -$               160,000$       


Streets #7 Patrol Truck (Chevy) GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 193,000$       -$               -$               -$               -$               


Planning City Hall - Roof Replacement GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               100,000$       -$               -$               


Fire Engine 2 Replacement GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               700,000$       -$               -$               


Streets International Patrol Truck #14 GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               -$               205,000$       -$               


Capital Projects Jefferson Street Bridge Replacement GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 498,420$       -$               -$               -$               -$               


Fire Mobile Radios GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               160,000$       -$               -$               -$               


Parks Norse Park Playground GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               -$               200,000$       -$               


Parks Norse Park Shelter Replacement GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               -$               150,000$       650,000$       


Planning Opera House - Window Replacement GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               -$               150,000$       -$               


Streets Patrol Truck #9 International GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               -$               -$               205,000$       


Fire Portable Radios GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 389,000$       -$               -$               -$               -$               


Capital Projects Preventative Maintenance GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 180,000$       180,000$       180,000$       180,000$       200,000$       


MAJOR PROJECTS - GENERAL







Department Project Description Funding Source 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


MAJOR PROJECTS - GENERAL


Parks Racetrack Park Parking Lot and Pathways GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               93,519$         623,460$       -$               


Recreation RD PIII - Mandt Park PI GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 50,000$         135,000$       1,279,000$    -$               -$               


Recreation RD PIII - Mandt Park PI Other-Grants -$               -$               1,179,000$    -$               -$               


Recreation Schefelker Park Restroom GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               -$               30,000$         160,000$       


Recreation Settler's Point Trail GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               125,000$       -$               650,000$       


Recreation Settler's Point Trail Other-Grants -$               -$               -$               -$               650,000$       


Storm Water Street Sweeper #12 Storm Water Fund -$               -$               -$               -$               282,000$       


Recreation Veterans Park Restroom GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               -$               30,000$         160,000$       


Recreation Virgin Lake Trail  - Buckingham to Roby GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 52,000$         315,000$       -$               -$               -$               


Recreation Virgin Lake Trail - Jackson to Buckingham GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 32,000$         150,000$       -$               -$               -$               


Recreation Virgin Lake Trail  - Roby to 51 West GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 56,000$         175,000$       -$               -$               -$               


Recreation Yahara River Trail Paving GO Debt/General Fund Outlay -$               -$               125,000$       -$               -$               


Recreation Yahara River Trail Paving Other-Grants -$               -$               100,000$       -$               -$               


1,450,420$    1,255,000$    3,996,519$    1,728,460$    3,117,000$    







MAJOR PROJECTS –
YAHARA RIVER PARK







Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PII Environmental Assessment 75,000$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PII River Park 144,983$       772,725$       -$               -$               -$               


Recreation Other-Grants RD PII River Park -$               833,224$       -$               -$               -$               


Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PII River Restoration -$               125,000$       -$               -$               -$               


Recreation Other-Grants RD PII River Restoration -$               225,000$       -$               -$               -$               


Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PII T, U, P (RDA to Water St) 53,579$         887,273$       -$               -$               -$               


Recreation Other-Grants RD PII T, U, P (RDA to Water St) -$               887,273$       -$               -$               -$               


273,562$       3,730,495$    -$               -$               -$               


GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 273,562$       1,784,998$    -$               -$               -$               


Grants -$               1,945,497$    -$               -$               -$               


MAJOR PROJECTS - YAHARA RIVER PARK







MAJOR PROJECTS –
STREET PROJECTS







Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay STREETS PROJECT ENGINEERING 181,608$       137,097$       255,901$       236,572$       147,560$       


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay SIDEWALK PROGRAM 50,000$         50,000$         50,000$         50,000$         50,000$         


Streets/Planning Special Assessments SIDEWALK PROGRAM 50,000$         50,000$         50,000$         50,000$         50,000$         


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION 538,146$       -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION 69,505$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 61,075$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 4,838$           -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Other-Grants DIGITAL WELCOME SIGNS 65,000$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay DOT MAJORS PROJECT ENGINEERING 25,000$         25,000$         25,000$         22,500$         22,500$         


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay DOT MAJORS PROJECT CONSTRUCTION -$               -$               -$               165,000$       165,000$       


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION 59,674$         -$               -$               185,397$       -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION 13,130$         -$               -$               27,849$         -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 127,757$       -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 13,082$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 65,509$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 12,030$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


MAJOR PROJECTS - STREETS







Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


MAJOR PROJECTS - STREETS


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay MAIN/PAGE CT 23,100$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay MILWAUKEE ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 380,643$       -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments MILWAUKEE ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 52,653$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING 20,000$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               913,395$       -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               18,619$         -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION 167,968$       -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION 25,500$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE RD 4,620$           -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Other-Grants RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE RD 41,580$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay SILVERADO DR - PULVERIZATION 88,945$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments SILVERADO DR - PULVERIZATION 14,643$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay TRUMAN RD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 57,163$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments TRUMAN RD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 5,625$           -$               -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay USH 51 ROUNDABOUTS 200,100$       -$               -$               -$               -$               







Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


MAJOR PROJECTS - STREETS


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$               284,776$       -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$               56,679$         -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION -$               132,163$       -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION -$               16,013$         -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION -$               360,860$       -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION -$               58,625$         -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay W. SOUTH - RECONSTRUCTION -$               454,525$       -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments W. SOUTH - RECONSTRUCTION -$               72,810$         -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay WILSON ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$               93,799$         -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments WILSON ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$               21,470$         -$               -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION -$               -$               286,991$       -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION -$               -$               46,881$         -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay HARDING/GRANT - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               230,359$       -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments HARDING/GRANT - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               41,937$         -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay SHERMAN - PULVERIZATION -$               -$               68,899$         -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments SHERMAN - PULVERIZATION -$               -$               10,942$         -$               -$               







Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


MAJOR PROJECTS - STREETS


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION -$               -$               114,148$       -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION -$               -$               30,753$         -$               -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               308,853$       -$               -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               60,175$         -$               -$               


Streets/Planning TIF 8 GO Debt/General Fund Outlay EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               -$               658,096$       -$               


Streets/Planning TIF 8 Special Assessments EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               -$               179,529$       -$               


Streets/Planning TIF 8 GO Debt/General Fund Outlay FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               -$               108,527$       -$               


Streets/Planning TIF 8 Special Assessments FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               -$               15,613$         -$               


Streets/Planning TIF 8 GO Debt/General Fund Outlay FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$               -$               -$               285,063$       -$               


Streets/Planning TIF 8 Special Assessments FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$               -$               -$               61,905$         -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay MOLINE PULVERIZATION -$               -$               -$               106,238$       -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments MOLINE PULVERIZATION -$               -$               -$               34,320$         -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay MORRIS - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               -$               119,475$       -$               


Streets/Planning Special Assessments MORRIS - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               -$               27,814$         -$               


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay LINCOLN - PULVERIZATION -$               -$               -$               -$               257,958$       


Streets/Planning Special Assessments LINCOLN - PULVERIZATION -$               -$               -$               -$               73,225$         







Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


MAJOR PROJECTS - STREETS


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION -$               -$  -$  -$  87,155$         


Streets/Planning Special Assessments MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION -$               -$  -$  -$  15,203$         


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$  -$  -$  156,863$       


Streets/Planning Special Assessments PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$  -$  -$  26,317$         


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$  -$  -$  129,673$       


Streets/Planning Special Assessments TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$  -$  -$  26,123$         


Streets/Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay VAN BUREN - PULVERIZATION -$               -$  -$  -$  293,837$       


Streets/Planning Special Assessments VAN BUREN - PULVERIZATION -$               -$  -$  -$  70,346$         


2,418,894$    1,813,817$    2,512,853$    2,333,898$    1,571,760$    


GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 2,051,308 $    1,538,220 $    2,253,546 $    1,936,868 $    1,310,546 $    


Special Assssments 261,006$       275,597$       259,307$       397,030$       261,214$       


Grants 106,580$       -$               -$  -$  -$  







MAJOR PROJECTS – STORM 
WATER







Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


Storm Water Storm Water Fund STREETS PROJECT ENGINEERING 60,960$         2,936$           26,329$         47,261$         9,000$           


Storm Water Storm Water Fund ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION 245,300$       -$               -$               -$               -$               


Storm Water Storm Water Fund BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 72,710$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Storm Water Storm Water Fund HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 17,050$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Storm Water Storm Water Fund KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 89,540$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Storm Water Storm Water Fund MILWAUKEE ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 3,850$           -$               -$               -$               -$               


Storm Water Storm Water Fund ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION 18,590$         -$               -$               -$               -$               


Storm Water Storm Water Fund BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$               14,781$         -$               -$               -$               


Storm Water Storm Water Fund W. SOUTH - RECONSTRUCTION -$               14,630$         -$               -$               -$               


Storm Water Storm Water Fund HARDING/GRANT - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               50,655$         -$               -$               


Storm Water Storm Water Fund RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               96,335$         -$               -$               


Storm Water Storm Water Fund WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               46,090$         -$               -$               


Storm Water TIF 8 Storm Water Fund EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               -$               237,609$       -$               


Storm Water TIF 8 Storm Water Fund FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$               -$               -$               94,325$         -$               


MAJOR PROJECTS - STORM WATER







Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


MAJOR PROJECTS - STORM WATER


Storm Water Storm Water Fund GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$               -$               -$               14,643$         -$               


Storm Water Storm Water Fund LINCOLN - PULVERIZATION -$               -$               -$               -$               66,000$         


508,000$       32,347$         219,409$       393,838$       75,000$         







MAJOR PROJECTS –
REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY – TIF 8







Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


Redevelopment Authority TIF 8 Environmental Remediation 660,096$       36,500$         23,500$         -$               -$               


 - Application pending for a $250,000 WEDC Grant


MAJOR PROJECTS - RDA











 The following slides show the forecasted impact to the 
average taxpayer over the next five years using the 
required borrowing amount assuming stable growth
 Assumes 6.15% increase in equalized value in 2021
 Assumes 2.00% increase in equalized value from 2022-


2026
 Assumes 1.32% Net New Construction in 2021
 Assumes 1.25% Net New Construction from 2022-2026
 Assumes assessment ratio of 98.57%



























Page 1


Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay ENGINEERING TECH POSITION 82,000$ 83,640$ 85,313$ 87,019$ 88,759$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE 180,000$ 180,000$ 180,000$ 180,000$ 200,000$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay JEFFERSON ST. BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 498,420$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay STREETS PROJECT ENGINEERING 181,608$ 137,097$ 255,901$ 236,572$ 147,560$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay DOT MAJORS PROJECT ENGINEERING 25,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ 22,500$ 22,500$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay DOT MAJORS PROJECT CONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 165,000$ 165,000$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay SIDEWALK PROGRAM 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE RD 4,620$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION 538,146$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 65,509$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay MILWAUKEE ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 380,643$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay USH 51 ROUNDABOUTS 200,100$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 61,075$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 658,096$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 108,527$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$ -$ -$ 285,063$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay MORRIS - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 119,475$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 127,757$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION 167,968$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay TRUMAN RD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 57,163$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay WILSON ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 93,799$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ 132,163$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay MAIN/PAGE CT 23,100$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ 87,155$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 156,863$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay SILVERADO DR - PULVERIZATION 88,945$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 114,148$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 129,673$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay LINCOLN - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ 257,958$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay VAN BUREN - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ 293,837$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 308,853$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay HARDING/GRANT - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 230,359$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay SHERMAN - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 68,899$ -$ -$ 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)







Page 2


Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 284,776$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay W. SOUTH - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 454,525$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 360,860$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 286,991$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION 59,674$ -$ -$ 185,397$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 913,395$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects GO Debt/General Fund Outlay MOLINE PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ 106,238$ -$ 


TOTAL 2,811,728$ 1,801,860$ 2,518,859$ 2,203,887$ 1,599,305$ 


400-Capital Projects Special Assessments SIDEWALK PROGRAM 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION 69,505$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 12,030$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MILWAUKEE ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 52,653$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 4,838$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 179,529$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 15,613$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$ -$ -$ 61,905$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MORRIS - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 27,814$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 13,082$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION 25,500$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments TRUMAN RD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 5,625$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments WILSON ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 21,470$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ 16,013$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ 15,203$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 26,317$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments SILVERADO DR - PULVERIZATION 14,643$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 30,753$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 26,123$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments LINCOLN - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ 73,225$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments VAN BUREN - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ 70,346$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 60,175$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments HARDING/GRANT - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 41,937$ -$ -$ 







Page 3


Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


400-Capital Projects Special Assessments SHERMAN - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 10,942$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 56,679$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments W. SOUTH - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 72,810$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 58,625$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 46,881$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION 13,130$ -$ -$ 27,849$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 18,619$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MOLINE PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ 34,320$ -$ 


TOTAL  $       261,006  $       275,597  $       259,307  $         397,030  $         261,214 


400-Capital Projects Other-Grants RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE RD 41,580$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Other-Grants DIGITAL WELCOME SIGNS 65,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL  $       106,580  $                 -    $                 -    $                   -    $                   -   


400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund STREETS PROJECT ENGINEERING 60,960$ 2,936$ 26,329$ 47,261$ 9,000$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION 245,300$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund MILWAUKEE ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 3,850$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 89,540$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 72,710$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund LINCOLN - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ 66,000$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 46,090$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund HARDING/GRANT - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 50,655$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 237,609$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$ -$ -$ 94,325$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 17,050$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION 18,590$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 14,781$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund W. SOUTH - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 14,630$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 14,643$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 96,335$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 508,000$ 32,347$ 219,409$ 393,838$ 75,000$ 


Fire Equipment Replacement Personal Protective Equipment 46,850$ 48,000$ 48,000$ 48,000$ 48,000$ 







Page 4


Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Fire Equipment Replacement Tires Engine 1 -$ 4,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire Equipment Replacement Copier -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire Equipment Replacement ATV 2 - Skid Unit 4,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 50,850$ 52,000$ 48,000$ 48,000$ 48,000$ 


Fire Building Maintenance Painting of FD Doors and Frames 15,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire Building Maintenance Training Room AV Update -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 15,000$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 


Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Portable Radios 389,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Command Vehicle Replace (2005 Yukon) 82,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay FireCom Installs -$ 70,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Engine 2 Replacement -$ -$ 700,000$ -$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Thermal Imaging Cameras -$ -$ 30,000$ -$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Boat Replacement -$ -$ -$ 80,000$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 2012 Ram Truck Replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ 90,000$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay AED Replacement (Zoll) -$ 7,500$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Mobile Radios -$ 160,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay De-Ionized Water System -$ 7,500$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay 72 SCBA bottle only replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Architect Services, 2nd floor costing of FD 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay SCBA Hydro test 4,500$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Ladder #4 Replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 480,500$ 245,000$ 730,000$ 80,000$ 90,000$ 


IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement Camera Replacement -$ -$ 15,000$ -$ -$ 
IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement Production Van Replacement (2006) -$ 60,000$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL -$ 60,000$ 15,000$ -$ -$ 


IT/Media Services GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Computer Replacement 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 
IT/Media Services GO Debt/General Fund Outlay EMC SAN and HOSTS Replaced -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
IT/Media Services GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Network Upgrades 25,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ 


TOTAL 55,000$ 55,000$ 55,000$ 55,000$ 55,000$ 







Page 5


Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


IT/Media Services Technology Fund Network upgrades -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Library GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Computers & peripherals 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 
Library GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Document Scanning Station 4,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 10,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 


Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Trash Receptacles 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Picnic Table Replacement -$ -$ -$ 12,000$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Division St Park Shorline Planting 2,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Mandt Park Pickelball Court Paint Repair 2,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Racetrack Park Parking Lot and Pathways Design -$ -$ 93,519$ -$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Racetrack Park Parking Lot and Pathways Construction -$ -$ -$ 623,460$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Racetrack Park Expansion Site Preparation -$ -$ -$ 70,000$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Racetrack Park Expansion Trees and Native Plantings -$ -$ -$ 30,000$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Racetrack Park Ballfield Upgrades -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Racetrack Park Athletic Field Improvements -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay ADA Transition Plan Implementation 35,000$ 35,000$ 35,000$ 40,000$ 40,000$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Bjoin Park ADA Drinking Fountain -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Bjoin Park Native Planting Area Grow In Program -$ 3,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Bjoin Shelter Roof -$ -$ -$ 10,000$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Dunkirk Playground Replacement -$ -$ -$ 80,000$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Sunshade Cover for Troll Beach -$ -$ -$ 3,500$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay East Park Multiuse Court -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Ball Diamond Netting Replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ 6,000$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Crack Fill Sport Courts -$ -$ -$ -$ 40,000$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Schefelker Basketball Half Court 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Schefelker Playground Replacement 75,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Schefelker Walk Trail Overlay/Lights 15,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Norse Park Playground -$ -$ -$ 200,000$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Skate Park update -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Racetrack Park Inclusive Playground -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 







Page 6


Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Norse Park Shelter Replacement - Design & Engineering -$ -$ -$ 150,000$ -$ 
Parks GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Norse Park Shelter Replacement - Construction -$ -$ -$ -$ 650,000$ 


TOTAL 154,000$ 63,000$ 133,519$ 1,268,960$ 741,000$ 


Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Bike Rack Initiative 3,150$ 3,225$ 3,300$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay CORP Update -$ 25,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PII T, U, P Design (RDA to Water St) 53,579$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PII River Park - Engineering 84,483$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PII Environmental Assessment 75,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PII River Restoration -$ 125,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PII T, U, P (RDA to Water St) -$ 887,273$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PII River Park Construction - Current Deflector 60,500$ 772,725$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Virgin Lake Trail Engineering - Roby to 51 West 56,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Virgin Lake Trail  Engineering - Buckingham to Roby 52,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Virgin Lake Trail Engineering - Jackson to Buckingham 32,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Virgin Lake Trail Construction - Roby to 51 West -$ 175,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Virgin Lake Trail Construction - Buckingham to Roby -$ 315,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Virgin Lake Trail Construction - Jackson to Buckingham -$ 150,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Interpretive Signs 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Outdoor Movie Equipment 13,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Settler's Point Trail Engineering -$ -$ 125,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Settler's Point Trail Construction -$ -$ -$ -$ 650,000$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Schefelker Park Restroom Engineering -$ -$ -$ 30,000$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Schefelker Park Restroom Construction -$ -$ -$ -$ 160,000$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Veterans Park Restroom Engineering -$ -$ -$ 30,000$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Veterans Park Restroom Construction -$ -$ -$ -$ 160,000$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Amundson Park - Trail Exercise Stations -$ -$ 50,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Yahara River Trail Paving -$ -$ 125,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PIII - Mandt Park PI Engineering 50,000$ 135,000$ 100,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay RD PIII - Mandt Park PI Construction -$ -$ 1,179,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Mandt Park PII Engineering -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Mandt Park PII Construction -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Mandt Park PIII Engineering -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 







Page 7


Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Mandt Park PIII Construction -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Mandt Park PIV Engineering -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Mandt Park PIV Construction -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 484,712$ 2,588,223$ 1,582,300$ 60,000$ 970,000$ 


Recreation Other-Grants RD PII River Restoration -$ 225,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PII T, U, P (RDA to Water St) -$ 887,273$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PII River Park Construction -$ 833,224$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Settler's Point Trail Construction -$ -$ -$ -$ 650,000$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Yahara River Trail Paving -$ -$ 100,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Nordic Ridge Multiuse Court -$ -$ 30,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PIII - Mandt Park PI Construction -$ -$ 1,179,000$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL -$ 1,945,497$ 1,309,000$ -$ 650,000$ 


Recreation Park Improvement Fund 51 West Master Plan - East Park 25,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Park Improvement Fund 51 West Master Plan - West Park 25,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Park Improvement Fund KPW Master Plan 30,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 80,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Planning Building Maintenance City Hall - Electric Service -$ 40,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - Window Assessment -$ 17,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - 2 Fan Coil Replacments - East FCU & Dressing Room Unit -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - Front Doors -$ -$ 5,000$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - Stage Refinishing -$ -$ -$ 25,000$ -$ 


TOTAL -$ 57,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ -$ 


Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay City Hall - Roof Replacement -$ -$ 100,000$ -$ -$ 
Planning GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Opera House - Window Replacement -$ -$ -$ 150,000$ -$ 


TOTAL -$ -$ 100,000$ 150,000$ -$ 


Police Building Maintenance PSB - Window Replacement 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Building Maintenance PSB-Replace RTU#2 Carrier rooftop unit 30,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 







Page 8


Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Police Building Maintenance PSB - Replace Trane Fan Coil Unit #5 - Council Chambers -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 50,000$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 


Police Equipment Replacement Squad #276 -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #271 -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #273 -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #281 -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #272 44,000$ -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #278 -$ -$ -$ -$ 35,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #277 -$ -$ 35,000$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #274 44,000$ -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #283  K-9 -$ 45,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Body Camera Replacement -$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Electric Police Bikes -$ 6,000$ -$ 6,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Radar Replacements x 2 4,000$ -$ 4,000$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Radio System Base Unit Replacement -$ -$ 12,000$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad Car Video/Laptop Replace 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Handgun Replacements x28 8,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Rifle Replacement x2 4,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Tomar Preemption 10,000$ -$ -$ 4,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Taser Replacement -$ 5,000$ -$ 5,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #270 -$ 45,000$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 120,000$ 112,000$ 152,000$ 116,000$ 125,000$ 


Police GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Community Camera Interface     6,000$ -$ -$ 5,000$ -$ 
Police GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Digital Forensic computer hardware    10,000$ 5,000$ 8,000$ -$ -$ 
Police GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Second CAD Station 10,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Automated License Plate Reader  -$ -$ 25,000$ -$ -$ 
Police GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Portable Radios 28,000$ 16,000$ 16,000$ 16,000$ -$ 
Police GO Debt/General Fund Outlay CAD Interface Router to County -$ -$ 6,000$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 54,000$ 21,000$ 55,000$ 21,000$ -$ 







Page 9


Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Senior Center Building Maintenance Senior Center - Replace Windows -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 
Senior Center Building Maintenance Sr Ctr-Lower Lot & concrete spillway resurfacing -$ -$ 40,000$ -$ -$ 
Senior Center Building Maintenance Sr Ctr Annex-Replace 4 Fan Coil & condensing units 22,500$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 22,500$ -$ 60,000$ -$ -$ 


Streets Equipment Replacement #13 Chevy K3500 36,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement Trailer #46 10,500$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement Trailer Mounted Air Compressor 6,800$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement Toro GM7200 w/ polar track 30,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #32 Scagg -$ 6,500$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement Ford F-350 Dump #52 -$ -$ -$ -$ 37,000$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #11 Dump Truck One-Ton (Chevy 3500) -$ 40,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement Bunker Trailer -$ -$ -$ 1,300$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #1 1998 Chevy K3500 -$ -$ -$ 29,000$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #30 Wacker Road Roller -$ -$ -$ -$ 20,000$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #59 Smithco Diamond Groomer -$ -$ 18,000$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 83,300$ 46,500$ 18,000$ 30,300$ 57,000$ 


Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay #38 Morbark Wood Chipper 50,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay #7 Patrol Truck (Chevy) 197,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay #33 Bucket Truck - International 4300 -$ 140,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay F250 Truck w/ Lift Gate-Add'n to Fleet -$ 48,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Tool Cat 5600 -$ -$ 65,000$ -$ -$ 
Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay International Patrol Truck #14 -$ -$ -$ 205,000$ -$ 
Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Patrol Truck #9 International -$ -$ -$ -$ 205,000$ 
Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Toro Wing Mower #73 -$ -$ -$ -$ 65,000$ 
Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay Toro Wing Mower #73 -$ -$ -$ 65,000$ -$ 
Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay #40 Skid Steer S630 (Bobcat) 54,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay #8 Dump Truck - One-ton GMC -$ 44,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets GO Debt/General Fund Outlay #20 Grader (John Deere 570A) -$ -$ 115,000$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 301,000$ 232,000$ 180,000$ 270,000$ 270,000$ 







Page 10


Department Funding Source Project Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Streets Storm Water Fund #41 Leaf Vacuum Unit -$ -$ -$ 160,000$ -$ 
Streets Storm Water Fund Case IH Tractor #26 -$ -$ -$ 48,000$ -$ 
Streets Storm Water Fund Street Sweeper #12 -$ -$ -$ -$ 282,000$ 
Streets Storm Water Fund #42 Leaf Vacuum Unit -$ -$ -$ -$ 160,000$ 


TOTAL -$ -$ -$ 208,000$ 442,000$ 


TOTAL 5,648,176$    7,633,024$    7,466,394$    5,333,015$      5,389,519$      





		R--2021 Approving the 2022-2026 CIP

		Major Projects

		Major Projects - General

		Major Projects - River Park

		Major Projects - Street Project

		Major Projects - Storm Water

		Major Projects - RDA



		CIP Presentation

		   �	2022 – 2026 CIP Budget

		Departmental CIP Summary

		CIP Funding Summary

		Building Maintenance Fund

		Equipment Replacement Fund

		Major projects – general (>$100,000)

		Major projects – Yahara River Park

		Major projects – Street Projects

		Major projects – Storm Water

		Major projects – Redevelopment Authority – TIF 8

		Borrowing Impact – 

		Borrowing Impact - Assumptions

		Borrowing Impact

		Borrowing Impact – Residential forecast

		Borrowing Impact – Debt Ceiling Forecast

		Borrowing Impact – Debt Ceiling Forecast

		fINAL 2022-2026 CIP– 



		2022-2026 Final CIP

		2022-2026 Master












CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Resolution setting the special charge for garbage and recycling collection fees for calendar year 2022 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee meets November 9, 2021  


Fiscal Impact: 
 
This special charge will collect the $870,003 and has been incorporated into the 
2022 budget. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-165-2021 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 9, 2021 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton provides contracted residential and limited commercial curbside garbage 
and recycling service and incurs contractual and administrative expenses in providing this service; and 


 
WHEREAS, the City’s vendor has increased the 2022 rates by 6.01% as allowed by the contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is administratively efficient to bill and collect fees on the property tax roll as a special charge 
to fund this service; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton to set a special charge for garbage 
and recycling service in an annual amount of $190.04 per unit and that this special charge remains in force 
until revoked or amended by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the special charge rate will take effect on January 1, 2022; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that city staff are 
directed to place the special charge on the property tax roll.  
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Budgeted Expenditures 872,341$                 
Budgeted Revenues 870,003$                 
Surplus / (Loss) (2,338)$                    


Estimated 2022 
Units Monthly Contract Rate Total


Garbage 4,578                         9.10$                                  499,918$                 
Recycling 4,578                         4.55$                                  249,959$                 
Bulk 4,578                         2.15$                                  118,112$                 
    Subtotal 867,989$                 


Labor 2,282$                      
Benefits 324$                         
Insurance 635$                         
Office Supplies 100$                         
Advertising 500$                         
Misc 511$                         
    Subtotal 4,352$                      


          Total 872,341$                 


2021 Fee Per Unit 180.00$                   
2022 Fee Per Unit 190.04$                   
% Increase 5.58%


2022 Refuse Special Charge





		R-165-2021 - Setting 2022 Garbage and Recycling Fees

		Refuse Rates

		2022 Presentation








 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 S Forrest, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  September 23, 2021 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Jamin Friedl 
   
Subject: NAFA TIF Guarantee 
 
The City of Stoughton has an Agreement to Undertake Development (“Agreement”) with North 
American Fur Auctions, Inc. (“NAFA”), which allows the City to recover guaranteed amounts if 
NAFA does not meet its obligations outlined in the Agreement. The Agreement guarantees an 
assessed value of $3,500,000 as of 1/1/20 and that amount increases to $5,000,000 effective 1/1/21. 
The current assessed value of the property is $1,078,600 and NAFA is now in default as it relates 
to the guaranteed value as of 1/1/20 in the amount of $49,782. In addition, the amount to be 
invoiced in 2022 based on the 1/1/21 assessed value requirement is anticipated to approach 
$80,000. 
 
During 2020, NAFA sought protection under the Canadian Companies Creditors Arrangement 
Act (“CCAA”). The City’s law firm conducted a search of Canadian firms more familiar with the 
protections provided under the CCAA to assist the City in determining whether or not it could 
continue to bill NAFA under the Agreement. On February 9, 2021, the City Council agreed to 
engage the Canadian firm, Cassels, Brock and Blackwell to assist the City with determining if 
there is any legal impediment, by virtue of the protections provided under the CCAA, to sending 
NAFA an invoice for payment of the guaranteed amounts that will come due in 2021.  
 
Cassels, Brock and Blackwell confirmed there is a Canadian Court Order (similar to a stay in a 
bankruptcy case) that restricts what creditors can to do collect pre-filing claims. However, in this 
particular instance the City wanted to invoice NAFA for its on-going financial obligation to the 
City, and was not seeking to collect on a pre-filing claim. As a result, the court order did not 
prevent the City from sending an invoice and requesting payment of the amount due in 2021. 
Cassels, Brock and Blackwell informed City staff that if NAFA were to default on the amounts 
owed in 2021, there would be a stay in effect in the Canadian proceeding. However, if NAFA has 
not yet sought US recognition of the Canadian reorganization proceedings the City can file suit 
against NAFA in a US court to collect the amount due. The City would be implicitly breaching the 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





Canadian court order, but because the City has no operations in Canada, there would be no adverse 
consequences for the City. 
 
Following conversations with Attorney Dregne it was determined that the City’s best course of 
action is as follows. Verify that NAFA has not sought US recognition of the Canadian 
reorganization proceedings, and if NAFA has not done so, the City could commence a lawsuit in 
Dane County Circuit Court, in an effort to obtain a judgement against NAFA for breach of contract. 
If the City is successful in obtaining a judgment against NAFA that does not mean the City would 
be successful in collecting on the judgment. In the simplest terms this means that a docket would 
be created and a lien would be placed on any property NAFA owns in Dane County. If NAFA 
continues to liquidate the property it owns in Dane County, the City will need work through this 
process as quickly as possible. Furthermore, if the City is successful in obtaining a judgment on 
the amount currently owed, the same process will need to be followed each subsequent year that 
NAFA falls into default as it relates to the Agreement.  
 
Attorney Dregne believes a filing in Dane County Circuit Court will cost the City approximately 
$5,000. However, if NAFA challenges the claim, the decision to continue moving forward will 
need to be revisited by the City Council at a later date. At this point we are asking whether or not 
the Finance Committee would like to move forward with verifying that NAFA has not sought US 
recognition of the Canadian reorganization proceedings, and if NAFA has not done so, 
commencing a lawsuit in Dane County Circuit Court, in an effort to obtain a judgement against 
NAFA for breach of contract. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Jamin Friedl 







FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Tuesday, October 26, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m.  
GoToMeeting 


Present:  
Schumacher, Reeves, Hirsch, Engelberger (arrived at 6:22 pm), Doom, Mayor Swadley 


Absent Excused:  
Neigum 


Also Present:  
Finance Director Friedl, Planning Director Scheel 


Call to Order:  
Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.  


Communications: 


None.  


Reports: 


• September Treasurer’s Report 
• October 15, 2021 Contingency Report 
• September 30, 2021 Financial Statements 
• September 30, 2021 YTD CIP Report 
 


Approval of the October 18, 2021 Finance Committee Minutes  
Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to approve the October 18, 2021 minutes. Motion carried 5-
0. 


 
Discussion and possible action regarding Stafford Rosenbaum’s proposed rates for 2022 
Hirsch asked to have a multiyear proposal to avoid excessive annual increases in rates and 
ensure longevity. Once received this item will come back to Finance for further discussion.  
 
Discussion and possible action regarding next steps in pursuing recovery of NAFA’s 
default on the increment guarantee amount owed to the City 
Motion by Doom to engage Stafford Rosenbaum to confirm NAFA has not yet sought US 
recognition of the Canadian reorganization proceedings and bring back to Finance for further 
discussion, second by Hirsch. Motion carried 6-0. 


Adjournment:  
Motion by Doom, second by Reeves to adjourn at 6:45 p.m. Motion carried 6-0. 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Jamin Friedl, Finance Director  



jfriedl

Highlight







 





		06.1-NAFA Memo

		10-26-21 Finance Committee Minutes






City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Approval to Initiate Rezoning Process based on General Development Plan submitted for the 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area Adjacent to S. Fourth Street and E. South Street 


 
Committee Action: 


 
 Redevelopment Authority – Approved 5-0  


Fiscal Impact: NA 
 
File Number: 


 
R-168-2021


 
Date Introduced: 


 
11-9-2021 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton (“City”), City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority (“RDA”) and 
Stoughton Riverfront Development Corporation, LLC (“Buyer”) entered into a Real Estate Purchase and 
Sale Agreement (“Agreement”) for approximately 10 acres of real estate east of S. Fourth Street and south 
of E. South Street; and 


WHEREAS, the Agreement outlines a process where the Buyer prepares a General Development Plan 
(“GDP”) Application for approval by the City and RDA prior to initiating the zoning process, and  


WHEREAS, the Buyer has prepared and presented the Stoughton Riverfront Redevelopment General 
Development Plan (Dated November 8, 2021) for consideration; and 


WHEREAS, the RDA has reviewed and approved the General Development Plan, 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby 
accepts the General Development Plan and approves initiating the zoning process based on the General 
Development Plan for the Riverfront Redevelopment Area. 


Council Action:   Adopted   Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:    Accept   Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:   Override Vote 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Riverfront GDP Application.docx 







1 


Stoughton Riverfront Redevelopment 


General Development Plan 
November 8, 2021  


Submitted by: Stoughton Riverfront Development, LLC - Curt and Matt Brink 


Consultants: Potter Lawson Inc., Saiki Design, Onieda Total Integrated Enterprises 


We are excited to present our General Development Plans for the redevelopment of the Riverfront District. The project 


seeks to redevelop the riverfront site along South Street that has long been used for industrial purposes dating back to 


the era of blacksmiths. The new development will include apartment buildings and a community clubhouse, along with 


outdoor green space, stormwater management features, a large greenway buffer space near the river and a new River 


Path and foot bridge. Stoughton has an ideal site for redevelopment, near the historic and pedestrian friendly downtown 


retail district, as well as adjacent to the Yahara River, the best of both worlds can be had by future residents. Main 


Street amenities are within walking distance and a direct connection to outdoor amenities can be had along the new 


river path and foot bridge to Mandt Park. The proposed renovations to Mandt Park as well as the planned Whitewater 


Park will increase opportunities for recreation and access to outdoor activities.  


The site will have 3 lots, one out-lot for stormwater and a public Right of Way. 


Unit Mix and Density 


The total project area encompasses 9.04 acres and will include approximately 215 apartment units. Buildings will be 


mostly 3 and 4 story apartment buildings with a mix of 1, 2 and 3-bedroom units. The current planned unit mix for the 


master plan is: 46.5% 3-bedrooms, 32.1% 2-bedrooms, and 21.4% 1-bedroom units. The unit mix for future phases of 


the master plan could change as the development progresses based on the feedback from the leasing of Phase One, but 


the developer intends to utilize a mix of 1, 2 and 3 bedrooms. 


Planning and Architecture 


The master plan for the Riverfront District is designed to be an integrated part of the city of Stoughton and not a 


standalone development. The original grid of city streets is extended into the development creating pedestrian and 


vehicle connections and providing city residents with access through the development to utilize the river, the River Trail 


and Mandt Park. The plan places buildings more closely together in order to provide shared green spaces for everyone 


to use. The development focuses on the need for additional housing in the downtown area and does not include retail or 


commercial space. Retail and commercial space would be difficult to fill and would take away from the existing 


commercial areas, mainly the Main Street businesses. The current Main Street area is a draw for new residents that 


desire a small town feel but want amenities that they can walk to. The downtown businesses will benefit from the influx 


of new residents.  







2 


 


The architecture of the buildings in Phase One are designed to recall the unique historic nature of the previous 


industrial buildings that inhabited this site, harkening to the heritage of the city. The first building at the corner of South 


Street and South Fourth Street is designed to recall very specifically the historic Blacksmith Shop which was located 


further east on the site and demolished in 2019. The Blacksmith apartments will have a red brick façade with a dark 


metal stepped roof and black steel balconies. The second building to be developed to the south of the Blacksmith Shop 


Apartments, will also recall the historic industrial area but with a lighter brick that relates to the Powerhouse building 


along the river. This building will be three stories in height. The Powerhouse building will remain in place with the hope 


of a future renovation to support the activity on the river especially for the new whitewater park.  The buildings in the 


future phases are anticipated to also be 3 to 4 stories in height with one level of underground parking. A common 


clubhouse building is to be located on a small site adjacent to the river and common green space. The clubhouse will 


house all the shared amenity spaces for the community.  


 


Site and Parking 


The site is designed with a large green space buffer zone along the river, this allows for the stormwater management for 


the site to filter the runoff water before it reaches the river. The green space also allows ample room for a public walking 


path that will be developed by the city and connect via pedestrian bridge with Mandt Park. The closest structure to the 


river’s edge is the proposed pool at the community club house, which is approximately 140 feet from the river’s bank. 


There is a secondary green space that runs north south on the eastern portion of the site, this green space will provide 


views down to the river from 6th Street, as well as provide connections and pedestrian access to the riverfront and to the 


pedestrian bridge from 6th Street. Parking is intended to be accommodated in three areas; underground parking of 


approximately 1 stall per unit, surface parking lots, and parallel parking in the streets, including the existing South 


Street and South Fourth Street. Underground parking is included under each building to reduce the amount of surface 


parking and reduce impervious areas. Parking for the future use of the Powerhouse will be provided by street parking 


stalls on both sides of 4th Street and along the new River Road. The project is requesting an exemption to reduce the 


required number of parking stalls, but if the street parking stalls are added to the total, the project exceeds the city’s 


requirements for parking by approximately 34 stalls.  


 


Sustainability 


Creating a sustainable and resilient community, the Riverfront district redevelopment will transform vacant industrial 


land into a neighborhood where residents can live safe, healthy lives, connected to the community with easy access to 


nature and the Yahara River. The compact development will increase density on an underutilized site within the city, 


reducing the need for greenfield development on the periphery thereby preserving natural areas and valuable farmland. 


Developing on this infill site reduces the need to extend utilities and infrastructure further from the center of the city. 


With more people living within walking distance, the economic viability of the existing downtown businesses is 


strengthened. Buildings are placed closely together with minimal setbacks to make efficient use of the existing land 


resource. Most of the parking is located under the buildings to reduce the need for surface parking stalls, which helps 


to reduce stormwater runoff and reduce the heat island effect. On street parking is intended to supply a portion of the 


parking to reduce the need for additional surface lots and costly structured parking areas. The existing and new roads 


are sized to handle parallel parking on both sides of the street, this also helps to create a more comfortable pedestrian 


experience with the parked cars acting as a buffer to moving traffic. The compact development footprint also allows 


green space to be set aside for communal use, creating a resource that everyone in the city has access to, and helping 


to build a more social, healthy, and connected community. The walkability of streets is enhanced with pedestrian and 


residential scale street trees placed 30’ on center, the trees will flower in the spring attracting wildlife and provide 


autumn color accentuating the changing seasons.   







3 


 


Buildings are arranged around The Community Commons, a large green space designed for passive and active 


recreation for all ages. Aligned with Sixth Street, The Community Commons provides a pedestrian and visual 


connection to the river, the river trail and to the foot bridge over the river that connects to Mandt Park. Green space is 


also set aside along the river to detain and filter stormwater from the development. The stormwater ponds will help 


protect the river by both filtering the urban water runoff and protecting the river during heavy rainstorms leading to 


increased water quality and the protection of wildlife habitat.  The storm water detention out-lot will be planted to create 


a native habitat restoration attracting a diversity of native plants and wildlife.  The Community Commons, River Trail and 


connections to the city’s Main Street amenities encourage residents to get outside and to walk, contributing to the 


physical and social health and vibrancy of the residents and community.  


The redevelopment project aspires to reduce energy use and reduce greenhouse gases by providing well-constructed 


buildings, utilizing quality insulated windows, harnessing renewable energy with solar photovoltaic roof panels, 


providing EV charging stations, specifying energy star appliances, and selecting LED lighting throughout the interiors of 


the buildings and the site. The impact of new construction will be offset by a construction recycling program designed 


and implemented collaboratively across disciplines and contractors. Landscape plant selection will rely on native and 


adaptive species that provide food sources for pollinators and birds, are resilient to the specific microclimate of the site 


and strengthen visual ties to the Yahara River watershed. No irrigation systems are planned for the site. 


 


Enhanced site design, architectural, sustainability and housing type standards 


 


1. Open space. 
A. The North-South open space area which extends from Sixth Street to Outlot 1 is intended to be open 


and accessible to the public for sidewalk, park and open space uses.  At the time an SIP is approved 
for all or any part of Lot 2 or Lot 3, public access to the North-South open space area shall be secured 
by providing for the reservation by or the conveyance to the City of an easement over that area.   


B. Outlot 1 shown on the draft CSM shall  be dedicated to the City of Stoughton for stormwater 
management, open space and recreational uses.   


2. Consistency with GDP.  All development and all SIPs shall conform to any of the following elements of the GDP 
submittal, unless deviations are approved by the City during the SIP approval process: 
A. Overall Site Plan 
B. General Development Plan Landscape 
C. General Development Plan Site Signage & lighting 
D. Phase 1 Building Perspectives 


3. Sustainability Features.   
A. Electric Vehicle Charging Station Infrastructure.  All parking facilities shall meet the electric vehicle 


charging station requirements set forth in Section 28.141(8)(e) of the Municipal Code of the City of 
Madison, Wisconsin. 


B. Solar power. Buildings A1 (the Blacksmith building) and A2 (the Sawmill building) will be solar 


“ready” at occupancy.  Solar panels will be installed no later than 10 years after occupancy is 


granted. Subsequent buildings in Lots 2 and 3 will also be solar “ready” at time of occupancy, with 


solar panels being installed within 10 years of occupancy.  The goal of the solar power is to provide 


at least 50% of the common area electrical usage which would include underground parking lighting, 


EV charging stations, and interior common area lighting and power. 


C. Indoor as well as exterior bike racks will be provided. Interior bike rack storage will be provided 


within the basement parking area. 1 internal bike stall per unit will be provided. Exterior bike racks 


will be provided for visitors of at least 3 per building.  







4 


 


D. Interior materials with Low to no “VOCs will be specified for the interior units contributing to interior 


air quality.   
E. Each unit will have its own dedicated HVAC unit along with exhaust fans for the bathrooms.   


4. Unit mix in Phase 1 must include not less than 17 three-bedroom units, 28 two-bedroom units, and 33 one-
bedroom units, subject to a 10 % deviation for each unit type (rounded up to next whole number, meaning a 
minimum of 15 three-bedroom units and 25 two-bedroom units, and 29 one-bedroom units.  Unit mix in 
subsequent phases will be established in the SIP for such phases.   


5. The intent of the plantings proposed for Outlot One will include natural and indigenous plantings including a 
variety of Native Wisconsin dry prairie mix outside of the stormwater ponds and wet prairie mixes within the 
stormwater pond areas, along with native trees and grasses.  


6. General Development Plan Site Signage & Lighting 
A. The Sixth Street Commons area will be designed in future phases and will include a variety of spaces 


for community use and recreation. The history of the area will be highlighted within the community 
commons area along with utilizing some of the stockpiled building materials from the original 
Blacksmith Shop building. 


B. Design team will work with City of Stoughton’s Landmarks Commission to develop appropriate 
signage to commemorate the history of the site and the significance of the Blacksmith building.  


C. Development of ground signs at the entrance to the development at the corner of 4th and South 
Street, 6th and South Street, and 7th and South Street will utilize some of the stockpiled building 
materials from the original Blacksmith Shop building (see signage and lighting plan for sign 
placement).  


D. Design team will work with Stoughton Utilities for suitable light fixtures for street and pedestrian 
lighting. 


 
Civil Engineering Site Infrastructure Narrative 


 


River Street Phase 1 


1. The following public improvements to be constructed for the benefit of the District in accordance with detailed 


plans and specifications to be prepared by Developer and approved by the City Planning Director: 


a. Utility Relocation:   


i. Sewer main to support the current housing development with stub out to connect future 


development to it.  


ii. Water main to loop between Fourth Street and South Street through Seventh Street 


iii. Storm sewer to convey water from Fourth Street and from South Street to the Yahara River.  


iv. Storm Sewer to convey current housing development to stormwater management BMPs. 


b. Future River Street running parallel to the Yahara River.  Construction 420’ of River Street, from 


approximately the East right-of-way line of existing Fourth Street to a point approximately 420’ East 


of the east line of Fourth Street. Including sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer, curb and gutter, 


street, sidewalk, and street lighting.   


2. Site Grading.  All site grading work the Developer is required to complete in connection with the development 


of River Street, pursuant to grading plans to be prepared by Developer and approved by the City Planning 


Director in accordance with applicable site grading, erosion control and stormwater management regulations. 


 


River Street Phase 2 


1. The following public improvements to be constructed for the benefit of the District in accordance with detailed 


plans and specifications to be prepared by Developer and approved by the City Planning Director: 







5 


 


a. Utility Relocation:   


i. Sewer main to support the future housing development.  


ii. Storm Sewer to convey future housing development to stormwater management BMPs. 


b. Future River Street running parallel to the Yahara River.   River Street, from a point approximately 


420’ east of the East right-of-way line of existing Fourth Street to the west line of Seventh Street. 


Including sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer, curb and gutter, street, sidewalk, and street 


lighting.   


c. Seventh Street from River Street to South Street.   Seventh Street, from future River Street to the 


South right-of-way line of existing South Street. Including sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer, 


curb and gutter, street, sidewalk, and street lighting.   


2. Site Grading.  All site grading work the Developer is required to complete in connection with the development 


of River Street, pursuant to grading plans to be prepared by Developer and approved by the City Planning 


Director in accordance with applicable site grading, erosion control and stormwater management regulations. 


 


 


Outlot 1 Phase 1 


1. Site Grading.  All site grading work the Developer is required to complete in connection with the current 


development of Outlot 1, pursuant to grading plans to be prepared by Developer and approved by the City 


Planning Director in accordance with applicable site grading, erosion control and stormwater management 


regulations. 


2. Stormwater Management Improvements.  Regional stormwater management improvements supporting current 


development including a regional infiltration basin, a regional water quality basin, to be designed by the 


Developer as part of the stormwater management plan for the Property, and approved by the City Planning 


Director. 


 


Outlot 1 Phase 2 


1. Site Grading.  All site grading work the Developer is required to complete in connection with the future 


development of Outlot 1, pursuant to grading plans to be prepared by Developer and approved by the City 


Planning Director in accordance with applicable site grading, erosion control and stormwater management 


regulations. 


2. Stormwater Management Improvements.  Regional stormwater management improvements supporting future 


development including a regional infiltration basin, a regional water quality basin, to be designed by the 


Developer as part of the stormwater management plan for the Property, and approved by the City Planning 


Director. 


 


Phase 1 Building Sitework 


1. The following public improvements to be constructed for the benefit of the District in accordance with detailed 


plans and specifications to be prepared by Developer and approved by the City Planning Director: 


a. Utility Relocation:   


i. Storm Sewer to convey current housing development to stormwater management BMPs. 


2. Site Grading.  All site grading work the Developer is required to complete in connection with the development 


of two buildings adjacent to Fourth Street, pursuant to grading plans to be prepared by Developer and 


approved by the City Planning Director in accordance with applicable site grading, erosion control and 


stormwater management regulations. 


 







6 


 


Future Phase Building Sitework 


1. The following public improvements to be constructed for the benefit of the District in accordance with detailed 


plans and specifications to be prepared by Developer and approved by the City Planning Director: 


a. Utility Relocation:   


i. Sewer main to support the future housing development to connect to phase 1 development.  


ii. Storm Sewer to convey future housing development to stormwater management BMPs. 


2. Site Grading.  All site grading work the Developer is required to complete in connection with the development 


of seven buildings adjacent to Seventh Street, South Street, and River Street pursuant to grading plans to be 


prepared by Developer and approved by the City Planning Director in accordance with applicable site grading, 


erosion control and stormwater management regulations. 


 


1) Comprehensive Plan 


A review of the Stoughton Comprehensive Plan shows many areas where the proposed project aligns with the 


goals of the city.  


a. Chapter 1: Issues and Opportunities 


i. Meets the top priority of redeveloping vacant downtown buildings. (pg. 11) 


ii. Meets the secondary priority of redeveloping the riverfront. (pg. 11) 


iii. Meets the desire of 47% of residents to redevelop the MillFab site into mixed use 


buildings up to 4 stories. (pg.13) 


iv. The project site is noted as a key redevelopment site for the community. (pg. 14) 


v. Meets the overall project goal of providing safe, affordable, and attractive 


neighborhoods. (pg. 16) 


b. Chapter 3: Land Use 


i. Facilitates in meeting the goal of adding around 100 housing units per year for the next 


20 years. (Table 7 pg. 44) 


ii. This project meets the Comprehensive Plan’s intent for the site’s use to be Planned 


Mixed Use. The Multi-Family Residential Zoning use is an allowable zoning category 


within the plan. This project also aligns with the Planned Mixed Use to create higher-


intensity residential areas and community gathering spot. (pg. 51-53, Map 6a pg. 83) 


iii. This project directly addresses the recommendation for an “aggressive approach to 


redevelop the site” into “a mix or retail, office, and higher density residential 


development” when speaking of the old MillFab site. (pg. 58) 


iv. This plan aligns with the desired design intent for neighborhood development set forth 


by the Plan. (Figure 4 pg. 64) 


v. In congruence with Wisconsin’s Comprehensive Planning Law, this project satisfies the 


preferred attention to Redevelopment & Rehabilitation Areas of the city. (pg. 74, Map 


7) 


vi. Meets the direct desire of the city to clean up the 6-acre riverfront site as part of the 


16-acre riverfront redevelopment as laid out in the Plan. (pg. 75) 


vii. This project meets and elevates the established character of the city set by the historic 


downtown. (pg. 78) 


c. Chapter 4: Transportation 


i. Engages and expands upon the pedestrian/bike paths of the city along the riverfront, 


especially as it relates to the proposed pedestrian bridge across the Yahara River. (Map 


9, pg. 111) 







7 


 


d. Chapter 6: Housing 


i. This development will meet the desire to form groups of smaller buildings with a 


historically rich material pallet of brick. It also orients buildings to the street, locates 


parking behind or under the buildings, and provides recreational open spaces, which 


are all important to the city based on the Plan. (pg. 135 


2) Exemptions Requested from Zoning Standards: Based on Multi-family Residential-24 (MR-24) 


The following list outlines the proposed written exemptions the plan is proposing. Landscape Exemptions are 


covered in item 3.  


a. Exemptions Proposed: 


a. Maximum Gross Density exceeds the maximum 24 dwelling units per acre on lots 1 and 2. We 


propose an exception to allow 45 units per acre on lot 1 and 32 units per acre on 2. Lot 3 meets 


the requirements and has 20.3 units per acre.(Sec. 78-105(2)(h)1) 


b. Minimum Lot Area: the minimum lot area requirement is 1,815 square feet per dwelling unit. We 


propose an exception to allow the minimum lot area to be 980 square feet per dwelling unit on 


Lot 1 and 1,376 square feet on Lot 2, Lot 3 meets the requirements and has 2,149 square feet 


per dwelling unit. (Sec.78-105(2)(h)76A 


c. Exceeds the number of dwelling units allowed per building. 12 per Sec. 78-105(2)(h)2a. We 


propose an exception to allow up to 50 dwelling units per building. Currently the GDP shows a 


maximum of 48 dwelling units per building.  


d. Exceeds Minimum Setbacks (Sec. 78-105(2)(h)7b) 


i. D – Front yard requirement: 25’ The setbacks vary, we are proposing to base the 


exception on the smallest of the front yard setbacks which is 4’-10, this occurs at a 


balcony on building number 2 along River Road.  


ii. F – Side Lot line requirement to apartment building is 20’. We are proposing an 


exception to allow the side yard to 12’. Currently the smallest side yard in the GDP is 


12’-9”.  


iii. H – Rear yard requirement: 50’. The rear yard setbacks vary. We propose to base the 


exception on the smallest rear yard currently shown as 8’-4” at the southernmost 


building next to the storm water out-lot.  We would propose for the rear yard to be set 


at 8 feet. 


e. Maximum height 40’, currently the first building with its pitched roof and sloping site is 54’ tall.  


(Sec.78-105(2)(h)76N) 


f. Minimum number of off-street parking spaces required on the lot by the zoning code is 434. 


This calculates to approximately 2.02 stalls per unit and .89 stalls per bedroom based on the 


current mix of units in the GDP which has 484 bedrooms. (Sec. 78-105(2)(h)7b-P) Proposed 


parking totals in the GDP for dwelling units is 372 stalls or 1.73 stalls per unit or .78 parking 


stalls per bedroom. We propose an exception that reduces the required parking stalls for the 


project to the following stalls as shown on the plans.  


i. Lot 1  119 stalls  78 units   1.53 stalls/unit  .85 stalls/bedroom 


ii. Lot 2 189 stalls 98 units   1.93 stalls/unit  .78 stalls/bedroom 


iii. Lot 3    64 stalls  39 units   1.64 stalls/unit  .69 stalls/bedroom 


iv. Total 379 stalls 215 units  1.73 stalls/unit  .77 stalls/bedroom 


g. Landscape Surface Ratio requirement is 50% (Sec. 78-105(2)(h)7a). We propose an exemption 


to reduce the required Landscape Surface Ratio on each lot.  The LSR is lower on each 







8 


 


individual lot but the out-lots for the project increase the Landscape Area to approximately meet 


the requirements. The LSR for each lot:  


i. Lot 1 LSR .30 


ii. Lot 2 LSR .35 


iii. Lot 3 LSR .44 


iv. Outlot LSR .90 


 


b. Meeting / Exceeding 


a. Meets the allowable uses within the zoning district. Multiplex or Apartment (Sec. 78-


105(2)(h)2a) 


b. Meets and exceed the 50’ building setback from high-water mark of Yahara River. (Sec. 32-


34(a)(1)) 


c. This proposal maintains and improves the 35’ vegetative buffer zone along the River. (Sec. 32-


41(1-3)) 


 


3) Landscape Exemptions 


The Riverfront Redevelopment PD is seeking exemptions from some of the current City of Stoughton 


landscaping and buffer yard regulations. A summary of current codes that apply to this project outlined in this 


section. Those codes that the project intends to fully comply with are indicated. If the project is requesting a 


code exemption, a description of the current code, requested exemption, and rationale for the variance request 


is provided. For the purposes of quantifying landscape points, the City has directed the design team to follow 


the most comparable zoning district; therefore, the MR-24 (multi-family residential) zoning requirements are 


assumed to be the zoning type most closely matching the proposed PD development and are used in the 


baseline calculations and description of current codes below. 


 


a. Section 10-2(d) Terrace Trees 


Description of current code:  The City requires terrace trees for projects that include new buildings on 


previously undeveloped lots or parcels and/or where a development does not have terrace trees conforming 


to the requirements of this Section. 


No Exception Taken:  While there is no exception taken to this standard, the project’s boundary along Fourth 


Street and South Street and including the extension of 7th Street and creation of a new, public street 


(currently named “River Street” in plan drawings) will require between 70 – 80 new City terrace trees. 


Based on the required deposit of $300 per right-of-way tree, this represents an investment of $21,000 - 


$24,000 by the project in new street trees. 


 


b. Section 78-604(1) Landscaping Requirements for Regular Development:  Building Foundations 


Description of current code:  For each 100 linear feet of building foundation, 60 points of landscape 


plantings are required. The dripline of those plants must be within 10’ of the building foundation. Climax 


and tall trees cannot be used to meet this requirement. 


Requested Exemption:  The project is requesting a reduction in points by 25%, resulting in a reduction from 


60 points per 100 linear feet of building foundation to 45 points. 


Rationale for Exemption Request:  The PD Landscape Plan exhibit indicates a building design for Building 1 


and Building 2 (both Phase 1 buildings) that provides direct access from ground-floor units to adjacent 


public sidewalks. Providing these ‘front door’ access points helps to articulate the historic aesthetic of the 







9 


 


building and enlivens the social space between the building and the public sidewalks; however, it also 


reduces the amount of foundation available for placing plants and landscape materials.  


 


In addition, the design team would like to craft a planting plan that blends evergreen and deciduous shrub 


materials and small-statured ornamental trees as the structure of the planting design but also includes 


accents of ornamental grasses and perennials to provide a layered, textured and seasonally changing overall 


planting design. Flowering perennials and ornamental grasses are considered non-contributory plants from 


a points calculation basis and do not provide any point value. 


 


The 25% requested reduction takes into consideration the reduced lineal foot of foundation available for 


planting and the desire to include appropriately scaled non-contributory planting material to support the 


overall aesthetic of the project and to blend in with the adjacent Yahara River landscape and proposed 


Riverwalk area. 


 


c. Section 78-604(2)  Landscaping Requirements for Regular Development:  Street Frontages 


Description of current code:  For each 100 linear feet of street frontage, 60 points of landscape plantings are 


required. The trees must be placed within 10’ of the public right-of-way. A minimum of 50% of points shall 


be devoted to climax/tall trees and 30% to medium trees; shrubs are not allowed. 


Requested Exemption:  The project is requesting to eliminate this requirement where buildings are placed 


adjacent to existing or proposed public streets. 


Rationale for Exemption Request:  The PD Overall Site Plan illustrates building setbacks of as little as 8’-6” 


to as much as 15’-1”. These setbacks facilitate an appropriate building-sidewalk-terrace-roadway 


relationship that results in higher density development and supports an active, vibrant, and pedestrian-


oriented overall development; however, the setbacks do not allow for the physical placement of street 


frontage trees in addition to building foundation plantings and new street terrace tree plantings. 


 


The GDP Landscape Plan represents a significant investment in The Community Commons, a linear open 


space that connects the riverfront and future bridge crossing to the downtown; there is no code requirement 


for plantings within this space and the development team sees this as an opportunity to re-allocate street 


frontage requirements to this significant open space feature and a highlight of the plan. 


 


d. Section 78-604(3) Landscaping Requirements for Regular Development:  Paved Areas 


Description of current code:  For each 20 parking stalls or 10,000 square feet of parking lot paving 


(whichever is greater), 100 points of landscape plantings are required. A minimum of 30% of points shall 


be devoted to climax/tall trees and 40% to shrubs. 


No Exemption Taken:  The PD landscape plan illustrates the placement of climax/tall trees and shrub 


plantings in parking lot islands that comply with this code. 


 


e. Section 78-604(3)  Landscaping Requirements for Regular Development:  Developed Lots 


Description of current code:  For each 1,000 square feet of building footprint, 25 points of landscape 


plantings are required. Plantings shall be located away from other areas that meet other landscape 


requirements (i.e., away from building foundations, street frontages, parking lots, and/or bufferyards). All 


planting categories can be used. 







10 


 


No Exemption Taken:  The PD landscape plan illustrates the placement of additional trees and planting areas 


within the large pedestrian-oriented open space that connects the Riverwalk to South Street and also within 


the open space around the stormwater ponds and north of the Riverwalk. 


 


f. Section 78-610  Landscaping Requirements for Buffer yards 


Description of current code:  Bufferyards are required along the outer perimeter of (but within) lots that abut 


parcels with a different zoning designation. Adjacent single family home lots are zoned MR24 so the 


bufferyard is not required. But we plan to keep a fence to screen the development from the single-family 


homes.  


No exemption proposed 


The fence will be constructed in phases based on phasing of parking lots and buildings, and fences may be 


terminated just beyond the point at which building walls do not contain doors or other non-emergency 


egress openings or may be continued to align with the front yard (South Street) face of Buildings 1 and 3.  


The proposed location of the fence is indicated in the PD Landscape Plan. Utilizing a 6-foot solid fence 


provides a high level of visual screening to adjacent properties. A landscaped buffer or “green fence” can 


be provided in lieu of the wood fence if the neighbors prefer.  


 


4) Site Area, Impervious Surface, Landscape Surface, Parking and Density Calculations 


                           


 
 


Site Area Information and Calculations


Building 


Footprints 


(SF)


Asphalt 


(SF)


Sidewalk 


(SF)


Total 


Impervious 


Area


Total Lot Area 


(SF)


Impervious 


Ratio


Landscape 


Surface 


Ratio(LSR)


Lot 1 34,016         15,994     3,649          53,659            76,874          0.70 0.30


Lot 2 48,055         29,419     10,674        88,148            134,861        0.65 0.35


Lot 3 28,595         15,469     3,076          47,140            83,821          0.56 0.44


Outlot 1 -                -            9,357          9,357              98,017          0.10 0.90


Roadway -                36,447     9,845          46,292            61,796          0.75 0.25


Total without 


Roadway 110,666       60,882     26,756        198,304          393,573        0.50 0.50







11 


 


      


 
 


Legal Description of Lots 


 


Lot 1 of the future CSM more particularly described as follows: 


Beginning at the northwest corner of Block 35 Original Plat of the City of Stoughton thence S89°21’14”E along the 


south right of way line of South Street to the northwest corner of Lot 13, of the Original Plat of the City of Stoughton, 


thence along the west thence along the west line of said Lot 13, S00°40'09”W, 132.00 feet; thence S89°21'14”E, 


231.00 feet; thence N47°28'00”E, 28.81 feet; thence S00°40'09”W, 10.50 feet; thence S28°38'36”E, 65.98 feet; 


thence S67°57'32”W, 48.15 feet; thence S14°26'33”E, 81.36 feet; thence S79°54'29”W, 30.83 feet to a point of 


curvature; thence along a curve to the right with a chord which bears S85° 22' 06"W, and a chord length of 12.75 feet, 


and a radius of 67.00 feet to a point of tangency; thence N89° 10' 16"W, 350.11 feet to the west right of way line of 


Fourth Street; thence along said right of way line N00° 40' 09"E, 283.24 feet to the point of beginning.    


This parcel contains 76,874 sq.ft. – 1.76 acres more or less.  


 


Lot 2 of the future CSM more particularly described as follows: 


Commencing at the northwest corner of Block 35 Original Plat of the City of Stoughton thence S89°21’14”E along the 


south right of way line of South Street to the northwest corner of Lot 13, of the Original Plat of the City of Stoughton, 


thence along the west thence along the west line of said Lot 13, S00°40'09”W, 132.00 feet; thence S89°21'14”E, 


231.00 feet; thence N47°28'00”E, 28.81 feet; thence S00°40'09”W, 10.50 feet to the point of beginning; thence 


S28°38'36”E, 65.98 feet; thence S67°57'32”W, 48.15 feet; thence S14°26'33”E, 81.36 feet; thence N79°54'29”E, 


87.29 feet to a point of curvature; thence along a curve to the right with a chord which bears N85° 22' 06"E, and a chord 


length of 25.31 feet, and a radius of 113.00 feet to a point of tangency; thence N89° 10' 16"W, 419.31 feet to the west 


right of way line of Seventh Street; thence along said right of way line N00° 49' 44"E, 297.29 feet to the south right of 


way line of South Street thence along said right of way line N89°21'14”W, 484.58 feet; thence S00°40' 09"W 65.04 


feet; thence S44°31' 43"W 80.10 feet to the point of beginning. 


This parcel contains 134,861 sq.ft. – 3.10 acres more or less.  


 


Lot 3 of the future CSM more particularly described as follows: 


Site Density Calculations Parking Summary


Number of 


Units 


Lot 


Acreage


Units per 


Acre


Lot Area 


per 


Unit(SF)


Parking 


Stalls 


Provided


Parking 


Required 


by Zoning


short
Stalls/Unit 


provided


Stalls/Unit 


Required


Lot 1 78 1.76        44.20      986         119 132         13           1.53        1.69        


Lot 2 98 3.10        31.65      1,376      189 221         18           2.07        2.26        


Lot 3 39 1.92        20.27      2,149      64 81           17           1.64        2.08        


Outlot 1 0 2.25        -          


Total 215 9.04 23.80      1,831      372 434         62           1.73        2.02        


Stalls per Bedroom 0.77 0.88        







12 


 


Commencing at the northwest corner of Block 35 Original Plat of the City of Stoughton thence S89°21’14”E along the 


south right of way line of South Street to the northwest corner of Lot 13, of the Original Plat of the City of Stoughton, 


thence along the west thence along the west line of said Lot 13, S00°40'09”W, 132.00 feet; thence S89°21'14”E, 


231.00 feet; thence N47°28'00”E, 28.81 feet; thence S00°40'09”W, 10.50 feet; thence S28°38'36”E, 65.98 feet; 


thence S67°57'32”W, 48.15 feet; thence S14°26'33”E, 81.36 feet; thence N79°54'29”E, 87.29 feet to a point of 


curvature; thence along a curve to the right with a chord which bears N85° 22' 06"E, and a chord length of 25.31 feet, 


and a radius of 113.00 feet to a point of tangency; thence N89° 10' 16"W, 419.31 feet to the west right of way line of 


Seventh Street; thence along said right of way line S00° 49' 44"W, 37.90 feet; thence S89°16'17”E, 25.16 feet; thence 


S00°49'44”W, 28.14 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing S00°49'44”W, 193.00 feet; N89°10' 16"W 


245.394 feet; thence N67°21' 44"W 182.04 feet; thence N57°50' 16"W 122.56 feet; thence N10°05' 31"W 47.60 feet; 


thence N79°54' 29"E 72.25 feet to a point of curvature; thence along a curve to the right with a chord which bears 


N85°22' 06"E, and a distance of 12.75 feet, and a radius of 67.00 feet to a point of tangency; thence S89°10' 16"E 


444.47 feet to the point of beginning. 


This parcel contains 83,821 sq.ft. – 1.92 acres more or less.  


 


Outlot 1 of the future CSM more particularly described as follows: 


Commencing at the northwest corner of Block 35 Original Plat of the City of Stoughton thence S89°21’14”E along the 


south right of way line of South Street to the northwest corner of Lot 13, of the Original Plat of the City of Stoughton, 


thence along the west thence along the west line of said Lot 13, S00°40'09”W, 132.00 feet; thence S89°21'14”E, 


231.00 feet; thence N47°28'00”E, 28.81 feet; thence S00°40'09”W, 10.50 feet; thence S28°38'36”E, 65.98 feet; 


thence S67°57'32”W, 48.15 feet; thence S14°26'33”E, 81.36 feet; thence N79°54'29”E, 87.29 feet to a point of 


curvature; thence along a curve to the right with a chord which bears N85° 22' 06"E, and a chord length of 25.31 feet, 


and a radius of 113.00 feet to a point of tangency; thence N89° 10' 16"W, 419.31 feet to the west right of way line of 


Seventh Street; thence along said right of way line S00° 49' 44"W, 37.90 feet; thence S89°16'17”E, 25.16 feet; thence 


S00°49'44”W, 221.14 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing S00°49'44”W, 128.20 feet to the meander line 


of the Yahara River; thence along said meander line, S88°21'14”W, 116.46 feet; thence continuing along said meander 


line, N78°45'47”W, 277.05 feet; thence continuing along said meander line, N52°12'38”W, 221.29 feet; thence 


continuing along said meander line, N67°50'23”W, 166.25 feet; thence continuing along said meander line 


N89°27'50”W, 176.96 feet; thence continuing along said meander line N79°13'17"W 52.59 feet to the East side of 


Fourth Street; thence along said East side, N00°40'09”E, 48.47 feet; thence S89°10' 16"E, 349.93 feet to a point of 


curvature; thence chord which bears N85° 22' 06"E, and a chord length of 25.31 feet, and a radius of 113.00 feet to a 


point of tangency; thence N79°54' 29"E 45.87 feet; thence S10°05' 31"E 47.60 feet; thence S57°50' 16"E 122.56 feet; 


thence S67°21' 44"E 182.04 feet; thence  S89°10' 16"E 245.39 feet to the point of beginning. 


This parcel contains 98,017 sq.ft. – 2.25 acres more or less.  


 


 


 







1


2


3 4


5 6


COMMONS


7 8


POWER 


HOUSE


SOUTH STREET


F
O


U
R


T
H


 S
T


R
E


E
T


RIVER STREET


7
T


H
 S


T
R


E
E


T


2
6


'-
0


"


2
6
'-0


"


2
6


'-
0


"


24'-0" 24'-0"


26'-0"


2
4


'-
0


"


26'-0"


2
6


'-
0


"


1
2


'-
0


"1
2


'-
0


"


2
6


'-
0


"


24'-0"


24'-0"


26'-0"


2
4


'-
0


"


2
4


'-
0


"60'-0"26'-0"60'-0"


PHASE 1


PHASE 1


P
H


A
S


E
 1


YAHARA RIVER


STO
RM


 W
ATER RENTENTION


STORM WATER RENTENTION


32,530 SF


59,570 SF


44,960 SF


30,790 SF


52,200 SF


52,200 SF


32,580 SF 39,470 SF


4,000 SF


1
5


'-
1


"


13'-3"


8
'-
4


"2
6
'-
5
"


DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF BUILDING


BALCONIES AND PORCHES TO EXTEND 


APPROXIMATELY 5'-0" FROM FACE OF 


BUILDING


9
'-
1
0


"12'-10"


12'-9"


14'-1"


9
'-
0


"


9
'-
0


"


9
'-
0


"


1
4


'-
0


"


35'-0"


1
7


'-4
"


12'-9"


1
6


'-8
" 10'-0"


10'-0"


30'-0"


3
5


'-
0


"


7
7


'-1
0


"


20'-0"


84'-0"


84'-0"


75'-2"


4'-5"


4'-5"


24'-0"


N


C:\Users\terrancem\Documents\2019.22.00_Stoughton Riverfront Apartments_Site_Connected -
Central_terrancem6E6CE.rvt


Stoughton Riverfront Redevelopment - 2019.22.00


November 5th, 2021


Overall Site Plan


0' 35' 70' 140'







General Development Plan Site Landscape
Stoughton Riverfront Apartment Site - 2019.22
November 1, 2021


landscape plan not to scale







Project Name - 20XX.XX.XX
January 01, 2020
Stoughton Riverfront Apartment Site - 2019.22
November 1, 2021


General Development Plan Site Signage & Lighting


Legend


Signage 
1  Development ground sign
2   Building identification sign 


and address on building or 
ground mounted 


a  “The Blacksmith” 
b  “The Sawmill”


3  Street sign 


Site Lighting
SL: Street Light
PL: Pedestrian Light
AL: Pool Deck Lighting


SL SL SL SL


SL
SLSL SL


SL


SL


SL


SL


SL


SL


SL SL
SL


SL SL


SL
SL


SL


SL


PL


PL


PLPL


PL


PL


AL
AL


AL


Lighting of trail by others


AL


PL


PL


PL


PL


PL


PL


SL


SL SL


SLSL


SL


SL
SL


SL


1


1 3


3


3
3


2a


2b


SL


SL


SL PL


SL











SOUTH STREET


FO
U


R
TH


 S
TR


EE
T


YAHARA RIVER


FI
FT


H
 S


T


SI
XT


H
 S


T


SE
VE


N
TH


 S
T


OUTLOT 1
98017 sq. ft.
2.25 acres


LOT 2
134861 sq. ft.


3.10 acres


LOT 3
83821 sq. ft.
1.92 acres


LOT 1
76874 sq. ft.
1.76 acres SE


VE
N


TH
 S


T


FUTURE RIVER ROAD
61,796 sq. ft. - 1.42 acres


1


2


3 4


5 6


7 8


COMMONS


Proposed Land Divisions
Stoughton Riverfront Redevelopment - 2019.22.00
May 27, 2021 50'0' 100'


N



AutoCAD SHX Text

13



AutoCAD SHX Text

BLOCK 35



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

11



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

BLOCK 36



AutoCAD SHX Text

BLOCK 42



AutoCAD SHX Text

BLOCK 43



AutoCAD SHX Text

PETERSON'S ADDITION



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BLOCK 34



AutoCAD SHX Text

PHASE 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PHASE 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PHASE 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PHASE 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PHASE 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTES: ALL BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED TO GRID NORTH OF THE WISCONSIN COUNTY COORDINATE SYSTEM - DANE ZONE, NAD83(2011). THE NORTH LINE OF THE NE   BEARS 14 BEARS N89°50'42"W.



zacht

Image







PARKING


50 STALLS


64' - 0" 34' - 8"


1
9


' 
- 


0
"


2
4


' 
- 


0
"


1
9


' 
- 


8
"


6
4


' 
- 


4
"


3
5


' 
- 


8
"


1
5


8
' 
- 


4
"


6
4


' 
- 


4
"


S
L
O


P
E
D


 F
L
O


O
R


90' - 0"


85' - 6"


308' - 0"


1
2


2
' 
- 


8
"


STORAGE


STORAGE


STORAGE


STORAGE


STORAGE


ENTRY & EXIT


DRIVE


244' - 4"


PARKING


37 STALLS


85' - 6"


N


0' 15' 30'


C:\Users\brianr\Documents\2019.22.00 Stoughton Riverfront Apartments_Arch Bldg 1_brianr@potterlawson.rvt


Stoughton Riverfront Apartments


11/01/2021


Buildings 1 & 2 - Parking Plans
Phase 1







ELEV.


LOBBY


VEST


PARCEL


ROOM


MAIL


64' - 0"


8
7


' 
- 


4
"


6
2


' 
- 


8
"


8
' 
- 


8
"


3BD UNIT


3BD UNIT 2BD UNIT


ELEV.


LOBBY


MAIL & 


PARCEL


1BD UNIT


VEST


VEST


CORRIDOR


MEP


1BD UNIT 1BD UNIT


2BD UNIT 1BD UNIT


3BD UNIT


3BD UNIT2BD UNIT


1BD UNIT1BD UNIT1BD UNIT


2BD UNIT1BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


1BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


1BD UNIT


1BD UNIT


1BD UNIT


3BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


6
4


' 
- 


8
"


3
5


' 
- 


2
"


1
5


8
' 
- 


8
"


34' - 8"64' - 0"


146' - 4" 15' - 8" 146' - 4"


308' - 4"


OUTDOOR TERRACE


6
4


' 
- 


8
"


N


0' 15' 30'


C:\Users\brianr\Documents\2019.22.00 Stoughton Riverfront Apartments_Arch Bldg 1_brianr@potterlawson.rvt


Stoughton Riverfront Apartments


11/01/2021


Buildings 1 & 2 - First Floor Plans
Phase 1







LOBBY


MEP


3BD UNIT


3BD UNIT 2BD UNIT


ELEV.


LOBBY


1BD UNIT


CORRIDOR


MEP


1BD UNIT 1BD UNIT


2BD UNIT 1BD UNIT


3BD UNIT


3BD UNIT2BD UNIT


1BD UNIT1BD UNIT1BD UNIT


2BD UNIT1BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


1BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


1BD UNIT


1BD UNIT


1BD UNIT


3BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


CORRIDOR


64' - 0"


8
7


' 
- 


4
"


6
2


' 
- 


8
"


8
' 
- 


8
"


6
4


' 
- 


8
"


3
5


' 
- 


2
"


1
5


8
' 
- 


8
"


34' - 8"64' - 0"


146' - 4" 15' - 8" 146' - 4"


308' - 4"


6
4


' 
- 


8
"


N


0' 15' 30'


C:\Users\brianr\Documents\2019.22.00 Stoughton Riverfront Apartments_Arch Bldg 1_brianr@potterlawson.rvt


Stoughton Riverfront Apartments


11/01/2021


Buildings 1 & 2 - Second Floor Plans
Phase 1







MEP


3BD UNIT


3BD UNIT 2BD UNIT


ELEV.


LOBBY


1BD UNIT


CORRIDOR


MEP


1BD UNIT 1BD UNIT


2BD UNIT 1BD UNIT


3BD UNIT


3BD UNIT2BD UNIT


1BD UNIT1BD UNIT1BD UNIT


2BD UNIT1BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


1BD UNIT


3BD UNIT


(MAIN FLOOR)


2BD UNIT


(MAIN FLOOR)


3BD UNIT


(MAIN FLOOR)


2BD UNIT


(MAIN FLOOR)


3BD UNIT


(MAIN FLOOR)


2BD UNIT


2BD UNIT


64' - 0"


8
7


' 
- 


4
"


6
2


' 
- 


8
"


8
' 
- 


8
"


6
4


' 
- 


8
".


3
5


' 
- 


2
".


1
5


8
' 
- 


8
"


34' - 8"64' - 0"


146' - 4" 15' - 8" 146' - 4".


308' - 4" .


6
4


' 
- 


8
".


N


0' 15' 30'


C:\Users\brianr\Documents\2019.22.00 Stoughton Riverfront Apartments_Arch Bldg 1_brianr@potterlawson.rvt


Stoughton Riverfront Apartments


11/01/2021


Buildings 1 & 2 - Third Floor Plans
Phase 1







ROOF


ROOF


ROOF


3BD UNIT


(SECOND FLR)


2BD UNIT


(SECOND FLR)


3BD UNIT


(SECOND FLR)


2BD UNIT


(SECOND FLR)


3BD UNIT


(SECOND FLR)


64' - 0"


8
7


' 
- 


0
"


6
2


' 
- 


8
"


8
' 
- 


9
"


6
4


' 
- 


8
"


3
5


' 
- 


2
".


1
5


8
' 
- 


1
0


"


35' - 0"63' - 8"


146' - 4" 15' - 8" 146' - 4"


308' - 4"


6
4


' 
- 


8
"


N


0' 15' 30'


C:\Users\brianr\Documents\2019.22.00 Stoughton Riverfront Apartments_Arch Bldg 1_brianr@potterlawson.rvt


Stoughton Riverfront Apartments


11/01/2021


Building 1 Fourth Floor Plan
Phase 1







C:\Users\brianr\Documents\2019.22.00 Stoughton Riverfront Apartments_Arch Bldg 1_brianr@potterlawson.rvt


Stoughton Riverfront Apartments


11/01/2021


Building 1 Entry Perspective - South Fourth & East South Streets







C:\Users\brianr\Documents\2019.22.00 Stoughton Riverfront Apartments_Arch Bldg 1_brianr@potterlawson.rvt


Stoughton Riverfront Apartments


11/01/2021


Building 1 Perspective - South Fourth Street







C:\Users\brianr\Documents\2019.22.00 Stoughton Riverfront Apartments_Arch Bldg 1_brianr@potterlawson.rvt


Stoughton Riverfront Apartments


11/01/2021


Building 2 Perspective - South Fourth & River Streets







C:\Users\brianr\Documents\2019.22.00 Stoughton Riverfront Apartments_Arch Bldg 1_brianr@potterlawson.rvt


Stoughton Riverfront Apartments


11/01/2021


Building 2 Entry Perspective - River Street





		13a R-168-2021 Resolution to Initiate Rezoning Process based on General Development Plan submitted for the Riverfront Redevelopment Area Adjacent to S. Fourth Street and E. South Street (2)

		2021 11 08  GDP Stoughton Riverfront Redevelopment GDP narative

		13c 2021 11 05 - GDP Plan Submittal






Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Date//Time:       Tuesday, November 9, 2021, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to COVID-19.  
  You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone via Zoom:  
  https://zoom.us/j/98788203406?pwd=M0VJY3RNM1NKQXp6OEZQbkpHWWlNdz09 


  Meeting ID: 987 8820 3406 
  Passcode: 001046 
  One tap mobile 
  +19292056099,,98788203406#,,,,*001046# US (New York) 
  +13017158592,,98788203406#,,,,*001046# US (Washington DC) 
  Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/abCQ0O4RZs 
 
The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum Channel 981. 
 
Members:          Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch,   
  Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett   
  Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, and Rachel Venegas 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM (EIGHT). 
The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please 
notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608) 873-6677 or via email cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 
1.  Roll Call 


 
2.  Minutes and Reports 


Park Recreation (8/17/21); Whitewater Park Steering Committee (8/16/21); Finance (10/12/21, 
10/18/21) 
 


3.  Public Comment Period: 
• If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and 


submit it by 6:30 p.m. on November 9, 2021. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


4.  Communications and Presentations  
• Landmarks Commissions – Historic Preservation Awards 
• Governor Evers' Proclamation Recognizing Election Hero Day (November 1, 2021) 
• Lead service completion – Utilities Director Weiss 


 
 


5.  Consent Agenda 
A. October 26, 2021 Council Minutes 
B. R-162-2021- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to 


various applicants. 
C. R-166-2021 Appointing Tamera Braxton as agent for Pick n Save (Public Safety 


recommends approval 5-0 on October 27, 2021) 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA - AMENDED 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 
regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  
 



https://zoom.us/j/98788203406?pwd=M0VJY3RNM1NKQXp6OEZQbkpHWWlNdz09

https://zoom.us/u/abCQ0O4RZs

https://wsto.tv/live%20and%20Spectrum%20Channel%20981

mailto:cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





      D. R-167-2021 Approving Class B Beer and Class C wine license transfer for Pizza Hut 
     (Public Safety recommends approval 5-0 on October 27, 2021) 


 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
6.  PUBLIC HEARING: 2022 City of Stoughton Operating Budget 
 
7. R -163-2021 Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to adopt the 2022 City of 
Stoughton Budget (Committee of the Whole recommended approval on October 20, 2021) 
 
8. R-164-2021 Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of  
Stoughton five-year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) (CIP recommended approval on 
September 9, 2021) 
 
9. R-165-2021 Setting a Special Charge for Garbage and Recycling Collection Fess for Calendar 
Year 2022 (Finance Committee meets November 9, 2021 –TIME SENSITIVE ITEM) 
 
10. Discussion and possible action regarding next steps in pursuing recovery of NAFA’s 
Default on the increment guarantee amount owed to the City. (Finance recommends approval 5-
0 on October 26, 2021) 
 
11. R-168-2021 Resolution to Initiate Rezoning Process based on General Development Plan 
submitted for the Riverfront Redevelopment Area Adjacent to S. Fourth (RDA recommends 
approval 5-0 on November 4, 2021)  


 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 
aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 
Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 


 








 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Tuesday, August 17, 2021 at 6:00 pm  


Virtual, Please use the information below to join the meeting.  
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/650124861  
You can also dial in using your phone. United States: +1 (224) 501-3412 Access Code: 650-124-861  


 


Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Ben Heili, Joyce Tikalsky, Jim Brandt, Emily Kluess, 
Mayor Tim Swadley and Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Guest: none 
Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm.  
 
Approval of Minutes from July 20, 2021 
Motion to approve the Minutes from July 20,, 2021 by Heili seconded by, Tikalsky  
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Communication-none 
Directors Report-Director Glynn Rotary Park bathroom update, need to move electrical panel 
 
Updated River Corridor Timeline (Discussion) Director Glynn reviewed the updated timeline 
 
Stoughton River Park Budget Review (Discussion) Director Glynn reviewed the budget and grants 
 
Stoughton River Park Design (Discussion & Possible Action)  
Motion by Heili, seconded by Brandt to Approve; 
A RESOLUTION TO DIRECT CITY STAFF TO RESCIND THE 2020 MUNICIPAL DAM PROGRAM 
GRANT APPLICATION AND ENTER INTO THE FINAL DESIGN STAGE OF THE STOUGHTON RIVER 
PARK PROJECT  
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Future Agenda Items 
 
Girl Scout Bicycle Project 
Future Parkland Acquisitions 
Park Impact Fee, Fee in Lieu of Land Dedication 
Park Design Guidelines  
Council Goals  
51 West Parks 
DNR Grants 
Park maintenance/invasive species 
Yahara River Park Hydraulic Analysis  
2464 County Highway A Acquisition 
 
Motion to adjourn Brandt by seconded by Hirsch 
Motion carried unanimously at 7:22 pm 







WHITEWATER PARK STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
August 16, 2021 
8:00 AM 
Virtual Meeting  
 
Present Members: Regina Hirsch, Jamie Patrick, Brandon Holstein, Vik Malling, Alex DeSmidt, 
Bob Diebel, Pete Manley, Vik Malling, Brandon Holstein, and Parks & Recreation Director Dan 
Glynn 
 
Guests: Dan Hanson, Judy Bills, Janice Bolender, Tim Swadley, Lauri Hodge, Marvin Hodge, Eric 
Olson, Mark Hale, Beth Amos, David Pfeiffer, Matt Swadley, Mason Lacy, Sid Boersma, John 
Bottoroff, Lila Lemanski, Laura Davis 
 
1. Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 8:04 am.  
 
2. Approval of the January 25, 2021 Minutes 
Motion by DeSmidt and seconded by Diebel to approve the minutes as presented. Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
3. Public Comment 
None 
 
4. Communications  
DeSmidt shared that the second phase of the County’s dredging project was out for bid. This 
phase was for the section of the river from Lake Kegonsa to County Rd B.  
 
New Business 
 
5. Updated Timeline  
Glynn shared that the DNR told him that if successful with the 2021 grant application that the 
funding wouldn’t be available until the fall of 2022. This moved back the construction of the River 
Park to 2023.   
 
6. Project Budget Review 
Glynn presented an overview of the grants and overall budget.  
 
7. Hydraulic Modeling Update  
The committee watched the modeling video and Mason Lacy answered questions regarding it.  
 
8. Stoughton River Park Design  
Glynn shared that the DNR wanted the City to make a decision if it was going to move forward 
with the River Park design. The City was tentatively awarded the Municipal Dam Program Grant 
and the River Park Design did not qualify since the features created a head. The DNR is 
classifying the project as a dam reconstruction.  
 
Motion made by Manly and seconded by Diebel to rescind the Municipal Dam Program Grant 
application and continue with the dam reconstruction design for the River Park. Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
9. Future Agenda Items  
Update on the Parks & Recreation Committee and City Council meetings.  
 
Adjournment 
Motion made by Diebel and seconded by Manley at 9:33 am. Motion carried unanimously.  


 







FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m.  
GoToMeeting 


Present:  
Schumacher, Reeves, Hirsch, Engelberger (arrived at 6:05 p.m.), Doom, Neigum (arrived at 6:03 
p.m.), Mayor Swadley 


Absent Excused:  
None 


Also Present:  
Director Friedl, Planning Director Scheel, Frank Roman – Ehlers, Alder Tikalsky, Jason 
Valerius, Bob Dvorak 


Call to Order:  
Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  


Communications: 


None.  


Reports: 


• None 
 


Approval of the September 28, 2021 Finance Committee Minutes  
Motion by Doom, second by Reeves to approve the September 28, 2021 minutes. Motion carried 
5-0. 


Resolution authorizing City official(s) to utilize $45,000 in Building Maintenance Funds 
and $20,000 in Contingency Funds to fund the emergency replacement of two boilers at 
the Senior Center  
 
Motion by Hirsch to forward the resolution authorizing City official(s) to utilize $45,000 in 
Building Maintenance Funds and $20,000 in Contingency Funds to fund the emergency 
replacement of two boilers at the Senior Center to the City Council for approval, second by 
Engelberger. Motion carried 7-0. 
 
***Discussion and possible action regarding the application by RHD properties, LLC 
for Tax Incremental Financing (“TIF”) for the project known as 51 West*** 
 


Director Friedl provided a brief summary of the work done by City staff and its consultants and 
invited Bob Dvorak and his team to discuss the timeline they are currently working on.  


Motion by Reeves to go into closed session at 6:14 p.m., second by Engelberger Motion carried 
7-0. 







 


Discussion and possible action regarding Stafford Rosenbaum’s proposed rates for 2022 
 
The Finance Committee did not have time to consider this item. It will be brought back to the 
October 26, 2021 meeting. 
  
Discussion and possible action regarding next steps in pursuing recovery of NAFA’s 
default on the increment guarantee amount owed to the City 
 
The Finance Committee did not have time to consider this item. It will be brought back to the 
October 26, 2021 meeting. 
 
Adjournment:  
Motion by Engelberger, second by Reeves to adjourn at 7:25 p.m. Motion carried 7-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Jamin Friedl, Finance Director  


 







FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Monday, October 18, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m.  
GoToMeeting 


Present:  
Schumacher, Reeves, Hirsch, Engelberger, Doom, Neigum, Mayor Swadley 


Absent Excused:  
None 


Also Present:  
Finance Director Friedl, Planning Director Scheel 


Call to Order:  
Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  


Communications: 


Mayor Swadley informed the Committee a meeting was held with the DOT and the timing of the 
51 Corridor is becoming clearer.  


Reports: 


• None 
 


Approval of the October 12, 2021 Finance Committee Minutes  
Motion by Doom, second by Reeves to approve the October 12, 2021 minutes. Motion carried 7-
0. 


***Discussion and possible action regarding the application by RHD properties, LLC 
for Tax Incremental Financing (“TIF”) for the project known as 51 West*** 
 


Director Friedl informed the Committee Bob Dvorak and Jason Valerius from MSA were present 
and available for any questions prior to going into closed session. 


Swadley informed the Committee that Bob Dvorak may potentially be able to commit to a deal 
on the Linnerud property, which could help solidify the intersection plans at Rutland-Dunn Town 
Line Road.  


Motion by Engelberger to go into closed session at 6:07 p.m., second by Reeves. Motion carried 
7-0 (unanimous consent). 


Motion by Engelberger to go into open session at 7:32 p.m., second by Doom. Motion carried 
7-0 (unanimous consent). 
 
Motion by Engelberger to advance the TIF application to City Council for approval and direct 
City staff to continue developer agreement negotiations under the parameters discussed in 
closed session, second by Hirsch. Motion carried 7-0. 







 
Adjournment:  
Motion by Hirsch, second by Engelberger to adjourn at 7:34 p.m. Motion carried 7-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Jamin Friedl, Finance Director  


 





		Park  Rec minutes 8-17-2021

		Whitewater Park Steering Committee Meeting Minutes 8-16-21

		10-12-21 Finance Committee Minutes

		10-18-21 Finance Committee Minutes






Historic Preservation Awards
2020-2021







Historic Preservation Awards
2020-2021


Award Categories:
• Proper Rehabilitation/Restoration
• Sensitive Addition/Alteration
• Adaptive Reuse
• Service Award: for outstanding contributions to 


historic preservation in our community. 







Historic Preservation Awards 2020-2021


Rehabilitation: Restoration: Service:







Historic Preservation Awards 2020-2021
Rehabilitation Award: sensitive façade rehabilitation







Historic Preservation Awards 2020-2021
Restoration Award: restoration of rooftop dragons







Historic Preservation Awards 2020-2021
Wendt Service Award: for outstanding contributions to historic 
preservation in our community. 













Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Date//Time:       Tuesday, October 26, 2021, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to COVID-19.  
  You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone via Zoom: 
 https://zoom.us/j/98649325850?pwd=WmFNYjBycFB4ZFpGRG9yNnZYQzBEUT09 
  Meeting ID: 986 4932 5850 
  Passcode: 859575 
  You may also join by using dial-in number 1 312-626-6799             
 
  The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum   
  Channel 981. 
 
Members:          Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch,   
  Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett   
  Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, and Rachel Venegas 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM (EIGHT). 
The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please 
notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608) 873-6677 or via email cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us  
 


CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Swadley called the meeting at order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Roll Call: 
Clerk Christen called the roll and noted there were 10 alders present. Heili and Ligocki were absent and 
excused. 
 
Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record. 


Stoughton Food Pantry (9/09/21); CA CP (9/07/21); Finance (9/14/21); Landmarks (9/9/21); Plan 
Commission (9/13/21); Tree Commission (6/10/21) 
 


Public Comment Period: 
None 
 


Communications and Presentations: 
• Landmarks Commission – Historic Preservation Awards. Was not presented t this time. 
• Callie LaPoint -marketing/advertising efforts of the Visitor Services Department -


Chamber of Commerce.  Presented an annual overview of services provided. 
• Alder Jenson thanked Stoughton Utilities for the work and designation of becoming lead 


free in the City and for hosting an autistic child at the lineman area. 
• Mayor Swadley thanked Alder Tikalsky’s effort in applying for and receiving Bronze 


designation from Healthy Community  
• Mayor Swadley reminded all that it is leaf pick up time in the city and the proper way for 


collection of the leaves for pick up by Public Works. 
• Mayor Swadley noted the recommended time for trick or treating on Halloween is from 6 to 


8 p.m. 
• Finance Director Friedl updated the Council of the open item from the COW meeting-



https://zoom.us/j/98649325850?pwd=WmFNYjBycFB4ZFpGRG9yNnZYQzBEUT09

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us





Statement of Assessment had been received and the planned for mill rate of $7.82 remained 
unchanged.  There will not be a need for a third COW meeting. 


• Mayor Swadley briefly updated the Council of the recent lockdown activity at the high 
school. 


• Mayor Swadley reported that John Basco had resigned his position on the Public Safety 
Committee and a volunteer to fill the recent Public Safety citizen member vacancy is being 
sought.  Swadley continues to seek members for the Hall of Fame Committee 


• Utilities Director Weiss thanked the Council for their support and effort with the Lead 
abatement program in the City and that they could sign the commemorative plaque.  She 
noted that 699 parcels, 650 private and 336 public services had been removed of lead 
connections. 


 
Consent Agenda 


A. October 12, 2021 Council Minutes 
 
Motion by Jenson, second by Hundt to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 10-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
R-159 -2021 Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division request by Arlin 
Teigen for property located at 1069 Taylor Lane, Town of Dunkirk, Dane County, Wisconsin.   
 
Motion by Caravello, second by Tikalsky to approve R-159-2021 Approving an extra-territorial 
jurisdictional (ETJ) land division request by Arlin Teigen for property located at 1069 Taylor 
Lane, Town of Dunkirk, Dane County, Wisconsin.  Motion carried 10-0. 
 
R-160-2021 Resolution accepting public improvements - Abel Plat 
 
Motion by Hundt, second by Schumacher to approve R-160-2021 Resolution accepting public 
improvements – Abel Plat.  Motion carried 10-0. 
 
O-22-2021 Ordinance creating new wards and aldermanic districts.   
 
Mayor Swadley introduced the ordinance and Clerk Christen presented the proposed map. Attorney 
Dregne explained the option for the Council to waive the second reading and with the approval of the 
ordinance it would meet the deadline set by the County for continued approval. 
 
Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to waive the second reading of the O-22-2021 Ordinance creating 
new wards and aldermanic districts.  Motion carried 10-0. 
 
Motion by Jenson, second by Doom to approve O-22-2021 Ordinance creating new wards and 
aldermanic districts.  Motion carried 10-0. 
 
R-161-2021 Resolution approving Fair Maps 
 







Motion by Hirsch, second by Jenson to approve R-161-2021 Resolution approving Fair Maps.  
Motion carried 10-0. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding the application by RHD properties, LLC for Tax 
Incremental Financing (“TIF”) for the project known as 51 West 
 
Schumacher introduced the discussion item and moved to adjourn to closed session, second by 
Doom.  Motion carried 10-0 on a roll call vote. 8:01 p.m.  
 
Reconvene in open session:  Motion by Jenson to go into open session, second by Reeves.  
Motion approved 10-0 on a roll call vote. 9:48 p.m. 
 
Motion by Hirsch, second by Doom to direct City staff to continue with the TID creation process 
and begin drafting the project plan to include the workforce housing request for TIF assistance, 
Developer request for TIF Assistance and USH 51 Corridor improvements.  Motion carried 7-3 
with Majewski, Tikalsky and Caravello voting no. 
 
Motion by Hirsch, second by Doom to begin developer agreement discussion with RHD Properties, 
LLC for the non-workforce housing portion of the development.  Motion carried 7-3 with Majewski, 
Tikalsky and Caravello voting no. 
 
Motion by Hirsch, second by Jenson to direct City staff to begin developer agreement discussion with 
Lakestone Properties as they relate to the workforce housing project.  Motion carried 8-2 with Majeski 
and Caravello voting no. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
Motion by Hundt, second by Hirsch to adjourn the meeting.  Motion carried 10-0. 9:58 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 


Candee J. Christen 
City Clerk 








 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-162-2021 


 
Date Introduced:   November 9, 2021 


 
WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 
the following applicants: 
 


Name      Place of Business 
  Chase Neath     Aldi’s 
  Lisa Bakken     Aldi’s 


Jennifer Jones     BP 
Ma Agatha Quiambao    Koffee Kup Restaurant 
      


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 
Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 
applicants. 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                           
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 
 
 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to appoint Tamera Braxton as the agent for Pick N 
Save, 1750 Highway 51 West.  


File Number: R-166-2021 
 
Date Introduced:  


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received a Schedule for Successor of Agent and Schedule 
for Appointment of Agent for Pick N Save, and 


WHEREAS, the application was forwarded to the Police Chief for review, now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to appoint Tamera Braxton as the agent for Pick N 
Save.  


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 


November 9, 2021





























		13a  R-166-2021-Appointing Tamera Braxton as Agent for Pick N Save at 1750 Highway 51 West

		13b Appointing Tamera Braxton Pick n Save










 
 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving a Class B Beer & Class C Wine License Transfer for Pizza Hut from 1424 US Highway 51 & 138 
to 1400 US Highway 51. 


Committee Action:       Public Safety recommended approval 5-0 with contingencies on October 27, 2021 
 
Fiscal Impact: $10 License Transfer Fee; License Fee $200/annually  


 
File Number: R-167-2021 


 
Date Introduced: November 09, 2021 


 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk’s office has received an application for a transfer of a Class B Beer 
& Class C Wine License currently issued to Pizza Hut located at 1424 US Highway 51 & 138 
 
WHEREAS, the licensee is requesting to transfer the license to their new premises, located at 14 
00 US Highway 51.  
 
WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on October 27, 2021 to consider the terms of the 
license application and recommended approval with the following contingencies: the effective date 
shall be November 09, 2021 and the premises description shall be updated, now therefore  
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby authorize and directed to approve a Class B Beer & Class C Wine license 
transfer for Pizza Hut from 1424 US Highway 51 & 138 to 1400 US Highway 51. 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 


 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 
 
 





















		14a R-167-2021 Approving a Class B Beer & Class C Wine License Transfer for Pizza Hut from 1424 US Highway 51 & 138 to 1400 US Highway 51

		14b Pizza Hut Class B beer transfer



